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Chairman’s Statement
TR EE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board") of directors (the “Director(s)") of Hailan
Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Hailan Holdings”, together with its
subsidiaries, collectively known as the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
audited financial results for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “‘Reporting
Period’).

In 2021, being the opening year of the 14th Five-Year Plan, the economy
continued to recover steadily while driven by positive and robust policies on
macro-monetary control which further strengthened economic fundamentals.
Under the combined effect of various factors including favorable policies,
structural recovery and export expansion, the positive momentum of China’s
economy was seen solidifying with stability. In respect of policy direction, the
overall real estate market regulation policy remained its continuity and stability.
The Chinese Central Government will continue to uphold the principle of
"housing properties for accommodation, not speculation” and implement city-
specific measures thoroughly, with a view to “stabilize land price, property
price and expectation”. In the second half of the year, the adjustment of the
property market went deeper, bringing certain effects on the domestic real
estate development. Local government actively implemented city-specific
measures to ensure a stable and healthy operation of the real estate market. In
respect of regional development, the comprehensive establishment of Hainan
Free Trade Port continued to benefit the development of Hainan Province with
notable increase in the number of enterprises and talents establishing foothold
there, reflecting the stronger confidence in Hainan's fixed investments.

During the Reporting Period, the contracted sales of the Group amounted to
RMB1,500.6 million, representing a decrease of 35.0% as compared to 2020.
The contracted saleable gross floor area (“GFA") was approximately 100,016.2
square metres (“sgq.m.”), representing a decrease of approximately 41.8% from
2020. The contracted average selling price ("ASP”") was about RMB15,003.5 per
sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 11.7% over 2020. The
decrease in contracted sales and contracted saleable GFA was mainly due to a
slow down in the demand for properties in the PRC property market during
2021.

EHRBRR
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ERR EREMEQRGE A%8]) =
=(ExDg(ESE ) MAREZEZE 2021
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20 F  ERTTHNR I RBRBZF KK
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Chairman’s Statement
TR EE

Given the gradual restoration of the endogenous momentum of economic
growth as well as more flexible and precise macro policies adopted in 2022,
the positive momentum of China’s economy was seen solidifying with stability.
In respect of domestic strategy, the Group will remain focused on the
development projects in Hainan Province, the unprecedented opportunities
brought by the free trade port development initiative and the favorable
policies which continued to support the Group’s future business development
in Hainan Province.

To further foster the continuous development of the Group, we will operate
steadily by leveraging our existing advantages to enhance our product and
service capabilities and improve our brand competitiveness. While continuing
to cultivate the expanded regions, we are actively seeking to enter into new
regions nationwide, optimizing our city presence and focusing on mainstream
cities.

The management has formulated our future development plan. By establishing
its foothold in Hong Kong, delving into China’s market, expanding the market
in North America and spreading global footprints, the Group will further
promote its business development and create the best return for the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

Finally, I would like to express my sincere gratitude on behalf of the Board to all

of our staff for their hard work, and my heartfelt thanks to investors, customers
and business partners for their strong and continuous support to the Group.

Zhou Li
Chairperson

31 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B L w S AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall Performance

675 ]
Bk

For the Reporting Period, the revenue and gross profit of the Group were  $REHIR  AEBOWELEFNSBILAEAR
approximately RMB557.6 million and RMB299.7 million, representing a decrease #5576 HE T R ARKE2007BE T * 9 BI&
of approximately 22.6% and 8.1% as compared with 2020, respectively. Profit 2020 4 Ji > 49 22.6% 5. 8.1% o 4 25 % 58 fE 16 5%
attributable to the equity Shareholders was approximately RMB15.4 million — F#) B AR 154 B & 7T (20204 : ARE 640
(2020: RMB64.0 million). Basic earnings were RMB5 cents per share (2020: HETT) « AAXNEFN AGIR AR5 (20204

RMB21 cents).

AREEN D)

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2021 2020 Changes
Performance Highlights RERE 20214 2020 4F BHE
Contracted sales (RMB million)’ BHHE ( AREFHET) 1,500.6 2,3094 -35.0%
Contracted saleable GFA (sq.m.)'? BHHEREmBE(FHK) 2 100,016.2 171,961.5 -41.8%
Contracted average selling price BHFHEE ([ FEEE]D)

("ASP") (RMB/sq.m.)'? (AR EFK) 12 15,003.5 134298 11.7%
Revenue' (RMB million) WH (AREEET) 557.6 7207 -22.6%
Among which: sales of properties Heh - MFEHEE
— Revenue from properties delivered — BERNERKE

(RMB million)’ (AREB&ET) 552.9 715.1 -22.7%
— GFA of properties delivered (sq.m.) — BERNEREmME (FHK) 13,973.9 27,1146 -48.5%
— ASP of properties delivered —ERNMETFHERE

(RMB/sq.m.) (AR /T FT3K) 39,566.6 26,3732 50.0%
Rental income (RMB million)? HERAAREBEL)® 4.6 56 -17.9%
Losses on changes in fair value of KREYENTFELFEE (30.0) (1.8)  156times

investment properties (RMB million) (AREBET) 15615
Gross profit (RMB million) EF(AREEETL) 299.7 326.0 -8.1%
Profit (Loss) for the year FEHM(BE)

— Attributable to owners (RMB million) — A ANEEAREFET) 15.4 64.0 -75.9%
— Attributable to non-controlling interests ~ — FE4E IS RE R FEAG

(RMB million) (AREBa&sT) (57.2) (32.1) 78.2%
Total assets (RMB million) wEEANREEET) 8,921.7 75433 18.3%
Cash and bank balances (including cash and I8 & KIR1T45 84

cash equivalents and restricted cash) (BREBELLRRLSEEY UK

(RMB million) XREF2)AREBST) 907.8 10315 -12.0%
Total equity (RMB million) wES(ARBESET) 1,652.3 19140 -13.7%
Key financial ratios FTEHHER
Gross profit margin® EFE 53.7% 452% 86 p.p.

IS EERE
Gearing ratio® EEAEERS 99.1% 91.6% 81pp.
AREERE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI i BT

Notes:

Pursuant to the agreement between the shareholders of Danzhou Shuanglian Property
Development Company Limited (‘"Danzhou Shuanglian’), one of the former shareholders of
Danzhou Shuanglian shall continue to manage, develop and undertake fully the risk and
reward of Danzhou Phase I. The acquisition of Danzhou Shuanglian has been accounted for
as a business combination with Danzhou Shuanglian fully consolidated into our Group's
consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. As the Group does not share
any risks and rewards relating to Danzhou Phase | pursuant to the abovementioned
agreement, the net profit or loss and net assets or liabilities arising from Danzhou Phase | are
wholly attributable to the non-controlling interests in the Group's consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the consolidated statements of changes
in equity. Contracted sales of Danzhou Phase | is excluded in this analysis for discussion

purpose.

The calculation excludes the GFA of car parking spaces.

Rental income represents the amount of income after deduction of sales related taxes.

Gross profit margin: Gross profit + Revenue x 100%

Gearing ratio: Total bank and other borrowings + Total equity x 100%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

S AR LA T

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Contracted sales

For the Reporting Period, the Group recorded contracted sales of
approximately RMB1,500.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately
35.0% as compared with 2020. The contracted saleable GFA was 100,016.2
sg.m. in 2020, representing a decrease of approximately 41.8% year-on-year.

The ASP of contracted sales was RMB15,003.5 per sg.m., representing an

increase of approximately 11.7% year-on-year.

The decrease in contracted sales and contracted saleable GFA were mainly due
to the Group undertaking new development projects in Sanya City and Haikou
City of Hainan Province, Zhanjiang City and Foshan City of Guangdong

Province and Nanning City of Guangxi Province in 2021.

B

TR

RBEMRRE  FEESESEYOHEENARE
1,500.6 & &8 JT * 820204 & 2> #735.0% ° 2020
FAEYHEREEMMEA1000162F 7K » LF
BLHI418% - EHHEFHEBATEAK
AR¥E1500357T © HEFIEANAI11.7% ©

BHEERENHEEREEERLD T ERNAE
SRR FESEE=—E=mogOm - ER
BRI EHBLUTMAREREEEMETHHR
FIHA -

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12B31HLEEE

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted
GFA sales GFA sales
G Bl

BEER BRHE EEETE BRHE

Project City sq.m.  RMB’million Q.M. RMB'million

HE W THEK ARWEER Tk ARKEBEERL

Sanya Phoenix Aqua City Left Shore Sanya - - 2306 84
=S REKREL R D@

Sanya Phoenix Aqua City South Shore Phase [ &I Sanya 17,240.8 700.0 28,366.5 1,139.0
= nREKEEE R 5 =&

Haikou Phoenix Aqua City Phase | Haikou 3,376.0 58.3 14,2107 2494
A0 BBk — &0

Zhanjiang City Binjianghua Fu Zhanjiang 44,499.9 316.6 60,470.0 4132
LB % BT

Jingzhuya Court Foshan 16,765.6 221.7 838252 1210
REMR il

Hailan Jin Zhong Fu Nanning - - 59,858.5 3784
BESEN GES

Danzhou Phoenix Shores Yue Hai Bay Danzhou 3,409.5 384 - -
ENERSRE - 5 M

Hailan Zhongtang Nanjing 14,724.4 165.6 - -
BERE I

100,016.2 1,500.6 171,9615 23094

WA RAT 20214 9



Management Discussion and Analysis

B B i B A

REVENUE FROM SALES OF PROPERTIES

For the Reporting Period, the GFA of delivered properties decreased to 13,973.9
sg.m., representing a decrease of approximately 48.5% as compared with 2020,
which was mainly due to less properties being delivered by the projects in the
cities of Sanya and Haikou. The revenue from sales of properties was
approximately RMB552.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately
22.7% as compared with 2020 and accounting for 99.2% of total revenue,
which continued to be the main source of revenue and growth momentum
for the Group.

Completed projects held for sale

Completed projects held for sale represents completed GFA remaining
undelivered at the end of each reporting period. At the year end, all completed
properties held for sale were located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 3 completed property projects which
amounted to RMB494.4 million, representing an increase of 31.9% as compared
with 2020.

Projects held for future development and projects under
development

Projects held for future development and projects under development are
intended to be held for sale after completion. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had 11 property projects under development which amounted to
RMB6,888.5 million, representing an increase of 48.9% as compared with 2020.

PROPERTY INVESTMENTS
Rental income

The rental income of the Group for the Reporting Period amounted to
approximately RMB4.6 million, representing the income from the leasing of the
serviced apartments and car parking spaces located at Sanya Phoenix Aqua
City Left Shore and the shops located at Danzhou Phase I.

Investment properties

The investment properties of the Group represent the car parking spaces held
by the Group for rental purpose. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount
of investment properties was approximately RMB75.2 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 28.5% as compared with 2020, mainly due to the
decrease in fair value by approximately RMB30.0 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B L A

Financial Review

U

(m

(U]

(V)

(V)

Revenue

Revenue of the Group is mainly derived from property development and
property investment. During the Reporting Period, revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB557.6 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 22.6% as compared with 2020, primarily due to the
decrease in the total GFA of properties delivered in 2021.

Cost of sales and gross profit margin

The cost of sales and gross profit of the Group was approximately
RMB257.9 million and RMB299.7 million respectively, representing a
decrease of approximately 34.6% and 8.1% as compared with 2020
respectively, mainly due to the decrease in total GFA delivered and the
lower profitability of the property projects delivered during 2021.

Selling and distribution expenses and administrative expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses for the Reporting Period
amounted to approximately RMB67.6 million (2020: approximately
RMB43.3 million), mainly due to the increase in the expenses on sales
agent commission and sale staff cost.

Administrative expenses increased by 23.8% to RMB119.8 million, mainly
due to an increase in administration staff cost and PRC tax surcharge
incurred.

Net finance costs

The net finance costs of the Group for the Reporting Period amounted
to approximately RMB26.4 million (2020: RMB13.0 million). The increase
in net finance costs was mainly due to the increase in the interest
expenses on bank and other borrowings and the interest on financial
component of contract liabilities during the Reporting Period, as
compared with 2020.

Income tax expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group decreased by 14.0% to
approximately RMB132.0 million. Among which, the CIT and the LAT
amounted to approximately RMB47.3 million and RMB112.2 million,
respectively. The decrease was mainly attributable to less operating
profit being recorded during 2021.

$ 5 [ml g
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B i B A

(V1)

(v

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Reporting
Period amounted to approximately RMB15.4 million (2020: RMB64.0
million), which were mainly attributable to the decrease in profit as a
result of decrease in properties delivered, a loss on change in fair value
of investment properties and an increase in operating expenses for new
property development projects during 2021.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2021, total assets of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB8,925.7 million (2020: approximately RMB7,543.3
million), of which current assets amounted to approximately RMB8,751.7
million (2020: approximately RMB7,049.3 million). Total liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB7,269.2 million (2020: approximately
RMB5,629.3 million), of which non-current liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB1,660.3 million (2020: approximately RMB1,560.1
million). Total equity amounted to approximately RMB1,656.5 million
(2020: approximately RMB1,914.0 million). Total equity attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to RMB1,469.6 million (2020:
approximately RMB1,484.6 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and bank balances
(including restricted cash) of approximately RMB907.8 million (2020:
approximately RMB1,031.5 million). The bank and other borrowings was
in the amount of approximately RMB1,640.9 million (2020: RMB1,753.7
million).

(VIII) Commitments

12

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitments
outstanding but not provided for in consolidated financial statements
which amounted to approximately RMB1,966.9 million (2020:
approximately RMB1,259.4 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

@

(i)

Acquisitions of land use rights

On 6 January 2021, Danzhou Shuanglian, an indirect subsidiary of
the Company, Hailan Shiye (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd* (/& B B 2 (& M)
AR A 7)) (“Hailan Shiye Guangzhou’), and Hunan Jinzhong Property
(HHeEEXREEBRERAR)

("Hunan Jinzhong Property’) won the bid in respect of the land parcel

Investment Group Co., Ltd.*

situated at Danzhou, Hainan Province, the PRC at the auction at a
consideration of RMB1,080 million and received the confirmation
notification from the auction company in relation to the land acquisition.
Danzhou Hailan Jinhong Property Development Co,, Ltd.* (1M /& & &
Y B i E M % B R 22 7)) (‘Danzhou Hailan Jinhong') was
established on 7 January 2021 and was owned as to 50% by Danzhou
Shuanglian, 35% by Hailan Shiye Guangzhou and 15% by Hunan
Jinzhong Property. The asset transfer agreement in respect of the land
acquisition was entered into on 7 January 2021 between Management
(BB ST REEE

8 @) as transferor and Danzhou Shuanglian, Hailan Shiye Guangzhou

Committee of Binhai New District of Danzhou*
and Hunan Jinzhong Property as purchasers.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 6
January 2021.

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 1 April 2021, the Company, the Nanhai Xianglong Real Estate
(FBMERMERBEARIT)
subsidiary of the Company, “Nanhai Xianglong") as seller and Center
Drive Investment, LLC (“Center Drive") as the purchaser entered into
the disposal agreement, under which Center Drive agreed to acquire,
and Nanhai Xianglong agreed to sell, 290,000 shares, representing 58%

Development Co., Ltd.* (an indirect

of the share capital, of Crossland Development, Inc. for a consideration of
US$2.9 million. On the same date, the Company and Center Drive
entered into the side letter, under which the Company agreed to transfer
the sale loans in the aggregate amount of US$1.05 million to the Center
Drive, for a consideration at the face value of the sale loans.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 1
April 2021.
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(iii) Acquisition of further equity interest of a subsidiary

On 7 July 2021, Sanya Zhongzekai Industrial Co,, Ltd* (=38R E S| B 5
ABR7AA]) ("Sanya Zhongzekai’), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Danzhou Shuanglian and Hailan Shiye, indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company and Hunan Jinzhong Zhiye
Investment Group Co, Ltd* (i S E B X R ESB AR 2 A7)
("Hunan Jinzhong") entered into an equity transfer agreement (the
“First Equity Transfer Agreement’), pursuant to which Sanya
Zhongzekai agreed to acquire, and Hunan Jinzhong agreed to dispose
of, 15% of the equity interest in Danzhou Hailan Jinhong, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, for a consideration of
RMB93,050,000.

(iv) Disposal of an associate

On 7 July 2021, Hailan Shiye Guangzhou and Zhongtou Zhiye
(Guangzhou) Co, Ltd* (IR & 2 (B M) B PR A 7)) (‘Zhongtou Zhiye")
entered into an equity transfer agreement (the “Second Equity Transfer
Agreement”), pursuant to which Hailan Shiye Guangzhou agreed to
dispose of, and Zhongtou Zhiye agreed to acquire, 49% of the equity
interest in Jinzhong Real Estate Co, Ltd* (BT, BE S EEEBR A
A1), an associate of the Company, for a consideration of RMB71,880,400.

(v) Disposal of a subsidiary

On 7 July 2021, Hailan Shiye Guangzhou and Zhongtou Zhiye entered
into an equity transfer agreement (the "Third Equity Transfer
Agreement”), pursuant to which Hailan Shiye Guangzhou agreed to
dispose of, and Zhongtou Zhiye agreed to acquire, 51% of the equity
interest in Guangxi Hailan Jinzhong Zhiye Co,, Ltd* (BFI /B E ¢ BB 2
A BB A 7\), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
for a consideration of RMB97,010,000.

For details of the First Equity Transfer Agreement, Second Equity Transfer
Agreement and Third Equity Transfer Agreement, please refer to
announcement of the Company dated 7 July 2021.

(vi) Acquisition of further equity interest of a subsidiary

On 10 September 2021, Hailan Haoyue Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.*
OB EE BT (ORI B BR A F)]) (the "Hailan Haoyue”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Hengnan Wanwu
Enterprise Management Co, Lid* (BB @M X E B B R 2 Al)
("Hengnan Wanwu") entered into the equity transfer agreement,
pursuant to which Hailan Haoyue agreed to purchase, and Hengnan
Wanwu agreed to sell, 27.39% of equity interest in Guangdong Jinzhong
Hongpeng Zhiye Co,, Ltd* (BR £ EBMEE X AR A 7)) at the total
consideration of RMB74,836,700.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10
September 2021.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other material acquisitions,
disposals and significant investments during the Reporting Period.
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio (calculated by total debt divided by
total equity; total debt includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings)
was 99.1% (2020: 91.6%).

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

The Group will continue to invest in property development projects and
acquire suitable land parcels in the PRC, Hong Kong, Southeast Asia and the
United States, if it thinks fit. It is expected that internal resources and bank
borrowings will be sufficient to meet the necessary funding requirements. Save
as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any future plans for material
investments as at the date of this report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, taking into account of Danzhou Phase |, the Group
had 328 employees (as at 31 December 2020: 364 employees). For the
Reporting Period, the Group incurred employee costs of approximately
RMB77.7 million. The remuneration of the employees generally includes salary
and performance-based bonuses. According to the applicable PRC laws and
regulations, the Group participates in various employee benefit plans of the
municipal and provincial governments, including housing provident funds,
pension, medical, maternity, occupational injury and unemployment benefit
plans.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the restricted cash in amount of approximately
RMB375.7 million (2020: RMB269.9 million) was pledged for properties under
development. In addition, the carrying amount of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale in the amount of
approximately RMB1,941.8 million and RMB79.1 million (2020: RMB1,145.4
million and RMB119.8 million) respectively was pledged for bank and other
borrowings.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group mainly operates in the PRC. The Group's functional currency and the
currency in which the Group denominates and settles substantially all of its
transactions are Renminbi. The foreign currency denomination of commercial
transactions, assets and liabilities, and net investments in foreign operations
are mainly in US dollars. The Group is not subject to any significant foreign
currency risk as the revenue, expenses and borrowings of the Group’s foreign
operating subsidiaries are denominated in the functional currency of those
operations. Any depreciation of the Renminbi would affect the value of any
dividends that the Group pays to the Shareholders outside the PRC. The Group
currently does not engage in any hedging activities designed or intended to
manage foreign exchange rate risk.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
Reporting Period (2020: Nil) to the Shareholders.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Zhou Li (A #1) (“Ms. Zhou"), aged 40, was appointed as an executive
Director on 12 April 2016, a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company on 22 June 2016 and the chief
executive officer of the Company on 29 March 2017. Ms. Zhou is also a director
of Lian Yun Gang Long Ji Properties Limited GE Z BB KX B 2GR A 7))
(‘Lian Yun Gang Long Ji Properties”) and the general manager of Sanya Hui
Xin Trading Company Limited (= 52 B ¥7 & 5 & [R 2 &]) (‘Sanya Hui Xin
Trading"), and the deputy general manager of Sanya Fenghuang Xincheng
Industry Company Limited (= 25 Bl Bl ¥7 % B % & R 2 7)) (‘Sanya
Fenghuang Xincheng"), Sanya Fenghuang Shuiyun Property Development
Company Limited (= 25 Bl Bl 7K #8 5 # Z= B % B R 2 7]) (‘Sanya
Fenghuang Shuiyun”) and Hainan Nanhai Xiang Long Properties
Development Limited (/& 8 F 8 M 88 5 b E H % B R 2 7)) (‘Hainan

Nanhai Xiang Long"), all of which are subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Zhou attended a long-distance Graduate Training Program course in
Masters of Business Administration at the Sino-Dutch International Business
Center of Nanjing University from December 2005 to December 2008, and
obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from Maastricht School of
Management, Netherlands in December 2008. She was qualified as an engineer
by the Nanjing Municipal Construction Engineering Intermediate Professional
Technical Qualifications Social Assessment Committee (F R =% T2 A 4%
HERMERLS(LFFEZEZ B D) in December 2010 and was awarded the
practicing qualification for professional construction engineering category by
the Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of Jiangsu Province
in2012.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Zhou was appointed as deputy manager in
Zhonghui (Jiangsu) Decoration Park Engineering Co. Ltd. (FF 28 (T &k ) 2% & &
I 72 B BR A al) from March 2000 to September 2004. Ms. Zhou was the
chairperson of Zhonghui Engineering Group (/1 28 T 2 & 2 52 @) between
October 2004 to July 2007. Ms. Zhou Li cohabits with Mr. Yeung Man, a
controlling Shareholder, as a spouse. For the shareholding interest of Ms. Zhou
Li, please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief executive's
interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares or debentures” on
page 57 of the annual report.
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Ms. Fan Wenyi (52 X #%) (“Ms. Fan”), aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director on 12 April 2016. Ms. Fan has been the chief operation officer and
deputy general manager of the Group since 3 September 2007. Ms. Fan is the
chairman of Sanya Fenghuang Xincheng, Sanya Fenghuang Shuiyun, Sanya
Zhongzekai and Danzhou Shuang Lian Properties Development Company
Limited (1& ) &8t EHER B A F) and the deputy general manager of
Lian Yun Gang Tai Sheng City Development Limited GEZEERE M T EES
fR/2 7)) (‘Lian Yun Gang Tai Sheng Development’), Lian Yun Gang Long Ji
Properties, Hainan Nanhai Xiang Long and Sanya Hui Xin Trading, all of which are
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Fan graduated from Shaanxi External Services
Training Academy (BRFE % SMIR 555 911 E2BR) majoring in foreign oriented
secretary (¥N3CH4) in the PRC in 1996. Ms. Fan was accredited as an
intermediate accountant by MOF of the PRC (FF Bt F) in May 2005. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Fan worked as an assistant to general manager of Hainan
Xinjia Tourism Co., Ltd. (BRI ¥TERZER R 2 &) from November 2005 to
February 2007.

Mr. Chen Xiang (BR%¥), aged 38, served as an executive Director from 29 August
2017 to 31 October 2019 and was appointed as an executive Director on 15
October 2020. Mr. Chen Xiang currently serves as a director of both cost
procurement department and engineering design department in Sanya
Fenghuang Xincheng, which is a subsidiary of the Company. From 2006 to
2012, he was also a cost estimator (FEJR% 8 ) in Verdure International Holding
Company Limited (22 5 B B 122 f% 45 FR /2 F]). Mr. Chen Xiang graduated from
the China University of Geosciences with a Bachelor of Civil Engineering degree
in July 2008. He was registered as a first class constructor (— #& £ & A) in
housing construction (& /& # %&) and in public utility (5 B2 ) and as a
cost controller (318 TH2RM).
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Mr. Jia Bin (EJ&) (“Mr. Jia”), aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 December 2021 and previously served as the chief financial
officer of the Company from 12 May 2017 to 4 June 2018 and from 14
September 2018 to 6 May 2020, respectively. Mr. Jia obtained his bachelor’s
degree in Accounting from Nanjing Economic College (B R AE 75 25) (which
is currently known as Nanjing University of Finance and Economics (7 & B 4%
KE2) in 1997 and received his Master of Business Administration degree from
Nanjing University (B A22) in 2015. He has been a non-practicing member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 2003 and an
associate member of the Association of International Accountants since 2016.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Jia had 20 years of experience in accounting and
financial management. He worked in Jiangsu Easthigh International Group Co,,
Limited* (VT &k 3 18 B B & B B R 2 7)) and served consecutively as an
accountant in Jiangsu Province International Economic and Trading Industrial Head
Corporation* ()T #k & B FR 48 & B 3 482 7)) from 1997 to 1999, as a financial
manager in Jiangsu Province International Economic and Trade Property
Management Company Limited* (L& & BIFR & B E IR B R 2 7)) from
2000 to 2003, as a general manager of the capital finance department of Jiangsu
Easthigh International Service and Trading Joint Stock Company Limited* (JT &5
BB AR E 5 B 19 A BR A 7)) from 2003 to 2008, and as an assistant to the
general manager of the capital finance department of Jiangsu Easthigh
International Group Co, Limited* ()1 %k 5 18 B[ & [ & R A &) from 2006 to
2008. Subsequently, Mr. Jia worked in the finance department of Golden Eagle
International Group Co, Limited* (& & B % % B 5 BR /2 7)) as an deputy chief
financial officer from 2008 to 2009, as a chief financial officer from 2009 to 2011, as
an assistant to the president from 2011 to 2015. Subsequently, he also worked in
the finance cost center of Verdure International Holding Company Limited* (2257 B4
B 4% i & BR A F)) as a general manager from April to September 2015 and in the
financial headquarter of Suning Estate Group Co, Ltd* (SR & % EB AR A 7)) as
an assistant to the chief executive officer from October 2015 to March 2017.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Yong (ZE) (“Mr. Li”), aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, and nomination committee of the Company on 29
September 2017. Mr. Li is currently a general manager of Hainan Wanlong Real
Estate Development & Construction Co,, Ltd. (B & EERZEEREER
A]) and an independent director of Hainan HNA Infrastructure Investment
Group Co, Ltd. (BF/EMERE LR & £ BB BR2AR]) (stock code on
Shanghai Stock Exchange: 600515).

Mr. Li was an assistant to the general manager of China Baoan Group Hainan
Industry Co,, Lid* (FEIB L& E G EE X B R A F) from March 2003 to
January 2010. From January 2010 to January 2015, he acted as the director,
deputy general manager and secretary of the board of directors of Hai Nan
Yedao (Group) Co, Ltd, (/& 5 #F & (& E)i% 17 B BR 2 7]) (stock code on
Shanghai Stock Exchange: 600238) and as a general manager of Hainan
Danzhou Baoan Real Estate Investment Co,, Ltd* (B RIEINE & B E M 2
B R A7) from January 2015 to November 2015.

In July 1995 and August 2014, Mr. Li completed the economic management
diploma course at Xinxiang Municipal Committee Party School of Henan
Province of the Chinese Communist Party (FF A& FTE T & ER) and
the advanced Business Administration program for president at the Hainan
University, respectively.

Mr. Li obtained his qualification certificate as a secretary to the board of
directors and qualification certificate as an independent director issued by the
Shanghai Stock Exchange in 2010 and 2014, respectively. He was awarded the
Intermediate Title of Business Administration by the National Ministry of
Personnel in 2000.
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Dr. Zhao Guogqing (5 E] ) (“Dr. Zhao"), aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee,
and a member of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Company on 31 December 2018. Dr. Zhao is currently the national
technical director and partner of Zhonghui Corporation* (FE£ ) and he
has extensive working experience in taxation in the PRC.

Dr. Zhao is a qualified certified public accountant in the PRC. Dr. Zhao
graduated from Yangzhou University with a bachelor’'s degree majoring in
taxation in July 2002, obtained his master's degree in Business Administration
from Nanjing University in March 2012 and obtained his doctorate degree in
Business Administration from Nanjing University in December 2018.

Mr. Deng Shaochao (E#8# ) (“Mr. Deng”), aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of the audit committee, the
nomination committee and the remuneration committee on 1 June 2020. Mr.
Deng Shaochao resigned as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 4 June 2021.

Mr. Deng completed on-the-job postgraduate programme and is a
professorate senior engineer. Mr. Deng has been engaged in the technical,
operational and management work of Guangxi construction system since
September 1977. He successively held the posts of foreign economic affairs
office of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region Construction Corporation* (/&
FaAt i B A & #2422 7)), deputy general manager and general engineer
of the management department in Kenya office of Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region Construction Corporation, chairman and legal
representative of Guangxi China Construction Engineering Company* (& 78
# T 12 2 7)), and deputy general manager and senior engineer of Guangxi
International Construction Engineering Corporation (EFR$fJMNESE TIREB R
B])*. Mr. Deng was a member of the party's organization, executive director,
deputy general manager, and chief economist of Guangxi Construction
Engineering Group* (/& 78 7 T % &) from March 1997 to January 2010. Mr.
Deng served as deputy party secretary, executive director and general manager
of Guangxi Construction Engineering Group from February 2010 to October
2016, and he also served as chairman and legal representative of Guangxi Dadu
Investment Co,, Ltd* (E7PA KEBIEE B R /A 7)) and Guangxi Dadu Concrete
Group Co,, Ltd.* (PG A #B IRk £ & B B R 2 &) during the same period.
He has been the chief consultant of Guangxi Yunxiang Digital Architectural
Design Co,, Ltd* (EFAEZE FRER T BFR A R]) since October 2016.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Prof. Fan Conglai (38 #£ ) (“Prof. Fan”), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 4 June 2021. Prof. Fan is also a member
of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company. Prof. Fan obtained his doctorate degree in
Economics from Nanjing University in May 2000, and was awarded Changjiang
distinguished professorship by the Ministry of Education in 2006. Prof. Fan has
extensive experience in teaching and researching monetary finance, corporate
finance and capital markets. Prof. Fan has been the head of the economics
department of Nanjing University Business School from September 1995 to
April 2002, associate dean of Nanjing University Business School from February
2002 to December 2004, the secretary of the Communist Party Committee of
Nanjing University Business School from December 2004 to September 2007,
the head of the subject department of Nanjing University since July 2008, the
dean of Nanjing University School of Economics from November 2010 to July
2011, an executive associate dean of Nanjing University Business School from
July 2011 to December 2014, assistant principal of Nanjing University from
October 2014 to March 2019, and director of the Yangtze River Delta Economic
and Social Development Research Center, Nanjing University since March 2019.
Prof. Fan has been an independent director of Bank of Suzhou (&& SR 1TR% 15
B R A A) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
002966) since April 2020.
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Yang Dong John (# ) (“Mr. Yang”), aged 47, was appointed as the
company secretary and chief financial officer of the Company respectively on 1
April 2019 and 6 May 2020, respectively. Mr. Yang served as the chief financial
officer of Tsui Wah Holdings Limited (“Tsui Wah") (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1314) from 4 June 2012 to 31
December 2015 and from 22 August 2016 to 31 March 2019 and was
responsible for financial planning and budgeting, overseeing the financial
reporting functions and specific financial projects as well as maintaining
investors' relations. He also assisted in the listing of the shares of Tsui Wah on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yang was appointed as the chief executive officer for
the PRC region of Tsui Wah from March 2014 to March 2017, assisting the
company in the management and development of business in the PRC. He
served as the company secretary and an authorised representative of Tsui Wah
from June 2012 to February 2015.

Mr. Yang has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since 2003 and a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since 2011. Mr. Yang has accumulated over 18
years of experience in auditing, consolidated accounting, financial
management, due diligence investigation, compliance auditing and financial
auditing. Prior to joining Tsui Wah, he was the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Wedding Banquet Specialist (42 fF & = = 9 J5). He
spent over ten years at KPMG's Hong Kong and Beijing offices, having engaged
in numerous auditing projects involving listed companies on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Yang graduated from the City University of Hong Kong in
November 1999 with a bachelor’'s degree in Business Administration
(Accountancy) and obtained his Master of Business Administration degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in November 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance with a view to assure the conduct of management of the
Company and protect the interests of all Shareholders. The Company is fully
aware that transparency and accountability in corporate governance are
crucially important to the Shareholders and the Board considers that sound
corporate governance can maximise the Shareholders’ interest.

The Company’s key corporate governance practices and activities during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are highlighted in this corporate governance
report which, together with this annual report, will be published on the
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of conduct of
corporate governance. The Company has applied the principles of the CG
Code to its corporate governance structure and practices as described in this
corporate governance report.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions as set out in the CG Code except for the deviation from Code
Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as described below.

Under Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Under the current organisation structure of the Group, the function
of chief executive officer is performed by Ms. Zhou Li. The Board is of the
opinion that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in
Ms. Zhou Li has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group
thus enabling more effective and efficient strategic planning for the Group.

Under this arrangement, the Board also believes that the balance of power and
authority will not be compromised and is adequately ensured by the existing
Board which comprises experienced and competent individuals with more
than one-third of the Board being independent non-executive directors.
Therefore, the Board considers that the deviation from Code Provision C.2.1 of
the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstances.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries with all the Directors, each of the
Directors confirmed that he/she had complied with the Model Code during
the Reporting Period.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information of the Company. No
incident of non-compliance of the above written guidelines by the relevant
employees was noted by the Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings in the
Company’s securities, the Company will notify its Directors and relevant
employees in advance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:

Chairman of the Board and Executive Director
Ms. Zhou Li (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Wenyi
Mr. Chen Xiang
Mr. Jia Bin

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Yong
Dr. Zhao Guoging
Prof. Fan Conglai

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management” on pages 16 to 22 of this annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and Code Provisions as set out in the CG Code. During the Reporting Period, to
the best knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied with all the
applicable Code Provisions set out in the CG Code, except for certain deviations
as specified with considered reasons for such deviations as explained below.

Under Code Provisions C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Since 29 March 2017, the Company has not separated the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company. Since 29 March 2017, Ms. Zhou has
been the chairman and also the chief executive officer of the Company and is
responsible for overseeing the operations of the Group. In view of the fact that
Ms. Zhou has been operating and managing the Group since 2016, the Board
believes that it is in the best interests of the Group to have Ms. Zhou taking up
both roles for effective management and business development. The Board
also believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer
in the same person has the benefit of ensuring the consistent leadership within
the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning
for the Group. Although Ms. Zhou performs both roles of chairman and chief
executive officer, the division of responsibilities between the two roles is clearly
established. While the chairman provides leadership for the Board by ensuring
the board works efficiently and discharges her responsibilities in time, and is
responsible for supervising the functions and performance of the Board, the
chief executive officer is responsible for the management of the Group's
business. The Board considers that the balance of power and authority for the
present arrangement will not be impaired given the appropriate delegation of
the power of the Board to the senior management of the Company for the
day-to-day management of the Group, and the effective functions of the
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of the
Board such that no one individual has unfettered power of decisions. This
structure will also enable the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly and effectively. The Board will continue to review and consider
splitting the roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company at a time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into account
the circumstances of the Group as a whole.

With the support of executive Directors and the company secretary, the
chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at the Board meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a
timely manner.
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Independent Non-executive Director

The Board at all times during the Reporting Period met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Each of the three independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence and the Company considers each of them to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The chairman of the Board holds meetings with independent
non-executive Directors without executive Directors present at least once a
year.

Directors’ Re-election

Code Provision B.2.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every director shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to retirement by rotation at least every
three years.

Each of the Directors is appointed for a specific term of three years and is
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) requires that at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if the number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board
and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. The Board take decisions objectively in the interests
of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a

wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
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All Directors shall have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company as well as the services and advice from the company secretary and
senior management. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances for discharging their duties to
the Company at the Company’s expense. The Board and each Director shall
have a separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respective of legal
action against its Directors.

During the Reporting Period, in addition to determining the policy for
corporate governance of the Company, the Board also performed the following
duties in relation to corporate governance:

(@) developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b)  reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c  reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) developed, reviewed and monitored the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and directors; and

(e)  reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and the relevant disclosure in this corporate governance report.

To ensure that independent views and input are available to the Board, the
Company has established mechanisms including (i) strengthening the
independent non-executive Directors’ recruitment process to include criteria
such as each candidates’ available time commitments and qualification; (ii)
reviewing the number of independent non-executive Directors on an annual
basis; (iii) performing additional assessment or evaluation of independent non-
executive Directors’ contribution; and (iv) engage external independent
professional advisors to assist performance of directors’ duties. The Board
reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the above mechanisms on an
annual basis.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant operational
matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approvals has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by
the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of Director's responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

In accordance with Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code with regards to
continuous professional development, Directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be
arranged and reading material on relevant topics will be issued to Directors
where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.
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During the Reporting Period, each individual Director has attended training KRB &EHIE > S @R ESCLX ME L HEE

courses or workshops or reading materials relevant to his/her professional and/ /8% R B = HERI 015 3 ZR AR sk TR ek
or duties as Director. The Company has maintained a training record in orderto @ &%} o KR BITFEEIFEEE A B & B0 8%
assist the Directors to record the training that they have undertaken. A S MAEEH - Bk -

summary is as follows:

Attending in

Reading house training
materials relating to the
regarding ongoing
regulatory compliance
updates and obligations,
corporate governance and
governance other related
matters topics
HEER 2mEH

EEENMK FESHRER -
EEERBR ERREMEH

Name of Directors EENE HaER FEM R
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Zhou Li AR+ 4 v
Ms. Fan Wenyi SBX it 4 4
Mr. Chen Xiang BRI & v v
Mr. Jia Bin BEERE

(appointed with effect from 1 December 2021) (B2021F 12 A1 HEEZ(F) 4 4
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Mr. Li Yong TEEE 4 v
Dr. Zhao Guoging HEEEL 4 v
Mr. Deng Shaochao B ARER S A4

(resigned with effect from 4 June 2021) (& 202146 H4HEEE) 4 4
Prof. Fan Conglai SEAE R

(appointed with effect from 4 June 2021) (B2021F6H4HEEZE) 4 4
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BOARD MEETING

The Board intends to hold Board meetings regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days will be
given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings.

For other Board meetings, reasonable notice will generally be given. All Board
committee meetings require a notice of at least seven (7) days to be given,
unless such notification is waived by all members of the respective Board
committees. The agenda and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to
the Directors or Board committee members at least three days before the
meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the meetings. When Directors or Board committee
members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters
to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to the
chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are recorded in
sufficient details to include the matters considered by the Board and the Board
committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the
Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee meeting
are sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date
on which the meeting is held.
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Attendance Records LR

The following is the attendance record of the Directors at Board and A TNAZEERNREHEBTHNESSENEES
committee meetings, and general meetings held during the Reporting Period: @EARKRE R FELEE

Attendance/Number of Meetings in 2021
2021 FHERY Y

Annual

Audit Nomination Remuneration General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

Name of Director EEnE Exe ERZET RREEE FHZEE KRREFAS

Ms. Zhou Li AFz+ 4/4 - 2/2 2/2 1

Ms. Fan Wenyi BIMET 44 . ] ] "

M. Chen Xiang Bk m ; : ; W

Mr. Jia Bin (Note 1) SELE(ME1) - - - - -

Mr. Li Yong FEESE 4/4 22 22 2/2 1/1

Dr. Zhao Guoging HEEELT 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1

Mr. Deng Shaochao (Note 2) HARRBIL L (Hat2) 3/3 11 22 22 N

Prof. Fan Conglai (Note 3) SERREIR (F7t 3) /1 /1 - - -
Note 1:  Mr. Jia Bin was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 1 December 2021. Biati: BRASEEZEIWNTES B2021F 12718

AR

Note2:  Mr. Deng Shaochao resigned as an independent non-executive director with effect from 4 ffaF2 : BBABEE BT B IENITES - A2021F6 A4
June 2021. B ©

Note3:  Prof. Fan Conglai was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect — ffz#3 : SEERBIREZEABLIFNTES - B2021F6

from 4 June 2021. BaBRBAR -
None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate Director. xRS eHMEBEESER -
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “‘Remuneration
Committee’) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee’), for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on
the Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are independent non-
executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under the section “Corporate Information” on page 2 of
this annual report.

Audit Committee

On 22 June 2016, the Company established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C.4 and paragraph D.3 of the CG Code. In the beginning of the
Reporting Period, the Audit Committee consisted of three members, including
Dr. Zhao Guoging, Mr. Li Yong and Mr. Deng Shaochao. Mr. Deng Shaochao
retired on 4 June 2021 and was replaced by Prof. Fan Conglai. All members of
the Audit Committee are independent non-executive Directors. The chairman
of the Audit Committee is Dr. Zhao Guoging, who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal control
procedures and risk management system, audit plan and relationship with
external auditor, and arrangements to enable employees of the Company to
raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company. The Audit
Committee holds at least two meetings per year.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held two meetings and
reviewed the Group's financial result for the year ended 31 December 2021,
reviewed the internal control and risk management systems of the Group,
reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function, oversaw
the audit process and make recommendation on the re-appointment of the
external auditors, reviewed the interim financial results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 and performed its other duties under the CG
Code.
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Nomination Committee

On 22 June 2016, the Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the CG Code. In
the beginning of the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee consisted
of four members, comprising Ms. Zhou Li, Mr. Li Yong, Mr. Deng Shaochao and
Dr. Zhao Guoqing. Mr. Deng Shaochao retired on 4 June 2021 and was
replaced by Prof. Fan Conglai. Besides Ms. Zhou Li who is an executive Director,
all other members of the Nomination Committee are independent non-
executive Directors. The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Ms. Zhou
Li. The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning of Directors, in particular
the chairman and the chief executive and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take
into account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy adopted by
the Company (as defined below in the section headed “Board Diversity Policy”),
including but not limited to educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board
for adoption. In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s qualifications,
experience, independence and other relevant criteria necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendations to the Board.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to review the structure,
size and diversity of the Board and the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and to consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors
standing for election at annual general meetings.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one meeting
and reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board, the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors and the Company’s Board Diversity
Policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing the
said policy. The Nomination Committee has disclosed the nomination policy in
relation to the nomination of directors on the Company’s website.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 22 June 2016 with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the CG Code. In
the beginning of the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee consisted
of four members, comprising Mr. Li Yong, Ms. Zhou Li, Dr. Zhao Guoging and
Mr. Deng Shaochao. Besides Ms. Zhou Li who is an executive Director, all other
members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee was Mr. Li Yong. Mr.
Deng Shaochao retired on 4 June 2021 and Prof. Fan Conglai joined the
Remuneration Committee on 4 June 2021. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management and establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her close associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company, and the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
senior management and other related matters.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
and determined the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors,
assessed performance of executive Directors, approved the terms of executive
Directors’ contracts and reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
regarding the remuneration of the Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model under E.1.2(c)(ii), under
which it makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

On 22 June 2016, the Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy ("“Board
Diversity Policy”). Under the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination
Committee will monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and
give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy when identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board. The Board
regularly reviews the Board Diversity Policy and would make appropriate
revisions to ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy.
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The Board’s composition as at the date of this report under diversified
perspectives is summarised as follows:

s

BE - ZnbEE TESSAME

O O

~

Education background (up to): Doctorate
degrees 2 Directors, Master degrees 2

Directors, Bachelor degrees 1 Director, Other 2

Directors
#HEER (&S T%:tfjuz%§$ 18
TR 22ES  BLBN1BES  Hib
QEES

~

Designation: 4 executive Directors and 3
independent non-executive Directors

Gender: 5 male Directors vs. 2 female Director

Bk ABATEERIBEUIFRITES
MRl sBREMEEH 2 RLNES

J

(between 31 and 40),
(between 51 and 60)
EEAC

Age group (years old): 2
4 (between 41 and 50); 1

FEAARI(FR) 1 28 (N T31240)

F41Z50) : 1% (NMF51E60)

J

& Directorship with the Company (years of

service): 2 Directors (0 to 2 years), 3 Directors (2
to 5 years), 2 Director (6 to 10 years)
ARRERBU(RBEFY)  22EE00
F2F) 3REFQESF) 2BEZE(6
E105)

J

The Board achieved gender diversity as it currently has two female executive
Directors. The Board will maintain one or more female Director to be a member
of the Board. To develop a pipeline of potential successors to the Board to
achieve gender diversity, the Company has adopted relevant hiring policies for
considering candidates of senior management positions which would take into
account diversity perspectives including gender diversity.

As at 31 December 2021, the ratio of male and female in the workforce
(including the senior management) is 59% and 41%, respectively.

As such, the Company’s workforce (including the senior management) has
achieved gender diversity between males and females. The Company would
continue to take into account of diversity perspectives including gender
diversity in its hiring.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the Reporting Period.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information
as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of
the financial and other information put before them for approval. The
management provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on the
Company's performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 117 to 124 of this annual report.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services for the Reporting Period is as follows:

S B R Y FAT

SEENTEREARR RS MEOM B REH
Bff-

EEERNEFSRENALER  UEEFS
AT SR 2 LA 2 B IS R B A B RHE L AE AT
%o BEEEEARNEEEMAKBRARFN
= MR MFIREREZFHER -

EERABEM AT HARBFRHELERNENX
BEAREZEZMRBERTEZ EREATHEA

RABBY HEMERERAERERNHES
EZBRENAEREINT7TE124BB X
SRR -

3 GRS
RiE HENRBIRGE AR AIMBZEEE
MNHEMNBESRNT

Fees paid/payable

gt ENER

RMB'000

Services rendered R IRTS ARETF T
Audit services ZERHS 1,950
Non-audit services IERZE RIS 180

For the Reporting Period, the audit services fees paid or payable to Mazars CPA
Limited was RMB1,950,000.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledge that it is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee, who oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

Main features of the risk management and internal control systems

The risk management framework of the Group and main responsibilities of the
members in the framework are described as follows:

+Board
=y

Audit Committee
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Member Main Responsibilities

RE FTEBE

The Board Set up goals for risk management strategy, assess and determine the nature and extent of risk
4y acceptable to achieve the strategy goals;

Audit Committee
EBEzEaE

FUREREREKEARE AERETEREKEERIUAZNRAREERIZE
Establish and maintain a proper and effective risk management and internal control systems;
and

BYNEEEEBRNRRERRAIZESHE &

Review the effectlveness of the risk management and internal control systems annually.

SEEERREERABENFIENERIE

Assist the Board in overseeing the risk level and the design and performance of the risk
management and internal control systems;

19 BhEE 5 & BE B R B 7k T LA R Ja e 8 B T PR D2 o 6 ) Rt SRR A TR

Discuss the risk management and internal control systems with the management, ensure the
management has fulfilled its responsibility of establishing effective systems;

HERE S wmEREIERAEGGE  BREEECBITREEZAUNHE
Ensure that the internal audit function has sufficient resources for operation and has a proper
position, review and supervise its performance;
BRABEABEAERENEREEIEENMA - FEEREEHN

Keep updated of various major risks confronted by the Group and the risk management status,
make decisions for effective risk control;

BHASEREENSAEARR KERERANR - ELBREREHERE

Report the risk status of the Group and issues to be concerned or improved to the Board on a
regular basis;

THREFEREASENRRRAREFRIHTENME

Facilitate risk management and assessment, regularly appoint relevant accountable persons to
implement risk assessment;

R R EE ML - ERREMEBAE AETRRGTE

Organise and promote the establishment of the risk management system at the group level;
HEEDEEERMNEREIRERER

Review material risk assessment report and various risk management reports;
ELEEANARFERERSERARERRS

Review major risk management measures, rectify and deal with the decisions made or actions
adopted by relevant organizations or individuals beyond the risk management system;
EEERRMEIRIE - A F RERIEH FE AR Sk AP E B TR 82 (R LA SMNERER A A R
H1TE
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Member

K&

Main Responsibilities

EERE

Management of
subsidiaries

B R EIEE

Internal audit
department

REE LN

Engage relevant persons to organise and coordinate various departments and projects to carry

out identification and assessment of significant risks at the group level, summarise and analyse

such information, submit risk assessment and various risk management reports; and

*?E*ﬁ‘ﬁﬁj\ia%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂ ﬁBF'EJ&IE B9 EEENEKRRERETHERRTE  WE
AEE  EXERTERSERBREERS &

Carry out risk management for other major issues.

HHEHMERRBETRARER -

Ensure that the subsidiaries carry out the risk assessment in compliance with the risk assessment
manual formulated by the Group;

FREAR P88 1 R) 4% FR AN 55 [ 11 52 B9 R\ B 2T T T 1T RS AT A

Review and approve the risk assessment results of the subsidiaries in respect of the business;
FRI LA B A R B AR AR

Ensure that the subsidiaries |mp|ement effective risk management;

BRNMB QR ERE M ERE R

Monitor the principal business risks confronted by the subsidiaries and the effectiveness of
relevant risk management measures; and

BB A RERN EEEXBRAR MABREERERBERNARE &

Allocate resources such as fund and workforce to the subsidiaries for implementation of the risk
assessment projects.

ANBAREEBERERFGEENER WEE ANF-

Report directly to the Audit Committee, analyse and conduct independent assessment on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.
BEREAEZZESWME  HEARERERLAIZESHENFTD EARERIEEL ST K&
BT o
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The process used to identify, assess and management of principal risks

The risk management process of the Group is described as follows:

Risk Identification — identify the current risks confronted

Je2\ ez 28 ) EEGIIERE 0
Risk Analysis —
[\ 3 A HYBRERBEENAREETRR D

Risk Response —

JeR\ e e

Control Measures —

RRER - FEREEEAABNER
REENRBRERIRFIMAT

conduct analysis on the risk including the impact extent and possibility of occurrence

#r

choose a proper risk response method and develop a risk mitigation strategy

SEIREE R R 57 A T PR

HY SR B

propose up-to-date internal control measures and policy and process

2 Fic 930 5 10 PO BB 8 7 L BOR B T2
Risk Control — continuously monitor the risks identified and implement relevant internal control measures to
ensure the effective operation of the risk response strategy
JeR e 2 FHERRIE 35 R b B h AR e 8 R R

Risk Management Report —

action plan
b BRI E BERBRF GO EAREANER - HIE

The process used to review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and to resolve material internal control
defects:

The Group establishes a risk management information and communication
channel that is functional within the whole basic risk control procedure,
connects different levels in the reporting system and different departments
and operation units, so as to ensure timely, accurate and complete
communication of information, laying a solid foundation for the monitoring
and improvement of risk management.

Different departments and business units of the Group regularly inspect and
examine their own risk management process in order to locate the
shortcomings and remedy the situation if possible. Their inspection and
examination reports are delivered to the Group's risk management department
in time.

The internal audit department of the enterprise may regularly or irregularly
carry out supervision and evaluation in relevant departments and business
units to decide if they are capable of performing regular risk management tasks
and their related work performance. Internal control review of operational
cycles is conducted under rotational basis. Reports of supervision and
evaluation are delivered directly to the audit committee established by the
Board of Directors.
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The Board reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems annually and is of the view that (i) there was no material issue relating
to the Group's risk management and internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions of the
Group and considers these effective; and (i) that there were adequate staff
with appropriate and adequate qualifications and experience, resources for
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate
training programmes had been provided during the Reporting Period.

Internal audit function

The Group's internal audit function is performed by an internal audit team,
which reports directly to the Audit Committee. The procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information: The
Company has implemented proper procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. The Company has
established a policy with close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission, to ensure that
all the Group's stakeholders and the public are provided with appropriate
information relating to the Group in a timely and simultaneous manner.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yang Dong John ("Mr. Yang") has been serving as the company secretary
of the Company since 1 April 2019. Mr. Yang has also been acting as the chief
financial officer of the Company since 6 May 2020. During the Reporting Period,
Mr. Yang has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Details of the biography of Mr. Yang are set out in the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS” RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange
after each general meeting.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) and
Putting Forward Proposals

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:
Address:  2/F, No.1 Building Hampton By Hilton

No. 169 Yu Lin Road

Tianya District

Sanya, the Hainan Province

The PRC (For the attention of the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary)

Email: hailankonggu@hailanholdings.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company makes the best
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders. In this regard,
the Company established a Shareholders’ communication policy and review it
on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. The Board is committed in
providing clear and full performance information of the Group to Shareholders
through the publication of interim and annual reports. In addition to the
circulars, notices and financial reports sent to Shareholders, additional
information of the Group is also available to Shareholders on the website of the
Company.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting for which
at least 20 clear business days' notice is given. The chairman of the Board and
Directors are available to answer questions on the Group’s business at the
meeting. All resolutions at the general meeting are decided by a poll which is
conducted by the Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong.

The Group values feedbacks from Shareholders on its effort to promote
transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments and suggestions are
always welcomed.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful forum for
Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All Directors will make an
effort to attend. External auditor is also available at the annual general meeting
to address Shareholders’ queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to Shareholders’
approval, members of the independent Board committee will also make an
effort to address Shareholders’ queries.

After the Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders’ communication policy including steps taken at the annual
general meeting and the handling of queries received (if any) which were
conducted during the Reporting Period, the Shareholders’ communication
policy was found to be effective and adequate.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No amendments were made to the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association during the Reporting Period.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in investment holding, properties development and sales and rental
of developed properties. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 125 to 126 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend payment of final dividend to the Shareholders
for the Reporting Period.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant to Schedule 5
to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
comprising analysis of the Group performance during the year, a discussion on
the Group's future business development and a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, are set out in the sections “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”, from pages 5 to 15 of
this annual report. Discussions on the environmental policies and performance,
compliance by the Group with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group and the account of the key relationships of the
Group with its stakeholders are contained in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 70 to 116 of this annual report. These discussions
forms part of this Directors’ Report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining Shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at the annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 27 June 2022 to Thursday, 30 June 2022, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for attending and voting at the annual general meeting, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates should be
lodged for registration with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 24 June 2022.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Reporting Period are set out in the note 34(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company did not have any distributable reserves
available for distribution to Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the single largest supplier and the five largest suppliers for the
Group (exclusive of Danzhou Phase I) accounted for approximately 25.0% and
64.7% of our total purchases under our supply contracts respectively. The
percentage of revenue attributable to the Group's single largest customer and
five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the total revenue of the
Group respectively.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, save for Nanjing Huizhi
Construction Installation Engineering Co., Ltd. and Zhonghui (Jiangsu)
Decoration Park Engineering Co. Ltd. which are indirectly held as to 100% by
Mr. Yeung Man, a controlling Shareholder, being one of the five largest
suppliers for the Group, none of the Directors, their respective close associates
or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have any interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Zhou Li

Ms. Fan Wenyi

Mr. Chen Xiang

Mr. Jia Bin (appointed with effect from 1 December 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Yong

Dr. Zhao Guoging

Prof. Fan Conglai (appointed with effect from 4 June 2021)
Mr. Deng Shaochao (resigned with effect from 4 June 2021)

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Chen Xiang
and Mr. Li Yong will retire from their office at the annual general meeting,
being eligible, Mr. Chen Xiang and Mr. Li Yong will offer themselves for re-
election at the annual general meeting. In accordance with Article 112 of the
Articles of Association, Mr. Jia Bin, being appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment. Mr. Jia Bin will offer himself for
re-election at the annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out in the
section headed "Directors and Senior Management” on pages 16 to 22 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the Reporting Period was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or
debentures of the Group or any other body corporate; and none of the
Directors, or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Group, or had exercised any such right during
the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting has a
service contract that is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary pursuant to their
respective service agreements, which is determined with reference to their
responsibilities, experience, performance and the prevailing market conditions.
In addition, each of them is entitled to a bonus of such amount as the Board
may determine in respect of each complete financial year of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is entitled to a director’s fee
pursuant to their respective letters of appointment, which is determined with
reference to their responsibilities, experience, performance and the prevailing
market conditions. Save for director’s fee, each of the independent non-
executive Directors is not expected to receive any other remuneration for
holding his/her office as an independent non-executive Director.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of remuneration of the Directors during the Reporting Period are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Details of remuneration paid to members of the senior management by band ~ RIREEIR - ENSRETEEK S W H iR
for the Reporting Period is set out below: EESHFHBAT
Number of
individual(s)
Remuneration band N E A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 8 7L Z 1,500,000 8 7T
(equivalent to RMB829,101 to RMB1,243,650) (FHER AR 829,101 TTE AR 1,2436507T) 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 4 7T Z 2,000,000 7 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,243,651 to RMB1,658,200) (FHERAREE 1243651 T2 AREE 1,658,200 7T) -
INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE WL I T S 2 WA
DIRECTORS
The Company has received, from each of the three independent non-executive ~ ANARIEWE =BBIIFNTEETSBRE L
Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the T‘Efﬁ WEIBKEzERpEBIEHA 2
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive &% *ETJ%LFD%E WE 31316 - ARRIRRBAE
Directors to be independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. 3%43'5#%17%%@%?%4/\1

WA AT 20214 ) 47



Report of the Directors
EHE RS

POTENTIAL COMPETING BUSINESS

Set out below are details of certain businesses of Mr. Yeung Man, a controlling
Shareholder and an executive Director (disqualified on 18 December 2017)
which were not included into the Group as at the date of this report. For
further details, please refer to the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders — Excluded Businesses” in the Company’s prospectus dated 30
June 2016 (the "Prospectus”).

EXCLUDED HAINAN PROJECTS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Excluded Hainan Projects held by the
private group (being companies owned by Mr. Yeung Man apart from
members of our Group which are principally engaged in real estate
development, the “Private Group”) comprised two property development
projects in Wenchang and Haikou in the Hainan Province, details of which are
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set out below:

Location

b Bh

Description
i pul

Status as at 31 December 2021
72021512 A31 BHMRR

Wenchang Dongjiao
Coconut Forest

On 8 January 2010, Chung Wai Holding Company Limited
(“Chung Wai Holding"), and the People’s Government of
Wenchang entered into a co-operation framework agreement,
pursuant to which the People’s Government of Wenchang
agreed that, among others (i) all expenses and developmental
construction costs for the primary land development of the
land reclamation of 400 mu would be borne by Chung Wai
Holding, (ii) to establish a project company namely, Wenchang
City Construction Investment Company Limited which was
owned as to 40% by the People’s Government of Wenchang
and 60% by Chung Wai Holding (which was owned as to 30%,
40% and 30% by Chung Wai Holding, the People's Government
of Wenchang and Nanjing Yu Ming Hang respectively as at the
latest practicable date), and (iii) Wenchang City Construction
Investment Company Limited will be invited to participate in
the tendering for and the reclaimed land will be sold via tender,
auction, or listing-for-sale procedures with reference to the
agreed land reclamation cost and would be determined
between Chung Wai Holding and the People’s Government of
Wenchang. However, the artificial island of the project has not
been able to carry out tender, auction, or listing-for-sale
procedures.
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As at 31 December 2021, the artificial
island of the project was demolished
and it is no longer possible to achieve
the investment purpose of the project
company to acquire the land of the
project via tender, auction, or listing-
for-sale procedures. Chung Wai
(Hainan) and the project company are
seeking legal means to demand
compensation/indemnity from the
government and are prepared to take
measures to defend their rights and
interests against the government,
Wenchang Development Holdings (as
defined below) and other entities in
accordance with the law.
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Location

i 2

Description
Rt

Status as at 31 December 2021
7A2021F12 A31 BHMRR

In January 2020, the equity structure of the project company,
Wenchang Citi-Verdure Investment Company Limited (“Citi-
Verdure’), was as follows: Chung Wai (Hainan) Properties
Limited (“"Chung Wai (Hainan)"), Nanjing Yu Ming Hang
Investment Management Company Limited and Wenchang
City Construction Investment Company Limited (renamed as
Hainan Wenchang Development Holdings Group Co,, Ltd* (&
X BB RILREB AR A F) or "Wenchang Development
Holdings") held 30%, 30% and 40% interests, respectively.
Chung Wai (Hainan) and Citi-Verdure jointly filed a lawsuit
against Wenchang Development Holdings. The Haikou
Maritime Court considered it to be without jurisdiction over the
case after its acceptance on 8 January 2020, and transferred the
same to the Hainan First Intermediate People’s Court, which
also considered it to be without jurisdiction and reported the
case to the Hainan Provincial High Court. The Hainan Provincial
High Court designated the Haikou Maritime Court to have
jurisdiction. Chung Wai (Hainan) petitioned for RMB38 million
in liquidated damages from Wenchang Development Holdings.
The Haikou Maritime Court issued a judgment, being (2020)
Qiong 72 Min Cu No. 125 Judgment ((2020)38 725 47112555% #I
&), on 3 December 2020, rejecting the petition of Chung Wai
(Hainan). Chung Wai (Hainan) filed an appeal (Citi-Verdure was
listed as the third party in the second instance), and the Hainan
Provincial High Court rejected the appeal on 26 July 2021 and
upheld the original judgment.

On 25 October 2021, the Natural Resources and Planning
Administration of Wenchang City* (X & B R ERMEE
@) issued the Notice on the Implementation of Demolishing
the Avrtificial Island of Marine Leisure Resort Center in Dongjiao
Coconut Forest of Wenchang City (B85 X & T BB &g
ERBEBFOAIEEBIFHREEHZE) to Wenchang
Development Holdings, deciding to demolish the artificial
island of the project at the end of October 2021.

On 26 October 2021, Wenchang Development Holdings issued
the Letter of Cancellation of the Cooperation Agreement and
Related Supplementary Agreement for the Artificial Island of
Dongjiao, Wenchang City (BBREER X ETMRBALSIEE
& Vel RABRI T 7 %R 0Y EK) (Wenfa Control Letter [2021]
No. 719) (3XEEHE [K[2021]17195%) to Chung Wai (Hainan),
stating that due to the decision of the Natural Resources and
Planning Administration of Wenchang City* (X & B A &R
I EIR) to demolish the artificial island of the reclamation
project of marine leisure resort center in Dongjiao Coconut
Forest, which was a force majeure, the purpose of the
cooperation agreement between the parties was not able to
be achieved and it requested to cancel the contract. The
project company proposed to defend its legitimate rights and
interests through legal means.

i B A B W
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Location Description Status as at 31 December 2021
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Location
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Description
Rt

Status as at 31 December 2021
7A2021F12 A31 BHMRR

Gui Lin Yang Bin Hai
Tourism Area
in Haikou

RIBE O A
EEHNSE

On 9 March 2007, Haikou Bo Tai Long Property Development
Company Limited ("Haikou Bo Tai Long’) entered into a land
grant contract with the relevant competent authority for,
among other matters, acquisition of the land use rights in a
piece of land located in the west of Gui Lin Yang Bin Hai
Tourism Area (FEMF B FHREER ) with a site area of 642,350
sg.m. (“the land use right of Gui Lin Yang Bin Hai"). On 7
January 2008, Haikou Bo Tai Long obtained the construction
land planning permit (3 3% F b #3 &l 5T 7 %) for the said
piece of land. Such permit has expired and Haikou Bo Tai Long
has not filed any renewal application.
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On 31 December 2021, Bo Tai Long’s
administrative litigation on the land
compensation was initiated. On
20 October 2019, the Haikou
Intermediate Court supported Bo Tai
Long’s petition in the first instance
and ruled that the government shall
make a land compensation decision
within three months of the effective
date of the judgement. On 17 July
2020, the Provincial High Court
upheld the original judgment in the
second instance. After Bo Tai Long
applied to the Haikou Intermediate
Court for enforcement, the Haikou
Intermediate Court issued (2021)
Qiong 01 Zhi No. 1353 Enforcement
Judgement ((2021)380131135357CH,
1THTE £ )), ruling to close the case.
After Bo Tai Long was not satisfied
and filed an execution objection, the
Haikou Intermediate Court issued
(2021) Qiong 01 Zhi Yi No. 808
Enforcement Judgement ((2021) I8
01¥ 28085 ¥ 1T & E &)
rejecting Bo Tai Long's application for
execution objection. Bo Tai Long was
not satisfied and has applied to the
Provincial High Court for retrial and is
currently in the retrial process of the
execution objection.
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Location
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Description
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Status as at 31 December 2021
7A2021F12 A31 BHMRR

On 19 July 2007, Chung Wai (China) Properties Group Limited
("Chung Wai (China) Properties’) (as transferee), entered
into an agreement (the “equity transfer agreement’) with
the then equity holders of Haikou Bo Tai Long (as transferors),
all being independent third parties, for the acquisition of 60%
interests in Haikou Bo Tai Long at a consideration of
RMB179,210,000.

20077198 - RE(PE) EXEBARAQF ([H
H(HPER)EX]) ((FRAEA) BB NEREZ R RE
HEAMEREZEAN) (RHMEABIE=)HEREA
R 179,210,000 7T Y B8 /8 1 18 22 (2 1) 60% ¥ 25 7] 3L 1 %
(IREERERHZR])

On 27 October 2017, Haikou Land Bureau issued the Idle Land
Verification (& T #1785 &) to Haikou Bo Tai Long, and the
idling was caused by government reasons. On 7 November
2017, Haikou Land Bureau issued the Notice on the Availability
of the Cost of Obtaining the Land and Preliminary Reasonable
Investment of Related Materials (&8 74 £2 4 + 1 ER 15 A AN 7
AT ARG 321 A KB BB £ 938 40) to Haikou Bo Tai Long. On
19 December 2017, Haikou Land Bureau issued the Notice on
the Meeting concerning Recovery of the Land Use Right with a
Payment (AR BRAEKE L ERESZHNBEA) o
Haikou Bo Tai Long.

R2017510A27 8 - BOWELEREOERRETZ(A
ETHREE) RERBNTRABKEE - 120175 11
A78 - BOBLRAEOEREEL(ERERLBER
FRAMAT RS BRI E A 722017 F 12 4
198 - BOBELRAEOBREZEL(EREREERD
THfEREEERNBA)

On 22 March 2018, Haikou Land Bureau issued the Decision on
the Recovery of the State-owned Construction Land Use Right
by the People’s Government of Haikou (/& O A RETULE]
BHER A AEAREE) to Haikou Bo Tai Long.
201853 A28 - BABLTBAERNIEREREHCEOM
ARBTWEIEA 2R AMERERES)

On 30 July 2018, Haikou Bo Tai Long filed a lawsuit to the
Haikou Intermediate People’s Court, requesting the
cancellation of the No. 1 Land Recovery Decision (1 55 U i 7R
7€), and the Court accepted the case on the same day.

201857 A30R - BOBRERE DM RARERRE
REERRR » RASKIREH 1 SRR TE - AR B AL REIE -
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Location

i 2

Description
Rt

Status as at 31 December 2021
7A2021F12 A31 BHMRR

On 25 December 2018, the Haikou Intermediate People’s Court
made the first instance administrative judgment. Both Haikou
Bo Tai Long and the Haikou City Government appealed to the
Higher People’s Court of Hainan Province within the statutory
period. According to the judgment, the People’s Government
of Haikou shall make a land compensation decision within
three months of the effective date of the judgment.

20185 12 425 B » BAMHRBARERIEL —FITHH
R BOERRELEOMBNEETEHRAERGEE
RBRARERER L - 28O ARBNEAAS
HER=ME A AEL DI ERTE -

On 25 March 2019, both Haikou Bo Tai Long and the People’s
Government of Haikou appealed to the Higher People’s Court
of Hainan Province. On 5 May of that year, the appeal was
rejected by the administrative judgment and the original
judgment was upheld.

2019325 RBABRENREOTARBNREEE
BARANRERE LAF - EEF5 A5 BITERFADRE R L
o ERIRA o

i B A B W

20214
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Status as at 31 December 2021
7A20215F12 A31 BHMRR

In respect of Bo Tai Long's administrative litigation on the land
compensation, on 20 October 2019, the Haikou Intermediate
People’s Court supported Bo Tai Long's petition in the first
instance. According to the judgment, the government shall
make a land compensation decision within three months of
the effective date of the judgment. On 17 July 2020, the
Provincial Higher People’s Court upheld the original judgment
in the second instance. After Bo Tai Long applied to the Haikou
Intermediate Court for enforcement, the Haikou Intermediate
Court issued (2021) Qiong 01 Zhi No. 1353 Enforcement
Judgement ((2021) 32 01 %, 1353 R <17 & JE &£ )), ruling to
close the case. After Bo Tai Long was not satisfied and filed an
execution objection, the Haikou Intermediate Court issued
(2021) Qiong 01 Zhi Yi No. 808 Enforcement Judgement ((2021)
B0l 28089%< # 1T # E F )), rejecting Bo Tai Long’s
application for execution objection. Bo Tai Long was not
satisfied and has applied to the Provincial High Court for retrial
and is currently in the retrial process of the execution objection.
T ZRE T R EITIRGERRR - 2019F 10 H20 B8 A bt —
BEXRHERERRFF - AIRABFEARES=EA N
e T EORE - 202007 A7 AE R —BHERF R
# o ERERE OB RFNITE - BOPBIEL (2021)
BOTHI3S3RAMITRES) » BERELARY - BHRE
TR - REFITEZR - B0 R ELQ021)IBOTHE
808K HMITHEE) » BEIEREHNITRRERF - ERE
TR EERESRBFEER  BRERBHITERD
BEBREF -

In respect of administrative litigation for revoking the decision
on recovery of the land, the judgement by the Haikou
Intermediate People’s Court was to support the government’s
decision on recovery of the land, and the Provincial Higher
People’s Court upheld the original judgement. On 16 May
2019, Bo Tai Long applied to the Supreme People’s Court for a
retrial. On 30 December 2019, the Supreme People’s Court
issued a judgement rejecting Bo Tai Long’s application for
retrial.

BB LB + 3R TEATEGERFA - 8 O R B HUR S 35 BURF UL
HWRE @ &S HRERRH - 2019F5 A 16 BB HRE
ARIAREREEHE 2019F12A308 &R ARRK
BREREGE - BOIEREFERE -

54 HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Report of the Directors
EHE R

NON-TARGET CITIES PROJECTS JE H AR IE H
As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Private Group had six projects at non-target AN FE IR =2 AT EE - A EB B NIBIEBE
cities, further details of which are set out below: WTIEE - BE@EFFEEHIWT
Status as at Site area
Project Name Location Description 31 December 2021 Total GFA (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
R2021512 8318 BEEEE HEEE
HEER 2 A KRR (FHXK) (£5XK)
ZiQiYun Gu Nanjing, Jiangsu Residential and Fully completed and part of the 7283329 (including GFA of 7905196
Province commercial land for future development undeveloped land of project

calculating with a 30% plot ratio
for villa and the actual GFA of
which shall be subject to the
government's final approval)

ZRER TEARR EEREE BERHRT - $H 1M 7283329 (2738 B AFIE
RRERS LR E 3t AR | B ) 30% AR
R RERER MAWE
RRERESSRNREILE)
Xin Gang Financial Centre  Nanjing, Jiangsu Commercial, office Fully completed 134,7654 245139
Province and guesthouses
FELEAL IHEER BE BYERESE ERERI
Bo En Garden Nanjing, Jiangsu Residential and Partly completed and partly 1,046,040.5 641,7288
Province commercial under development
BRIEE IHEER FEREX BABRT - BHEEF
CuiPing Cheng Yuan Nanjing, Jiangsu Residential and Partly completed and 549,1359 2719925
Province commercial partly under development
R IHERR TEREE BATKRT - BHEEF
Tuo Le Jia Nanjing, Jiangsu Residential and Fully completed 7479518 435,199.7
Province commercial
4w IHEER EEHEES ERHRT
Bao Tang Fu Nanjing, Jiangsu Residential and Under development 68,7366 33,360.1
Province commercial
BRM IHEER FEREE ERP

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had any direct or indirect & FXFTIEEI  RNMEHR - MEEEH
interest in a business which competed or might compete with the business of 2 8k [ #2 7 B2 7N 62 B 3£ #4517 12 55 6 5k A] BETREAE
the Group as required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules for 33 R EF P A BRI EMHBIE 810155
the Reporting Period. B o
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company of his/its
compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided to the Company
under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined in the Prospectus). The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance
and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition
have been complied with by the controlling Shareholders during the period
commencing from the Deed of Non-Competition and up to 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
report, there were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at
31 December 2021 or at any time during the Reporting Period.

Save as disclosed, there was no contract of significance between the Company
or one of its subsidiaries on the one hand, and a controlling Shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries on the other, subsisting during or as at the end of the
Reporting Period.

Save as disclosed, there was also no other contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during or as at the end of the same
period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto subject
to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Such
provision was in force during the Reporting Period and remained in force as at
the date of this report. The Company has also arranged appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance for the Directors and officers of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As of 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code") were as follows:

(A) Interest in Shares of the Company

T b 1 AT EON B R A B AR B
T B HERE 2 B 2 SRS

R2021F 128318 ARBEEREETH
ABRARB REFEMBEEZE (TERES
REAE O ([RHFERIBEMRG ) FEXVEL) 2F
A%ty MBI SREREB T - A LN A
RARBESMAERAIEI2RETFELZ
BB LB TAESETESRZIN
EAESF R ([HE2E<FRI ) BRI AN A F) LA FT
2R ABNT

(A) A2 W) i e o 2

Number of Approximate
Shares held/ shareholding

Name of Director Capacity Position (Long/Short) interested in percentage
BB BEER MR
EEnA 54 B (HR%KR) HRMD B E Bat
Ms. Zhou Li Interest of spouse (Note 1) Long 225,000,000 75%
Shares
JEFI £ FoiBteam (Mat 1) e 225,000,000
hyien)
Notes: Hiat -

M 225,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Zhong Jia (International) Investment
Construction Company Limited (“Zhong Jia (International)’) and Zhong Ze
(International) Investment Limited ("Zhong Ze (International)’) as to 224,325,000
shares and 675,000 shares, respectively. Mr. Yeung Man (“Mr. Yeung") beneficially
owns 100% of the issued share capital of Zhong Jia (International) and Zhong Ze
(International) and is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares held by
Zhong Jia (International) and Zhong Ze (International) for the purposes of the SFO.
Mr. Yeung and Ms. Zhou Li have declared that they cohabit as spouses. Accordingly,
Ms. Zhou Li is deemed, or taken to be, interested in the shares in which Mr. Yeung is
interested for the purpose of the SFO.

2) As of the date of this report, the total number of issued shares of the Company was
300,000,000.

m 7R &) 225,000,000 B B A5 0 BB A 3R (BIRR)
BEREBARAR(HEER) ) RFEE
BOREARAR(HEEE) ) HAIEHE
224,325,000 1% }%.675,000 4% ° 15 & 5t £ ([ 5%
£ ) EREERE (BR) RHEZ (B 100%
BEITRA - i EFRAEEAmE &
WAR B & ER 32 (BIRR ) K02 (BIRR)
RANMAERDTEEER - B RER
ZLHRBRE GO - Et - 3hEH R
EEFIME - AL WIS B E ERS
SHERTEANRNDP RS -

@ RAZREEH ARFDHTEOAEAE
300,000,000 B °
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(B) Long Position in the Shares of Associated Corporation

(i) Long position in Zhong Jia (International) and Zhong Ze

(B) 7 R 6k 7 L P A o B e AT
i) RAEZ(ER)RPEEER BT

(International) B
Number and
Name of classof  Approximate
Director or Name of associated Position securities held/  shareholding
Chief Executive corporation Capital (Long/Short) interested in percentage
BE/BE
BEETHR 2 BRNES BA R
wREA HEEZE AR 54 (& %R) YA RER Bk
Ms. Zhou Li Zhong Jia (International) Interest of spouse Long 1 100%
(Note 1) ordinary share
BFI2Z+ 5= (BRR) ot (frat 1) "E 1L AR
Zhong Ze (International) Interest of spouse Long 7,000 100%
(Note 1) ordinary shares
O (BIRR) Aot (Hrat 1) HE 7000 E R
Note: k=3
0] Mr. Yeung owns 100% interest in Zhong Jia (International) and Zhong Ze 0] BhEEHRET = (BR) k2 (ER)
(International). Mr. Yeung and Ms. Zhou Li have declared that they cohabit as 100% BV RE R © 15 % 4 R AFI X+ W iE
spouses. Accordingly, Ms. Zhou Li is deemed, or taken to be, interested in the FE MRS - Bt - BEHFLBHE
Shares of Zhong Jia (International) and Zhong Ze (International) in which Mr. GHImE - AT LHRAIEEE
Yeung is interested for the purpose of the SFO. PSR SR P 5 (BER) R
2 (BB BRI R A 4 -
Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and & iXﬁEX%M\ 202112 A31H AR
chief executive of the Company and their respective close associates had any ~ FIEE » FSTHAEREREBHNERHE A

interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware as of 31 December 2021, the following persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

Bl W N /A ) NI R DR
B,/ BIRA

TEEFTAN > 2021128318 » LA L(R
RNAEBHESTHRABRIN RIBEESF L
B IR B ZE 336 K ZBR AR E R AZ R MAR
RRE R SRR (P HE B S A B

Number

and class of Approximate

Name of Substantial Position securities held/ shareholding

Shareholder Nature of interest (Long/Short) interested in percentage
¥EBE

EENES BEFRAQ

FTERRER BEMtE B (R RR) BERER BO

Zhong Jia Beneficial owner Long 224,325,000 74.78%
(International) Shares
5 (BRR) BEEEBA HE 224,325,000
en)

Mr. Yeung Interest of a controlled Long 224,325,000 74.78%
corporation (Note) Shares
BEE Ry EEER (M) "R 224,325,000
yen)

Note: BfsE -

224,325,000 shares of the Company are held by Zhong Jia (International). Mr. Yeung beneficially owns
100% of the issued share capital of Zhong Jia (International) and is deemed, or taken to be, interested
in all the shares held by Zhong Jia (International) for the purposes of the SFO. Mr. Yeung is the sole
director of Zhong Jia (International).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors are not aware
of any person who had an interest or short position in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company which would require to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

ARAE 224325000 R DR 5 (BIBR) 58 - B E A B
a5 (B 2 (BEE)100% 2 BITRA - MEEH
REIBEOIME - R A EER R = (BEE)FER
FiBRMO T AR - BAE A R (BB ME—2H -

B EXEEI - R2021F128318 EE
WARRER B IRIEE S R E GG EXVERE 2
R3DEEABRAARATNBEN D HAD TR
BB S RS IE0I5E 336 1§58 AR E R & L B
AR B RAEER D EEERSAE
AL ©
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions”, related party transactions of our Group
that did not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules made during the Reporting
Period were set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, our Group had the following connected

R 6 7 52

RIFERZRFEBERS | —BARES

- AERER R E B

AR EL B TR LR Al

FUABBETHNHERSAFERERZHNH
BT RXSER A M IBRARMEE32

R 752 T D A A I 2

A-_A
\

/J

RBELRRE - AEEEATHERS - HFE

transactions, details of which are disclosed in compliance with the  J31R3E FHREBIFE HASZ IR TEIRE -
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The transaction amount of the continuing connected transactions of the  ANEERREEAMIFERELT SN 5 S EEE
Group for the Reporting Period is set out below: FgR
Transaction
Amount for Year
ended
Connected Person Nature of Transaction 31 December 2021
Bz
2021%12H31H
BEAL REME LEEXSHE
RMB'000
ARET T
Non-exempt continuing connected transactions
HHRIFEEERS
Nanjing Huizhi Construction Installation Engineering Construction Cooperation 53411
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Framework Agreement
HARRERRALTETRERAT (MaF1) IEEIEEESR D
Zhonghui (Jiangsu) Decoration Park Engineering Co., Ltd. Construction Cooperation 52,714
(Note 2) Framework Agreement
PEOLH) EMEMRTRBR AR (ME2) TR IEEERTZ
Nanjing Hailan Huiyuan Property Service Property Management Service 3,456
Co., Ltd. (Note 3) Framework Agreement
AR EEERMERBERAE (A 3) W E IR R ISAE LR 1 ok
109,581
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Notes:

Nanjing Huizhi Construction Installation Engineering Company Limited (5 R 228 L L 5
T2 ABR72AA]) (‘Nanjing Huizhi’), a company established in the PRC with limited liability
which is indirectly held as to 100% by Mr. Yeung Man, a controlling Shareholder.

On 8 April 2016, Nanjing Huizhi entered into a framework construction services agreement
(the “Construction Cooperation Framework Agreement’) with the Company and its
subsidiaries, Sanya Fenghuang Xincheng, Sanya Fenghuang Shuiyun, Hainan Nanhai Xiang
Long and Danzhou Shuang Lian (the “Relevant Parties’) effective from the Listing Date up
to 31 December 2018.

Under the Construction Cooperation Framework Agreement, Nanjing Huizhi has agreed,
where it is selected following the relevant tender processes, to provide the construction
services to the Group according to the construction contracts entered into between Nanjing
Huizhi and the Group from time to time. The construction fee would be specified in the
construction contracts to be entered into between Nanjing Huizhi and the Group from time
to time. The Construction Cooperation Framework Agreement has expired on 31 December
2018.

On 25 January 2019, the Relevant Parties have agreed to continue with the arrangement
under the Construction Cooperation Framework Agreement after the expiry of its term upon
similar terms and/or covering similar scope of services as in the Construction Cooperation
Framework Agreement by entering into of the new construction cooperation framework
agreement entered into among the Relevant Parties (2019 Renewal Framework
Agreement’), of which it extends the Construction Cooperation Framework Agreement for
three financial years commencing from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021.

The annual caps for the transactions under the 2019 Renewal Framework Agreement for each
of the three years ending 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 will be approximately
RMB279,351,000, RMB279,889,000 and RMB260,814,000, respectively. For details of these
transactions, please refer to the announcement and circular of the Company dated 25
January 2019 and 26 March 2019, respectively.

Due to plans of disposal of Nanjing Huizhi by Mr. Yeung, a controlling Shareholder, to
independent third parties as part of consolidation and restructuring of the companies
indirectly owned by, Mr. Yeung, the parties to the 2019 Renewal Framework Agreement, as
well as Zhonghui (Jiangsu)(as defined below) and Nanjing Zhonghui (as defined below)
entered into the supplemental agreement to the 2019 Renewal Framework Agreement
(together, the “Revised Framework Agreement’) on 28 October 2020 which transferred
the rights and obligations of Nanjing Huizhi under the 2019 Renewal Framework Agreement
to Zhonghui (Jiangsu) and Nanjing Zhonghui for providing construction services to the
Group.

Pursuant to the Revised Framework Agreement, Nanjing Huizhi's rights and obligations have
been transferred to Zhonghui (Jiangsu) and Nanjing Zhonghui after the effective date of the
Supplemental Agreement, but no change is to be made to other terms of the 2019 Renewal
Framework Agreement including the date of termination of the agreements and the existing
annual caps in respect of the transactions contemplated under the Revised Framework
Agreement. For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8
June 2021.

et -

m

FAREERETEIRARAR((EREE) A —
BEFEKXIMNERETAR @ AERBRRGHE
A R HEEFEE 100% ©

MR20165F4 A8H  MREEEANT REKMEBAF
(ZERBEFH - —mREKE - /5T e RE
MEERE) (5iT8 A [AABRTHAN )Ty —HIEL IR
MIRGHE( IREISERELHE]) BLW
AHARE AR - HE20185 12831 A1k -

BERZIBEIAFERGE BRESAE &
CRBERBEREFARE BRESEREERS
ETRFRINEEAR  AANEERERERS -
BEBARKEERBEUERKBETR LNRES
Hp5IEE - TR TAEERBHEDN2018F 128
31 AEm e

MR2019F 1 25 - TR I AEIERBZERER
FTRFEREBEREEEEBEMEAETA T AT L8
TRETAEERGE([2019FEJEELHE]) %
BIIEM LA FIERBEAUER R, SonE B
RS EEBETREISEERBRE T 2RH -
IERB2019F1 A1ARE2021F12A3181E=
B B FE R T2 T & EIESR R -

2019 F BEER B HEZT 20194 - 20204 K 2021 FF
NAJNALE=AFEEFHRSHFE LRED I
B AR#279351,0007 « A R # 279,889,000 7T K2 A
R#2608140007C - AZEXR HHFIE 52 H
ANATFHBED B A201951 8258 K% 201993 26
AMAERIBH -

MR ERRREG L ETERBYE = HERARE
B ERGLEMERBORAINEAS REAN —
5  2019F BEERGHRRFTL T ARFECIE)
(ERR T RERPERGERR TR 20204 10
A28 BRI 2019 EEIEE MR 7 ik (SR8
BRTRERHR])  BEREER 2019FEEEZRR
HETHRAREAEEEPECLH) RERAPE -
VAR A S BRI SRR 7 ©

BREIETIER G MR ESWEFIREETRME
FpRESAREEEREFR(IH) RERPE -
2019 F BEIELR HEM M G (BIERIEHER
) RESIETIER B R IE THRETTRSNBEAFE L
RITEZE - BREE—PFHE BF2HALTBEH
2021 F6 ASHMAE ©
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On 28 October 2020, Zhonghui (Jiangsu) Decoration Park Engineering Co,, Ltd* (7 & (JT &)
£ E M T2 B R 2 7)) (‘Zhonghui (Jiangsu)’) and Nanjing Zhonghui Construction
Engineering Co,, Ltd.* (B R B2 22 T2 5 R 2 7)) (‘Nanjing Zhonghui Construction”),
both companies established in the PRC with limited liability which are indirectly held as to
100% by Mr. Yeung Man, a controlling Shareholder, entered into the supplemental agreement
(the "Supplemental Framework Agreement”) to the 2019 Renewal Framework Agreement
with Nanjing Huizhi and the Relevant Parties. Under the 2019 Renewal Framework Agreement
(as amended by the Supplemental Framework Agreement), Zhonghui (Jiangsu) and Nanjing
Zhonghui Construction have agreed to replace Nanjing Huizhi to provide construction
services to the Group according to the construction contracts entered into between
Zhonghui (Jiangsu) and Nanjing Zhonghui Construction and the Group from time to time.
The construction fee would be specified in the construction contracts to be entered into
between Zhonghui (Jiangsu) or Nanjing Zhonghui Construction and the Group from time to
time. The 2019 Renewal Framework Agreement (as amended by the Supplemental
Framework Agreement) is effective from 28 October 2020 and will expire on 31 December
2021. The annual caps for the transactions under the Supplemental Framework Agreement
for each of the three years ending 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 will be approximately
RMB279,351,000, RMB279,889,000 and RMB260,814,000, respectively.

On 1 April 2021, a company owned by Mr. Yeung, carried out the disposal of the entire
shareholding interests in Chung Wai (International) Construction Group Company Limited (|
B (ERR) 2R EE AR A F]), which was the sole shareholder of Chung Wai (Hong Kong)
Construction Company Limited (4 & (&%) &% & IR 2 7]), by a company owned as to
100% by Mr. Yeung, to an independent third party of the Company owned by Mr. Shao Jiajun
(BPRBEEA).

Then on 2 June 2021, Zhonghui (Jiangsu) underwent a capital reduction which reduced the
equity interest of Rongquan (Nanjing) Property Development Co,, Ltd. (¥4 5% (F8 ) /B o EE
B PR A A)) (‘'Rongquan Nanjing’) in Zhonghui (Jiangsu) from 51.79% to 28%. Rongquan
Nanjing is indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Yeung. The capital reduction was completed on 8
June 2021. As a result of the disposal in Chung Wai International and the capital reduction of
Zhonghui Jiangsu, Mr. Yeung controls the exercise of less than 30% of the voting power in
general meetings of Zhonghui (Jiangsu) and Nanjing Zhonghui. As such, Zhonghui (Jiangsu)
and Nanjing Zhonghui ceased to be associates of Mr. Yeung and connected persons of the
Company. Furthermore, the continuing connected transaction under the Revised Framework
Agreement ceased to be a continuing connected transaction of the Company.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 8 June 2021
and 11 June 2021.

On 1 June 2021, each of Danzhou Shuanglian, Nanjing Hailan Haoyue Zhiye Co,, Ltd. (‘Nanjing
Hailan Haoyue") and Zhanjiang Hailan Zhiye Co, Ltd. ("Zhanjiang Hailan Zhiye") entered
into a property management service agreement (together the "“Property Management
Service Agreements’) with Nanjing Hailan Huiyuan (“Nanjing Hailan Huiyuan”), a
connected person, pursuant to which Nanjing Hailan Huiyuan, or its local branch company,
will provide property management services to three sales centres of the Company for 12, 6
and 12 months, for a consideration of RMB2,749,000, RMB837,000 and RMB1,868,000
respectively. Nanjing Hailan Huiyuan is owned as to 60% by Shanghai Tailaishi Construction
Technology Co, Ltd. and 40% by Mr. Zhang Jianing. Shanghai Tailaishi's ultimate beneficial
owners include Mr. Yeung Man, a controlling Shareholder, and Mr. Zhang Jianing. The scope
of property management services under the Property Management Service Agreements
include (1) providing property management service at the sales centre including keeping the
place in order, providing visitor services, cleaning the sales centre, providing private banquet
staff at the sales centre (such as chef and assistants), providing information to home buyers
and cooperating with marketing events organized by the Group; (2) selecting and assigning
property service and management personnel in accordance with the requirements of the
Group; and (3) providing uniforms and access badges to personnel for working at the sales
centre.
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The actual transaction amount for each of Danzhou Shuanglian, Nanjing Hailan Haoyue and
Zhanjiang Hailan Zhiye under the Property Management Service Agreements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 since 1 June 2021 was approximately RMB1,424,000, RMB960,000
and RMB1,072,000 respectively while the actual transaction amount before 1 June 2021 was
approximately RMB917,000, RMB698,000 and RMB778,000 respectively, which did not exceed
the annual caps of RMB2.8 million, RMB1.68 million and RMB2.0 million, respectively. It is
expected that the transaction amount under the Property Management Service Agreements
will not exceed the annual caps of RMB2.8 million, RMB1.68 million and RMB2.0 million,
respectively, for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Nanjing Hailan Huiyuan is principally engaged in providing property management services in
the PRC. By entering into the Property Management Service Agreements, the Group will be
able to enjoy smooth and hassle-free property management services to be provided by

Nanjing Hailan Huiyuan. For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 1 June 2021.

Corporate Governance Relating to the 2019 Renewal Framework
Agreement with Nanjing Huizhi

Summaries of corporate governance mechanisms in place in the Reporting
Period regarding the non-exempt continuing connected transaction with
Nanjing Huizhi under the 2019 Renewal Framework Agreement are as follows:

(i)

Independence in Selection Process

The Group has adopted an independent mechanism with the following
features to govern and monitor the selection process for our potential
bidders:

(@)  thelnternal Tender Review Committee, which comprises members
appointed by the independent non-executive Directors and
accountable to the independent non-executive Directors, is
responsible for reviewing the terms and conditions of tenders and
screen out unsuitable tenders, which shall also comply with the
requirements of the relevant laws and regulations. The members
of the Internal Tender Review Committee include the heads of our
Group's tender department and the relevant project general
managers of our Group. The appointment of the members of the
Internal Tender Review Committee by the independent non-
executive Directors is based on nominations by the executive
Directors and relevant senior management of our Group. Ms. Zhou
Li shall abstain from such nomination process;

(b)  objective criteria for identifying potential bidders, such as the
price, quality of construction work, size of the project, construction
schedule and other required services, is prescribed by the Internal
Tender Review Committee in relation to each of our projects and
each criterion must be approved by the Internal Tender Review
Committee;

() the relevant project company will contact qualified potential
bidders and require them to provide information regarding their
qualifications, industry experience and the size and composition
of their management teams; and
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(ii)

64

(d)  the relevant project company will be responsible for compiling a
list of qualified potential bidders in accordance with the
prescribed criteria laid down by the Internal Tender Review
Committee and the relevant project company will issue tender
application documents to three to five qualified bidders. In the
event that Nanjing Huizhi, Zhonghui (Jiangsu) or Nanjing
Zhonghui Construction is chosen as one of the potential
construction companies after the selection process described
above and it submits a completed tender application document
to the relevant project company, the relevant project company
will submit Nanjing Huizhi's, Zhonghui (Jiangsu)’s or Nanjing
Zhonghui Construction’s tender application document to the
Internal Tender Review Committee for review and approval. The
Internal Tender Review Committee will only approve Nanjing
Huizhi's, Zhonghui (Jiangsu)'s or Nanjing Zhonghui Construction’s
application if Nanjing Huizhi, Zhonghui (Jiangsu) or Nanjing
Zhonghui Construction is considered to have a competitive
advantage in the relevant market in which the relevant project will
be situated.

Shortlisted qualified bidders shall submit tender documents to us or the
tendering agency appointed by us. The assessment committee established
by us is responsible for reviewing tenders and selecting a tender for
acceptance according to applicable laws and regulations. According to the
Measures on the Tender and Commencement of Construction Projects (L
218 B E R TBAZRAZYE), the selected industry expert(s) will be
disqualified if he/she is found to have a conflict of interest. After the
assessment committee has selected a tender for acceptance, we will award
the constructions contract to the successful bidder.

Independent Review of Construction Services Provided by
Nanjing Huizhi, Zhonghui (Jiangsu) and Nanjing Zhonghui
Construction

In addition, we have also put in place the following procedures with a
view to monitoring the quality of construction work carried out by
Nanjing Huizhi, Zhonghui (Jiangsu) or Nanjing Zhonghui Construction if
it is selected to provide construction services to the Group after the
above tender and selection procedures:

(@  monthly reports regarding the construction progress and the
quality of construction services prepared by independent qualified
engineering supervisory companies will be provided to the
independent non-executive Directors, and the views and
recommendations of the independent non-executive Directors
will be adopted by the Company; and
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(b)  written approval from the Internal Tender Review Committee is
required if Nanjing Huizhi, Zhonghui (Jiangsu) or Nanjing
Zhonghui Construction seeks to modify the scope of work,
construction schedule or other relevant information as provided
in the construction contract.

The Directors believe that the above selection and review mechanism
will ensure that the terms of the 2019 Renewal Agreement are
conducted on normal commercial terms and are in the best interests of
our Company and our independent Shareholders as a whole. In the
Reporting Period, the mechanisms have been effective and operated
accordingly.

Corporate Governance Relating to Property Management
Services Framework Agreement with Nanjing Hailan Huiyuan

To ensure the terms under the Property Management Service Agreements are

fair and reasonable and the Company’s conformity with the pricing terms

contemplated under them, the Company adopted the following internal
control procedures:

M

in determining the term of consideration, the Company has made
references to a number of factors, including the comparable market
prices and government guidance prices (if applicable), to ensure that the
price is fair and reasonable and on normal commercial terms;

in the event that the total amount of costs is expected to exceed the
agreed amount of consideration, the Company will compare the labour
costs and other costs with the market prices of the same type of services
to determine the reasonable costs for the services; and

the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and will
continue to review the Property Management Service Agreements to
ensure that the terms of the Property Management Service Agreements
are fair and reasonable, and the Property Management Service
Agreements are conducted on normal commercial terms in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group and are in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole.
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Confirmation from Independent Non-Executive Directors

All the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that those transactions had
been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company and the
Group (where appropriate);

(2)  either on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the relevant agreements governing the relevant
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

Confirmations from the Company’s Independent Auditors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board has engaged the auditor
of the Company to perform review procedures on the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions. Based on the work performed, the auditor of the
Company had provided a letter to the Board confirming that the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions:

(i) have been approved by the Directors;

(i) were, in all material respects, entered into in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

(i) were, in all material respects, entered into in accordance with the terms
of the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv)  did not exceed the respective annual cap as set by the Company.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee was set up to make recommendations on the
Company’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules for the Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Acquisition of land use rights in Baimajing Town, Danzhou,
Hainan Province

(i)

(ii)

68

Acquisition of property

On 1 April 2022, Hylan Investment, Inc. (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, “Hylan Investment’) and San Pablo
Investors One, LLC (an independent third party of the Company, “San
Pablo Investors’) entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which Hylan Investment agreed to acquire, and San Pablo
Investors agreed to dispose of, certain parcel of land located at 1835 San
Pablo Avenue, in Berkeley, Alameda, California, United States and all
improvements on the land, for a consideration of US$10,096,000. For
further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 1 April 2022 and 6 April 2022.

Property Management Service Framework Agreement

On 11 April 2022, in addition to certain existing property management
service agreements, the Company entered into the property
management service framework agreement (‘Property Management
Service Framework Agreement”) with Nanjing Hailan Huiyuan,
pursuant to which Nanjing Hailan Huiyuan (or any of its subsidiaries) will
provide property management services to the Group for a term of two
years and nine months with an annual cap of RMB9.8 million per year as
the Company anticipates that it will enter into new property
management service agreements with Nanjing Hailan Huiyuan for new
development projects. Nanjing Hailan Huiyuan is owned as to 60% by
Shanghai Tailaishi Construction Technology Co., Ltd.* (_E /A ZEHRI E 58
BRI AR A F]) and 40% by Mr. Zhang Jianing (3% & 22 %5 4 ). Shanghai
Tailaishi ultimate beneficial owners include Mr. Yeung Man (1585t ),
a controlling Shareholder, and Mr. Zhang Jianing (3R X 2 5 4). As such,
Nanjing Hailan Huiyuan is a connected person and the transaction
contemplated under the Property Management Service Framework
Agreement is a continuing connected transaction. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 11 April 2022.

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

ot W12 TR IH
W Wi ¥4 T A 1R M I RS O SR v o

(i

(ii)

L 2YE S

720224 4 818 + Hylan Investment, Inc.
(RARIZE#ZEZ2EWNB AT - [Hylan
Investment]) E2San Pablo Investors One,
LLC (AR 2L =75 + [San Pablo
Investors]) 5132 B E 1% + & LL + Hylan
Investment [&] & U4 #& M San Pablo Investors
B 2 & 7 22 B AN )48 JE 28 M B bz oK
2 2P 5 F T EE PR 8 K8 1835 5% (1835
San Pablo Avenue) K& THI¥R R FT B 3% T+
#h 22 E TR KB &10,096,0005
TL o BEE— IS F2HAAFH
H B2022F 4818 R202F4H68 2

N

VIR EERISER S

R002F48 1B BETREMESE
BRAEHE  ARNAQRITET A B R
MRS EERMMEREE LMW
ERRSHE  WAQREEREESR
BRI MEERRGIEE DR ((NEE
BERBEERBR]) B mEESR
TR (EERMTB AR R AEE R
MESERY  AEMFEZAMEA - F
ELrRABFARKISAEIL - MRS
EERA L REMEER AR AR
MR RE L E D RIEA 60% K 40% 5
EEFRRMNRRESHEE ABELR
BRERGHEERRRELE - FAt - /@
REBERRABEAL MUWEETER
BEERBEBETRETHNRZIBIFER
ERH  BHEE—FFHE Bw2HLAA
FIHEA2022F 4 A1 B2 RS -



Report of the Directors

E R SR e

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The annual results and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Reporting Period have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
of the Company. Information on the work of the Audit Committee and its
composition are set out in section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on
page 23 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiries
with all the Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed that he/she has
complied with the Model Code for the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

AUDITOR

The Company appointed Mazars CPA Limited with effect from 21 June 2019
after the resignation of Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited (“Grant
Thornton”) on 17 June 2019 as the Company and Grant Thornton could not
reach a consensus on the audit timetable and the remuneration for the
additional audit work in relation to the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018. The consolidated financial
statements for the Reporting Period have been audited by Mazars CPA Limited
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution will be proposed at the
annual general meeting to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as the auditor of the
Company for the ensuing year.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Li
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 29 April 2022
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Hailan Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”), is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”) to provide an overview of the Group’s
management on significant issues affecting the operation, and the
performance of the Group in terms of environmental and social aspects.

Preparation Basis and Scope

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) — “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” and has complied with “comply or explain”
provision in the Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in respect of corporate
social responsibility, covering its operating activities which are considered as
material by the Group — property development, sale and rental of developed
properties in the Hainan Province of People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

With the aim to optimise and improve the disclosure requirements in the
Report, the Group has taken initiative to formulate policies, record relevant
data, implement and monitor measures.

Reporting Period

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the reporting
period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Contact Information

The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for our sustainability
initiatives. Please contact us by email to hailankonggu@hailanholdings.com.
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INTRODUCTION

As one of the world's leading property developer located in Hainan Province
with primarily activities in property development and property investment, the
Group is principally engaged in the business of residential property in Hainan
Province. Its projects include commodity residential properties, commercial
properties and hotels. Property investment projects of the Group include
residential property leasing and parking lots located in tourist destinations like
Sanya, Haikou and Danzhou and targets at mid-and high-income vacationers
from all over the country who spend their holidays in Hainan Province.

The Group is rooted in the international tourism island of Hainan, focusing on
the development of high-end properties in tourist areas. The Group upholds
four principle values — “Standardisation, Innovation, Mutual Success and
Excellence” and strives to become a comprehensive developer and operator
for creating a better living environment. At the same time, the Group
recognises the importance of operating in a responsible manner for the
environment and community. We strive to achieve sustainable development
for affordable capital and long-term competitiveness by integrating
environmental and social factors into the management considerations.
Sustainability strategy is based on the compliance with the legal requirements
in the area where we operate and the opinions from stakeholders. The Group
has established and implemented various policies to manage and monitor the
risks related to environment, employment, operating practices and community.
Details of the management approaches to sustainable development of
different areas are illustrated in this Report.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGCAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group'’s business depends on the
support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have invested or will invest in the
Group; (b) have the ability to influence the outcomes within the Group; and (c)
are interested in or affected by or have the potential to be affected by the
impact of the Group's activities, products, services and relationships. It allows
the Group to understand risks and opportunities. The Group will continue to
ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship with each of
its key stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group's roles and
duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group engages with its
stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial relationships and to seek their
views on its business proposals and initiatives as well as to promote
sustainability in the marketplace, workplace, community and environment.
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The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from the
stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the Group's business

activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are important to our

business and established various channels for communication. The following
table provides an overview of the Group's key stakeholders, and various
platforms and methods of communication are used to reach, listen and

AEERETRBHEHARELBEDOR
7 EWRHEMIAELAEE - AREE
REHRBOEHT EBEBNE RN -
WERY S EEREE - TR ARENT
B REEEE  REAEENT SR
B -

respond.
Stakeholders Expectations Engagement channels
FHE HE SHRE
Government — Compliance with the laws and regulations ~ — On-site inspections and checks
B BTRRER BEiRERRE
— Proper tax payment — Research and discussion through work
ORI conferences, work reports preparation and
— Promote regional economic development submission for approval in the PRC
and employment FBITEEE  LEREREERT
HEBRESEERIME RXEBHFRME LW
— Annual and interim reports
FERPERE
— Company website
NGIEER
Shareholders and Investors — Low risk — Annual general meeting and other
BRRRREHE 1K = B shareholder meetings
— Return on the investment IRERBFERE RAMKREAS
& B — Annual report and announcements
— Information disclosure and transparency FRRAE
BAHERERE — Newsletter
— Protection of interests and fair treatment of ER
shareholders — Meeting with investors
RIERR R R 2 L A T 155 BICEESH

— Company website and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited
NEPEERBEAHAER AR AE
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Stakeholders

Expectations

Engagement channels

BHE HE SHERE
Employees — Safeguard the rights and interests of — Meetings and conferences
(== employees eREERE
RIZE SR RER — Training, seminars and briefing sessions
— Working environment Fil - g ki e
THERR Entertainment
— Career development opportunities [Tl
EERRH#E Intranet, emails, circulars and manuals
— Self-actualisation PEEAY - EED - ek R
BHER
— Occupational health and safety
Customers — Safe and high-quality products Company website, brochures and annual
EzE ZENEBEER report
— Stable relationship NAEEY - EEM R E®
IR RR Email and customer service hotline
— Information transparency BEBMREPRBEERR
BAERE Feedback forms
— Integrity R EEZFRAE
B
— Business ethics
[GESEE
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Stakeholders

Expectations

Engagement channels

BFOE e SHERE
Suppliers/Partners — Long-term partnership — Business meetings, supplier conferences,
R, SR M REARHRAER phone calls and interviews
— Honest cooperation ¥Bes HEDER SENED
HHEIE Review and assessment
— Fairand open ay R A
YNNG
— Information resources sharing
BERERAE
— Risk reduction
S
Peers/Industry Associations — Experience sharing Industry conference
B¥ TEGE SR TEEZ
— Fair competition Site visit
NFFE ISR
Financial Institutions — Compliance with the laws and regulations Consulting

TR

B EERER
Information disclosure

AW

i
Information disclosure

B

Reports

HE

Communication through relationship
manager

BREPEIZEA
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Stakeholders Expectations Engagement channels
BHrE HE S HARE
Media — Transparent information — Company website
e BiEA NGIEEI
— Communication with media — Media conference
HRE IR A RERGE
Public and Communities — (areer opportunities — Volunteering
DBRALRHEE TS T
— Community involvement — Charity and social investment
e BERTERE
— Environmental responsibilities — Annual reports and announcements
RBEME FRERE
— Social responsibilities
HEaME

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group understands
the expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained
allow the Group to make more informed decisions, and to better assess and
manage the resulting impact.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG reporting by
understanding the key ESG issues that are important to the business of the
Group. All the key ESG issues and key performance indicators (KPIs) are
reported in the Report according to recommendations of the ESG Reporting
Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules) and the GRI Guidelines.
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The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects

through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of relevant ESG
reports of the local and international industry peers.

The materiality of each ESG area was determined based on the
importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal discussion of
the management and the recommendation of ESG Reporting Guide
(Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder Engagement

The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG area identified
above to ensure all the key aspects to be covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal discussion
among the management, the Group’s management ensured all the key
and material ESG areas, which were important to the business
development, were reported and in compliance with ESG Reporting
Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2021, those important ESG areas to the
Group were discussed in this Report.
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ESG GOVERNANCE
Board'’s oversight of ESG issues

Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG issues

The board of directors (“Board”) has a primary role in overseeing the
management of the Group’s sustainability issues. During the year, the Board
and the ESG Working Group spent significant time in evaluating the impact of
ESG-related risks on our operation and formulating relevant policy in dealing
with the risks. The oversight of the Board aims to ensure the management to
have all the right tools and resources to oversee the ESG issues in the context
of strategy and long-term value creation.

ESG Working Group

To demonstrate our commitment to transparency and accountability, our
Group has established an ESG Working Group, which has clear terms of
reference that set out the powers delegated to it by the Board. We highly value
opinions of each stakeholder and treat them as the cornerstone for the
development of the Group. During the reporting period, the ESG Working
Group consisted of Executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer, HR Manager,
and Property Development Project Managers.

The ESG Working Group is primarily responsible for reviewing and supervising
the ESG process, and risk management of the Group. Different ESG issues were
reviewed by the Working Group at the meetings. During the reporting period,
the ESG Working Group and the management reviewed the ESG governance
and different ESG issues.
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Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for material
ESG-related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of different
stakeholders on our ESG issues, materiality assessment is conducted each year.
We ensure various platforms and channels of communication are used to
reach, listen and respond to our key stakeholders. Through general
communication with stakeholders, the Group understands the expectations
and concerns from stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to
make more informed decisions, and to better assess and manage the resulting
impact.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects
through the steps: (1) material ESG area identification by industry
benchmarking; (2) key ESG area prioritization with stakeholder engagement;
and (3) validation and determining material ESG issues based on results of
communication among stakeholders and the management. Hence, this can
enhance understanding of their degree and change of attention to each
significant ESG issue, and can enable us to more comprehensively plan our
sustainable development work in the future. Those important and material ESG
areas identified during our material assessment were discussed in this Report.

Board review progress against ESG-related goals and targets

The progress of ESG target implementation and the ESG performance of the
goals and targets should be closely reviewed from time to time. Rectification
may be needed if the progress falls short of expectation. Effective
communication about the goals and target process with key stakeholders is
essential, as this enables them to be engaged in the implementation process,
and to feel they are part of the change that the company aspires to achieve.

Setting strategic goals for the coming three to five years enables the company
to develop a realistic roadmap and focus on results in achieving the visions.

Setting ESG targets requires the ESG Working Group to carefully examine the
attainability of the targets which should be weighed against the company’s
ambitions and goals. The ESG Working Group will specify whether the ESG
target is to be set on an absolute basis or intensity basis is essential for target
setting.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

As one of the world's leading property developer, the Group recognises
that it has an obligation to reduce the impact of our operations on the
environment and be accountable for the resources and materials that
are used in our daily operations. Throughout the year, the Group fully
complied with all of the relevant environmental laws and regulations in
the PRC and Hong Kong, such as the Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China in the PRC and the Air Pollution Control
Ordinance (Cap. 311) in Hong Kong. Besides, no concluded case
regarding environmental issues was brought against us or our
employees. The Group also regularly updates itself with the latest
development of the applicable laws and regulations on environmental
protection.

Apart from complying with the environmental protection rules and
standards, the Group emphasises environmental protection and seeks to
enhance efficiency in the use of natural resources and reduce the
environmental impact of its business operation. The Group takes the
initiative to implement the Environmental Protection Management
System since 2017. Upholding the principles of “prevention first,
preventive control, comprehensive solution”, the Group has formulated
a series of management guidelines covering environmental monitoring,
daily environmental management, specific project environmental
management and environmental incident management. The Group also
issues an environmental protection proposal to staff of the subsidiaries
of the Group, suppliers and business partners so as to improve the
environment as a team. We enhance employees’ awareness of
environmental protection by education and staff training.

To reduce the environment pressure caused by its operation, the Group
fully switched to a solar power heating system, replacing diesel stove for
supplying domestic hot water, and reduced the use of fuels since 2017.
Moreover, the Group considers taking further steps in air emission
management and adoption of renewable energy. To improve the air
quality, the Group fully complies with the environmental monitoring
initiatives conducted by government departments. We strive for
environmentally friendly operation through mitigating emissions,
improving resources efficiency and reducing significant impacts on the
environment.
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Emissions

As a property developer, the Group recognises that it has ethical
duties to reduce emissions. Given that all construction work is
provided by external service providers, the Group's business bears
low impact on air and carbon emissions. In the meantime, the
Group fully complies with all of the relevant environmental laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong where we operate.
These include the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the People’s Republic of China (2015) in the PRC, the Motor
Vehicle Idling (Fixed Penalty) Ordinance (Cap. 611) and the Road
Traffic Ordinance (Cap. 374) in Hong Kong. Besides, no concluded
case regarding emissions brought against the Group or its
employees during the year.

Air Pollutants Emission

Air pollutants emission control is essential to mitigate
environmental impacts and to protect employees’ health. For our
property development projects, the Group constantly encourages
its contractors to adopt responsible construction practices to
reduce air pollutants emission. For example, continuous sprinkling
is adopted in construction sites to mitigate the spread of dust.
Sealed containers are used for volatile gas to prevent the gas
leakage.

As our property development projects are subcontracted to
construction contractors, we do not have direct ownership or
control on the construction projects. However, we have a
construction department to closely monitor the construction
process carried out by our subcontractors to mitigate the air
pollutants emission. As the canteen of a PRC subsidiary switched
from using towngas for cooking to using liquefied petroleum gas
(LPG) which generated more air pollutants, the air pollutants
emission increased during the year. Furthermore, the Group
targets to reduce the emission of air pollution by 5% by 2025.

The air pollutants emission of the Group during the reporting
period is as follows:
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Type of Air Pollutants 2020
ERTRNER 2020
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg 10.16 1.77
RBfL (NO) T
Sulfur dioxide (SO2) kg 032 0.02
Z&bHE (SO T
Particulate matter (PM) kg 0.10 0.01
FRZTERL (PM) T
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Greenhouse Gas (“GHG"”) Emission

Climate change is gradually concerned by the community. The

Group recognises that climate change poses a risk to its business

and it is committed to mitigating the effects of climate change.

GHG is considered as one of the major contributors of the climate

change.

Regarding GHG emissions of the Group, scope 1 direct emissions
and scope 2 indirect emissions are mainly resulted from LPG,
purchased electricity respectively. Giving the majority of the GHG

emissions of the Group come from energy consumption, the

Group tackles the GHG emission by lowering the energy

consumption in our business operations. Policies and procedures

as described in the section “Use of Resources” to encourage

energy saving have been incorporated throughout the operations
in order to reduce the carbon footprint. The increase in GHG
emission in 2021 was mainly attributable to the increased

electricity use for expanded PRC office area during the year.

Furthermore, the Group targets to reduce GHG emission by 5% by

2025.

The GHG emission of the Group during the reporting period is as
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follows: O

GHG Emission' Unit 2021 2020
BERBHN B 2021 2020
Scope 1? tonnes of CO-e 245 0.16
#HE—? W_EftiEE

Scope 2 tonnes of CO,-e 34449 92.03
&HE_: M_altixEE

Scope 3* tonnes of CO,-e - 6.65
#HE=" M_StiEE

Total GHG emission tonnes of CO,-e 346.94 98.84
RERBHRAE M iEE

GHG emission intensity tonnes of CO-e/m? 0.19 0.09
BERBHNEE W _S(tiREE Tk

The calculation of the greenhouse gas emission is based on the “Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard” from Greenhouse Gas Protocol.

BEREBHNENRAEREATE(LEREHRERRDFESL -
Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or controlled by the Group.
BE—  RAARERER SITHIN AR Z EREBEM -

3 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the purchased electricity consumed by the Group.
BE— - RAAEEINEE S ZHEB -

Scope 3: Indirect emissions from business travel by employees.
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Waste Management

The Group recognises the importance of waste reduction. Waste
management measures have been introduced to minimise the
amount of waste generated and reduce impact of our operation
on the environment. Due to our business operation nature, no
hazardous waste was generated during the reporting period.

Due to the nature of office operation, the non-hazardous waste
mainly consists of domestic waste and paper waste which are
collected by the property management company for landfill or
incineration. In the future, the Group plans to implement waste
sorting, promote recycling in the office and provide clearer sorting
guidance for staff, as well as encourage them to reduce waste at
source. Besides, the Group takes initiative to reduce the paper
waste amount by encouraging its employees to use double-sided
printing.

For the property development projects, the Group has
implemented “paperless policy” and published the Notice on the
Regulation of Waste Discharge of Construction Projects, requiring
all business units to strictly comply with the relevant laws and
regulations of China in terms of waste discharge, drainage design
and construction. The director, who is responsible for the design
and engineering, assesses the design and construction plans and
monitors the entire construction process according to the project
management policies and guidelines of the Group. Therefore, we
can avoid deviation from waste discharge standard due to design
failures or delay in construction. The Group also requires its
contractors to sort, classify and recycle (if applicable) the
construction and demolition waste produced. Construction and
demolition waste that cannot be recycled is delivered to landfills
by qualified wastes management companies and recyclable waste
is processed by recycling companies. During the reporting period,
daily office operation was the main source of commercial waste.
The increase in non-hazardous wastes amount in 2021 was mainly
attributable to more frequent cleaning work for coping with
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and expanded PRC office area
during the year. Furthermore, the Group targets to reduce the
non-hazardous waste generation by 5% by 2025.
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The waste generated by the Group during the reporting period is

AEBERHREMEELNEZY N

as follows: T

EH G Unit 2021 2020
BERY By 20215 2020 F
Non-hazardous waste generated tonnes 342 0.17
FELBEEREZEY i

Non-hazardous waste generated intensity tonnes/m? 0.0019 0.0001
MELBREBRENTE WE, 5K

A2. Use of Resources A2. BN

The Group considers environmental protection as an essential
component of a sustainable and responsible business. The Group
has an in-depth understanding of the importance of safeguarding
sustainable development of the environment and this to attach
importance to efficient utilisation of resources by introducing
various measures in daily business operations. It understands that
staff participation is the key to achieve such goals. The Group
strives to build up a working environment that emphasises the
"Green office” and “Low Carbon” policy such as a set of guidelines
to improve the efficient use of resources for long-term
sustainability. The Group has also adopted policies such as “Energy
Resource Control Procedure” to improve the efficient use of
energy, water and other materials.

Energy

The Group promotes the concept of energy saving and emission
reduction into the entire process of its development and
operation. In the meantime, the Group puts effort to promote
energy saving awareness among its staff by posting related
reminders or messages through emails, recommending them to
switch off all the lights, computers and printers by the end of the
work day. The Group encourages all of its employees to set their
computers to sleep-mode automatically when left idle for a
certain period of time. Printers and copiers are also set to sleep-
mode automatically for the computers.
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In order to keep pace with the market trends, the Group regularly
upgrades its existing facilities such as replacing outdated
computers, phones and other electrical appliances to meet the
needs of our customers and enhance operational efficiency. The
Group adheres to environmental protection and waste reduction
principles for its upgrading processes, and reuses existing facilities
and materials wherever possible, so as to reduce waste.
Meanwhile, it also actively uses eco-friendly equipment for any
replacement. With these measures, not only can the energy
consumption be saved, but also the GHG emission can be
reduced.

In relation to office operation, the Group's lighting system has fully
adopted LED energy-saving light tubes to increase energy
efficiency. Office daily operation involves a significant number of
documents. Through the information management system, the
Group aims at creating a paperless environment. Staff could
reduce paper consumption by conducting internal document
approval and downloading training materials through the system.
The increase in energy consumption in 2021 was mainly
attributable to the increased electricity use for expanded PRC
office area during the year. Furthermore, the Group targets to
reduce the energy consumption by 5% by 2025.

The energy consumption of the Group during the reporting
period is as follows:

Energy Consumption

BTIREMISBE  AEEFEHA
BEERE DINERBNFNSE
IS - FRMEMESR  UREEFP
E’JﬁﬁFJZjIHTEH_%@)&T EFHAR
BIRRAS E BB IRBIRENR D
FEYIRR  EAgehERFRIES
RIRR TR - DU AR E - B
B EBRGERRFEARRKRE
o BRZEREE  TEUE
JROBFE - TR AR EREEHENL

feul

AR NEEE  ARENRAR
SO EERLEDE BT - B
BERMEE - MAERTEEESRK
ENMHER - AEEBRENER
REE o BOEVNERIRE - 8TR]
LA iBZ R ETT IR S L -
IR LA TR EIFINER - B A MR E
A ° 2021 GEHYRE T dﬁﬁ“}ﬁibuzg
MR FEREERNTRBAZE
ST - thIh - AEBEH E’f@
RH 2025 F AT AS 5L IR B FRER A 5% o

L‘

N5 E R S HA R A9 B2 IR OB A
T

BEIRUH#E

Purchased electricity MWh 41235 110.46
SNEE 7] JEE R

Towngas MWh 3.81 0.89
BESR JKFL

Liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) MWh 7.96 -
BACRAR CRIERAR) JKFL

Total energy consumption MWh 42412 111.35
RERHERE JE L B

Energy consumption intensity MWh/m? 0.234 0.100
RERE R E KELE, 75K
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Water

Water is an important natural resource. For water consumption in
Hong Kong office, the water supply is solely controlled and
centrally managed by the property management company of the
building, it is not feasible for the Group to provide water
consumption data as there is no separate meter for each individual
office unit on water usage record. However, we still actively seek
ways to mitigate water consumption. For example, the Group
encourages water recycling by connecting the washbasin outlet
pipe to a water storage tank to use wastewater for toilet flushing.
Besides, the Group conducts regular inspection of each operation
stage to minimise leakage and wastage as well as posts posters in
office to encourage employees to save water. The increase in
water consumption in 2021 was mainly attributable to more
frequent cleaning work for coping with outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic and expanded PRC office area during the year.
Furthermore, the Group targets to reduce the Water consumption
by 5% by 2025.

During the reporting period, the water consumption is as follows:

7k
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FRTHEAKER LD 5% o

REREHAR - ARSI

Water Consumption Unit 2021 2020
RkE By 20214 2020 F
Water consumption m? 9,328 3,116
FAKE AV

Water consumption intensity m3/m? 5.14 2.79
K= E SRR

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group understands that implementing environmental
protection can reduce operational risk and increase business
opportunities. Regarding the business nature of the Group, we do
not aware of any significant impact of our business activities on
the environment and natural resources. Despite this, we
endeavour to consistently improve our environmental
performance by implementing aforementioned waste reduction
measures and resources saving initiatives. We will continue to seek
opportunities to further reduce emission and resources
consumption with the aim to reduce the impacts on environment
and natural resources to minimal.

A3. BREIRKBRENR
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Climate Change
Governance

Our group addresses climate-related risks based on the nature of
the risk to our operations. The physical impacts of climate change,
including extreme weather events, or damage to facilities have
immediate operational impacts and are treated as operational
risks. Long-term challenges, such as emerging ESG issues and
climate-related risks and opportunities, may be discussed by the
Group's ESG Working Group.

Supported by our ESG Working Group, our Board oversees
climate-related issues and risks regularly during board meetings
and ensures that they are incorporated into our strategy.

To ensure our Board to keep up with the latest trend of climate-
related issues, climate competence training will be provided to
ensure it has the necessary expertise and skills to oversee the
management of climate-related issues. Our Board also seeks
professional advice from external experts when necessary to
better support the decision-making process.

Our ESG Working Group provides effective governance for
integrating and addressing ESG issues, including climate change,
within our business. The ESG Working Group is responsible for
approving operational emissions targets for the Group and
commissioning an ESG benchmarking, as well as gap analysis
exercise to identify gaps in both disclosure and policy relative to
the best practice standards. Moreover, the ESG Working Group
works closely with the Group's different operation departments,
with an aim to develop consistent and enhanced approaches on
addressing ESG risk issues and report to the management.
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Strategy

Climate change risk forms part of our overall risk profile through its
role in increasing the frequency and intensity of certain diseases,
and the health and mortality impacts resulting from natural
disasters. We assess the overall level of risk by taking into
consideration a range of diverse risk factors across the many
categories in our services range. This diversity of risk is combined
with our business strategy and broad geographic footprint helps
us mitigate risk and provide protection against the impacts of
short-term climate change effects.

Our products and services continue to provide protection for
people in our communities against weather and heat-related
disease. Besides, we continue to explore opportunities to engage
our business partners and encourage them to develop climate
resilience and reduce their operational carbon footprint by taking
into consideration of different climate-related scenarios, including
a "2°C or lower scenario” through the following steps:

Step 1: Set Future Images Assuming Climate Change Effects

As climate change measures proceeds, there is a possibility that
the industry will be exposed to substantial changes, such as
stricter policies including the introduction of and increases in
carbon pricing, as well as advances in technology and changes in
customer awareness.

In light of these climate change effects, based on the International
Energy Agency (“IEA") scenarios and others, we developed
multiple future images as the external environment that will
surround our Group. With regard to the IEA scenarios, we put
focus on the 2°C scenario (2DS) and pictured future images in case
where climate change measures do not progress and where such
measures progress further “Beyond 2°C scenario”.
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Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for each of the future
images developed in Step 1. We believe that in such a society, it
will be possible to expand carbon dioxide reduction effects.

With regard to effects on raw material procurement and
production, introduction of and increases in carbon pricing is
anticipated in accordance with the global advance of climate
change measures, leading to the possibility of higher raw material
procurement and production costs.

On the other hand, in the case where climate change measures
are not adequate throughout society, production interruptions
and supply chain disruptions are likely to increase as a result of
higher frequency and intensification of natural disasters such as
flooding.

Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Our Group will begin promoting the reduction of non-renewable
energy in our daily operation. This strategy will allow for flexible
and strategic responses to each demand for the regions where
the emission factors of purchased electricity consumptions are
high. By promoting real carbon emissions reductions throughout
the world through comprehensive energy-saving policies and
introduction of renewable energy, we are working to achieve zero
carbon emission in our business.

We minimize carbon emissions through comprehensive energy-
saving and introduction of renewable energy. With respect to
renewable energy in particular, we have set a new target, achieve
a reduction rate for purchased electricity in coming few years.

With regard to the ongoing confirmation of the suitability and
progress of the Group's strategies, we believe that we will have
opportunities for stable funding and sustainable increases in
corporate value through appropriate information disclosure,
dialogue with institutional investors and other stakeholders.
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Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change related risks or to test the
existing risk management strategies under climate change with
the aid of risk assessment. Hence, the areas where new strategies
are needed could be identified.

The risk assessment takes a standard risk-based approach using
national data, local information and expert knowledge, which can
identify how climate change may compound existing risks or
create new ones. The risk assessment is conducted through the

following steps:

Step 1: Establish the context
Objective/goal

Scale
Time frame

Climate change scenario for most climate variables and sea
level

Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and current)

Identify the record of occurrence of climatic hazard in the
past in the area

Risk management strategies in place to tackle future
occurrence of the hazard

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

[ b B
AEBEBRIREECABEAR - %
f& By R B AR SRR T 3R
BRBEIEREE - Fit - FPIal &
PEFBZE I RAAE -

R EEARR A TNIRER
i FIARREE - SHENEE
KA - BESURE B /AR B b an{ar hn
BIIR B R Sk EEFER - B @R
B ST A = AT P RRETT -

E—# RIME
VL

B
Ry FEIAE 2R

REXRZHRRAZEERER
BFERENREZ(CIFR

EF_F: HPNREERE(BERE
)

HAl@AEEAERKELE
K RC 8%

ﬁﬁTEﬂ*X“%W@@
EBEK

IR A W 20214 ) 89



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BREE ~ Al KRR

90

Step 3: Identify future risk and opportunities

Explore climate change projections for the selected time
frame(s) and emission scenario(s)

Identify potential hazards

Investigate whether any existing risk from Step 2 may get
worse under future projected changes

Identify new risks that can emerge under future projected
changes

Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

Identify a set of decision areas or systems (i.e., geographical
areas, business operation, assets, ecosystems, etc.) that has
the potential to be at risk in future

As outlined within the Governance section above, the Group has
robust risk management and business planning processes that are
overseen by the board of directors in order to identify, assess and
manage climate-related risks. The Group engages with
government and other appropriate organizations in order to keep
abreast of expected and potential regulatory and/or fiscal
changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate change in regard to
monitoring of carbon and energy footprint in our daily operation.
However, there remains gaps in understanding how such climate
risks and opportunities may impact our operations, assets and
profits. Our Group assesses how the business addresses climate
change risks and opportunities and takes the initiative to monitor
and reduce their environmental footprint.
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Significant Climate-related Issues ERREHASE
During the reporting period, the significant climate-related RIREER - E#«&/ﬂz—I EEIWIN
physical risks and transition risks, which have impacted and/or EEREE M) CEmk
may impact our Group's business and strategy in (i) operations, AR 7S ~ (i)t jE 8 &Tﬁfﬁfé (iii) 3
products and services, (ii) supply chain and value chain, (iii) FERIERRIEE) - (WIFEIRE RV
adaptation and mitigation activities, (iv) investment in research B RE T EHNRBEEATENR
and development, and (v) financial planning, as well as the steps {I% BENEXRETERMS &AER
taken to manage these risks, are as follows: AN AE TR R E R T B AR AY
EETE%CW s
Climate-related risks description Financial impact Steps taken to manage the risks
B\ B O = A ot MBS E AEEZSE MR E i
Physical Risk
ERAR
Acute physical risks
=M BB R
— Increased severity and frequency of extreme — Operating cost — Planned to adopted scenario
weather events such as cyclones and floods, increases analysis to disclose an
strong wind. Hence, staff are easily injured. B KA N organization’s planning under
In addition, under the extreme weather — Capital cost increases future scenarios, most notably one
events, the costs of transportation, due to the damage of with in a “2°C scenario”.
communications and living increase, which facilities ETEIRMBEIRANT - WEARK
may lead to financial loss. R IEE SR E ARK BE (&ZRBEEE [22CERDT
iR R B (ANEES R ALK -~ 38=) RIE N EBERE
BIEREE M FIARRIE N - At - BT S — Established a natural disasters
245 o WA MEmARRELT - & emergency plan
W BEREEKAAE IR AIEE PR KB EEEE -
HBIRL
— Increased likelihood and severity of wildfire,
which may hinder the operations of
companies. Financial loss occurs due to the
interruption of supply chain, logistics and
transportation.
A L KEYRTREME SR BREE 4G A0
PEBE T8 o et - ¥1im & iﬁﬁﬂq:'
K AT RE S| BB S 1Rk -
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Climate-related risks description Financial impact Steps taken to manage the risks

TR B B o A 4 b2 AEEZZARMERNNEE

Chronic physical risks
BEEBRER

— Prolonged hot weather may increase the Revenue reduces from — Planned improvements, retrofits,
energy consumption. decreased production relocations, or other changes to
FE SRR RAAIRE L RLIRBFEIL N © capacity and the negative facilities that may reduce their

— Climate change brings uncertainties to the  impacts of workforce. vulnerability to climate impacts
environments of property development. ERETHRETAZEN and increase the climate resilience
Although direct losses will not be incurred B EIFZBEIER D © in long term.
by the company, this may still affect and ETBIETTRAESGE - IE W
limit the property development and sales, BoHMEE - RIEME 068
as well as rental of developed properties 2REEHRIRTZEMNEELLE
significantly. 7 WiRERIEEERE T
RIRE L R EFREIRIRERTHEE — Engagement with local or national
Mo BEARTEELBEESSE - BY governments and local
*AERHEEAREREYFEBASA stakeholders on local resilience.
BEXINERTERRS A e A B AR 3 S B 5K

— Prolonged climate change may detriment B RAMFF D EEE

the human’s health. Continuation of
temperature rise can increase the fatality
rates and incidence rates of some diseases,
especially the one related to cardiac and
respiratory system; the spread of some
climate-sensitive diseases such as malaria
and dengue fever may increase.
FENRERZLATRESEARER - R
BT T & 4 AN LB PR A SE T 2R AN
BRE - LHIEOHEAMTRZSH R
BV ¢ Al A= INEIEE 9 i AR G AN
R - BIINER TS AR (EHE -

92 HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BREE ~ ALl KRR

Climate-related risks description

Financial impact

Steps taken to manage the risks

0 B B S A 4
Transitional Risk

b2

AEEZZARMRNNER

Policy risk

B 2\ B

— As aresult of energy efficiency requirements, —
carbon-pricing mechanisms increase the
price of fossil fuels, or policies to encourage
sustainable land use, hindering the area of
expansion, which increase the operation
cost.

MR ETREEK - E BB AR
BB - BBt ENBNR —
ROABFRIFIER - BINEEKA -

— Mandates on and regulation of existing
products and services as of the tightened
environmental and safety laws and
standards of oil. We have to spend much
compliance cost to update or maintain the
equipment to fulfil the new regulations.
HRIRIE R L 2EPIA KA REER
2 HRAEREBRBEOEERRE
BIMRIEBAREERANAE N ER
1 AT B #TEVARTE ©

Operating cost
increases due to
increased insurance
premiums for the
company.
NEVRRBEIL INE K
EEKAIG N -

Risk of trade increases.
B ZRBIGM -

— Planned to be involved in carbon

trading and adoption of clean
energy in the operations to reduce
the carbon emissions.
AEIZEBRPRRS - WS
ERERARFR - AR
e

Monitor the updates of the relevant
climate-related environmental
policies, to avoid the unnecessary
increase in cost and expenditure
due to the violation of the climate-
related environmental policies.
ERMBARGEEREBRN
BHER - @R EEAR ML
PHBERR AR -

Legal risk

SRR

— Exposure to litigation. We have to adapt the —
tightened law and regulations issued by the
government due to climate change, and
they have the risk of litigation once they
failed to obligate the new rules.
FRAAERR - BNRIREL - BAILAE
FEBS T AR5 B0 BB R R NOESR » —
BoRegESTHRA - AIEERFRARR o

— Enhanced emissions-reporting obligations.
We may have to spend much time on
fulfilling the report standards to comply the
new obligations.
MBPHRERTS - RPITTREFEREE
FEREERRELD - LBTHOR
7 o

Operating cost
increases for high
compliance costs and
increased insurance
premiums for the
Group.
BRKARERAE
B ORER B IR OB (E &
BN -

Monitored the updates of
environmental laws and
regulations and implemented GHG
emissions calculations in advance.
EESIRBARE AR EIIE
S BRATETTR E R HEA
ATHE -
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Climate-related risks description Financial impact Steps taken to manage the risks

JEBL B B9 = A ot Mg E AEEZEE MR i

Technology risk

B e

— Sourcing the low carbon and energy-saving — Capital investmentin ~ — Planned to invest in the
construction raw material and developing technology innovations of energy saving
energy saving technologies for construction, development increases. technologies for construction
the capital investment and R&D expense AT E R E ST EIIR B RN Be BT HY BT
increase consequently. B e — Examined the feasibility and
AR AR ET e R R SRR M B SR B 228 benefits of applying the latest
ERERAT - EAIRERMAEER M2 low-carbon and energy-saving
N o technologies into our operation.

— More green building strategies with low- B 75 15 S 3 O (K Bk % 0 BE 1
carbon, energy-saving technologies are FERMEERRIITIE RITER ©

adopted by industry peers. Lagging behind
may weaken our competitive edges.

B LRk - SRR B RR R E
MRITTERA o KB4 AT AL & HI S5 F 1
MBS BB -

Market risk

%k

— More customers are considering climate- — Revenue decreases for — Tightened the control of the
related risks and opportunities, which may the change in revenue environmental hazardous materials
lead to changes in customers’ demand for mix and sources. in property construction of our
products (developed properties for sales). W 25 #5188 N RIR Y developed properties and studied
EEZMEPE R RIGHBERERR RS LB R - the application of recycled
AR P HER (WMEMIEHEE)F — Operating cost materials.
SKE BRI o increases as abrupt and IERE BRI EIRIER

— Uncertainty in market signals. “How unexpected shifts in Y REY)E G R 5
environmentally friendly the product is” energy costs. AT BAMEEER -
becomes one of the factors to affect the BEIRA AN SR R B AT
property selling price. LN BB B B

MSERATEEEE - [ERARRKR JERCAR BT o
BENFIKAFEERESEMNREZR Y — Production cost

= ° increases due to

— Increased cost of construction raw materials. changing input prices
More environmentally-friendly raw materials and output
may be much expensive, which may requirements.
increase the construction cost. BABERELRE
SR BIANIG AN - BERREY R KL BB LGB EER AR
FIREE MR E @ IR o #n -

94 HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BREE ~ ALl KRR

Climate-related risks description

Financial impact

Steps taken to manage the risks

JEBL B B9 =F A ot

Reputational risk

EERR

— Unable to fulfil the expectations of the
customers, damage the Group’s reputation
and image.
AEMERFPHE BEAKENEE
MR o

— Stigmatization of our business sector, such
as more stakeholder concern or negative
stakeholder feedback on the property
design in a less environmentally-friendly
way.
HEMOFEB PSR - AR
PREFTARANDENE 251D ERH
I B EFF D ERE -

b2

Revenue decreases
from decreased
demand for goods and
the decrease in
production capacity.
EmFB R RERE
TREEH WD
Operating costs
increases from negative
impacts on workforce
management and
planning.

BB HEERRED
BHPZEREEENX
AIE AN -

AEEZZARMRNNERE

— Supported the green construction.
SRR EBEE -

— Fulfilled the social responsibility by
organizing more activities or
executing actions to demonstrate
how we place importance on
climate change.
BRBLERDIEENT B
THEEE  BRASEEHR
IR EIR

During the reporting period, the primary climate-related
opportunities and the corresponding financial impacts were as
follows:

Detailed description of climate-related opportunities

RBEHRE - TERREBEER
RENTBZENT

Financial Impact

RIREBERBNF AR MHEE
Resource efficiency
BIRME

— Reduce more packaging material usage
BRMEFERRZ BEM
— Reduce water usage and consumption

A IKETREOE B S B RE

— Operating cost reduces through efficiency gains
and cost reductions

BBEARE SR EEA
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Detailed description of climate-related opportunities Financial Impact

FARE B A Y AR AR Mg E

Energy source

BEIR IR

— Use of lower-emission fuel sources — Operating cost reduces through use of lowest cost
2 R EBERUR AL SRR abatement

— Use of supportive policy incentives 7B AR AR HE R > & E R AN
AR FF I BUR B HE — Returns on investment in low- emission technology

— Use of new technologies increases
8 A RHX EHERU T IR & 3 3

Products and services

2= m AR

— Development of climate adaptation and insurance risk ~ — Revenue increases through new solutions to
solutions adaptations needs, such as insurance risk transfer
il 7E 5= M 208 e % AR B R B B R 5 =R products and services

— Ability to diversify business activities 7 B IR R B BB RS A o I PR TS 3@ e T SR Y
ZTL EBEEHEEN AR TT FR I8 I as

Markets

M5

— Access to new markets — Revenue increases through access to new and
AT IS emerging markets

7R AT EY N B T 35 18 hni R
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Detailed description of climate-related opportunities
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Financial Impact
Mg E

RARAEBAHEIE BV 5 40 4 1
Resilience
G

— Participation in renewable energy programs and
adoption of energy-efficiency measures
S A B A RLIRET 8 M ERERETRE 7

— Resource substitution or diversification

BERERHZ T

— Market valuation increases through resilience

planning, such as infrastructure, land and buildings
FBINETE R G - T KRB FEE RSN
mI5hE

Reliability of supply chain and ability to operate
under various condition increases

HrEgEn S RESRRGE T EENE 1R
Revenue increases through new products and
services related to ensuring resiliency

B TEOR R\ AE B A0 2= am [ BRI 0z

Metrics and Targets

Our Group adopts the key metrics to assess and manage climate-
related risks and opportunities. The energy consumption and
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions indicators are the key metrics
used to assess and manage relevant climate-related risks where
we consider such information is material and crucial for evaluating
the impact of our operation on global climate change during the
year. Our Group regularly tracks our energy consumption and GHG
emissions indicators to assess the effectiveness of emission
reduction initiatives, as well as set targets to contribute our effort
to have minimal impact on global warming.

The details of time frames over which the target applies and base
year from which progress is measured are described in the section
Al: “Emissions” and section A2: “Use of Resources” of this Report.
Our Group adopts absolute target to manage climate-related risks,
opportunities and performance.

HERERAR
AEBERMNEREEFREUTE R
B RIR AR R RS o IR
REEHERRRARBRERY
ERRRBEZENFEMEBE
AKEE - RIRERER MR E R
(GHG) BERUFE 1R 9 A A4l R & 38
HERKEREERNEREER
% o REEE B MERE IR B FE SR
EREH PR RARH B HHE B
Meh - WREBR - BMAOHEKRE
IR NP ERERE

B 258 A e iy R AR 2R S fr O B2
FEMFBHRANREFLAIE:
[BER ) RSB A280 : TEIRFA
AEBCRMNBHBERABERR
TR R S B IA S R 3R -

WA RA T 20214
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SOCIAL ASPECTS

B1.

Employment

The Group believes people are our most important asset to the
continuing development and success of our Group. As such, we
aim to attract and motivate talents, maintain a safe and equal
working environment and promote health and well-being of our
employees. We pay special attention to its employees’ rights and
strictly complies with the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum
Wage Ordinance in Hong Kong, the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other relevant regulations. The staff
handbook covers our Group's standard in respect of
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare.

The Group strives to construct a diverse and inclusive workplace
where all our employees are treated with dignity and respect. We
strongly oppose to all discriminatory behaviours against any
individual on their gender, age, nationality, race, colour, disability,
creed, religion, sexual orientation, marital status or family status.
The principle of equal opportunities is applied in all employment
practices, including but not limited to recruitment, promotion and
transfer, work allocation, benefits and training and development.
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The Group has formulated competitive remuneration packages to
retain and motivate employees in achieving key goals of our
Group. We provide remuneration for its employees according to
their qualifications, experience, performance, job duties and
service years as well as to the market benchmark. We perform
salary review on an annual basis to ensure its remuneration
practices are competitive and aligned with market rate. In addition
to salary, we provide mandatory provident fund, allowances,
required social security benefits, medical benefits and variable
incentive-based remuneration such as discretionary bonus to our
employees. Employees are also entitled to various types of leave
including annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave and paternity
leave.

The Group acknowledges the importance of work-life balance and
strives to maintain a supportive and relaxing working environment
for our employees. We organise activities such as annual dinner for
employees to relax and to strengthen their sense of belongings. In
addition to those specified in the Employment Ordinance, we
provide paid or partially paid leaves and support services or
activities for our employees to handle urgent personal and family
matters. We also provide family care and supports to our
employees and/or their family members to bring a positive impact
on their family life. We are committed to building a pleasant
working environment to enhance the happiness of our employees.
During the reporting period, there was no aware of any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that had
significant impact on our Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits
and welfare. Any changes of employment terms will be notified to
staff and agreed in writing to protect the lawful rights and
interests of all employees.
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As at 31 December 2021, the employee compositions (in R2021F 128318 MR- F
percentage) by gender, age group, geographical region, RIE - IZE - EEER RIER
employment category and employment mode are as follows: BEREDHEERMAMT ¢
2021 2020
Employee compositions EEHK 2021 2020 F
By gender g il E-ban
Male - Bi 59% 61%
Female - it 41% 39%
By age group RERES D
Age 30 or below - 30BmEAT 41% 34%
Age 31-40 . 31-40B% 41% 43%
Age 41-50 .« 41-50B% 15% 21%
Age 51 or above . S51BRBLA L 3% 2%
By geographical region R B EIHE 5
Hong Kong . BB 3% 4%
PRC - hE 95% 94%
USA - XM 2% 2%
By employment category REEERE S
Senior management - BREREE 7% 21%
Middle management . RREEE 22% 25%
General - —REER 71% 54%
By employment mode REREXE S
Full-time - 2R 100% 100%
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The employee turnover rates by gender, age group and RIEBRA - IR FEE R
geographical region during the reporting period are as follow: BEIGEDMEEREARIT ¢
2021 2020
Employee turnover rate EERAE 20215 2020
By gender g el E-ban
Male - B 51% 20%
Female - 47% 1%
By age group BERERSD
30 or below « 30BREIMA T 51% 19%
31-40 years old .« 31-408% 49% 11%
41-50 years old - 41-50B% 43% 15%
51 years old and above - SIEMRUALE 61% 67%
By geographical region R EEHE S
The PRC - FE 51% 14%
Hong Kong . BB - 44%
USA . EH 17% 22%
Overall B 50% 16%

mEERARAE 20218 % (0]
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B2. Health and Safety

The Group regards occupational health and safety as its most
important aspect of corporate risk management. The Group
strictly complies with Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
and Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment of
Occupational Diseases. In this year, there were no cases of non-
compliance in relation to health and safety or work-related injury
within the Group.

The Group not only strictly implements relevant laws and
regulations but also proactively formulates internal policies and
standards related to specific business departments of the Group.
The Group's Staff Handbook emphasises safety disciplines
including the execution of safety system, the 5s management
(organisation, rectification, clearing, cleaning and personal
qualities) of workplace, protection and operation standards of
construction safety, etc. Staff should abide by the Production
Safety Law and the Group's safety management regulations and
follows the relevant requirements of safety system certifications.
The Group arranges health checks for staff with over one year of
service annually to ensure they have good physical health. The
Group also provides them with a Work Safety Handbook to
enhance their safety awareness.

The Group has established an internal policy on safety
management and has assigned different safety compliance duties
to different teams in order to reduce potential risk with clear
division of labour. For construction sites, the engineering
management department of the Group is responsible for security
management and prevention of construction site accidents while
the safety management team is in charge of the monitoring of the
entire construction process of the project to protect safety of staff.

During the year, there was no work injury case (2020: nil, 2019: nil)
and lost day due to work injury (2020: nil, 2019: nil) in our business
operation. There was no work-related fatality case (2020: nil, 2019:
nil) during the reporting period. Employees were given paid sick
leave for their recovery. Overall, no employees had serious
accident during the reporting period.
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B3.

Development and Training

The Group is committed to providing continuous training and
learning opportunities to employees to develop their talents and
to expand the Group’s business. The Group has provided
numerous development opportunities throughout the year to
employees at all levels. These include induction training, firm-wide
training and department-specific training. All employees have
equal access to training and development opportunities. We have
established an employee self-education subsidy programme with
the aim to encourage employee to continue self-development.
We also operate a new staff mentoring scheme, aiming to equip
new members of the staff with necessary knowledge and skills to
help them adjust to their new positions.

In future, the Group will continue to provide a wider range of job-
related training programmes to our employees. Besides, we will
consider to enhance employee self-education subsidy programme
to encourage more employees to participate in the training
programmes. We will also consider and establish a staff training
profile to identify the training need of each employee.

During the reporting period, the percentage of employees
received training by gender and employment category was as
follows:

Percentage of employees

ZIEENB DL

received training

B3.

R LI

AEBEY ) HREBREEINEE
e AR RN RIBEAARKE
X5 AEE  AKECAMAER
AmEEREZEERERRS  B1
SIAEI - = B R ARPIAS E IR
il o FREREHE R FAFI RE
EHE  HFKLTREAXEE
EB)ite - EESEEERERT
TR RPTERHE TSR
2 EESHEIZEVENNE
K RBE - BRI o

B AEBESEERRESIRHEE
B2 TEMRRAEIIETE - tboh -
BB ERAEREEIZBED
AE mBEZE T 2REIIE
& - ZMmeE B HIER THII
B2 UHRHEEENIEINIFES -

RIBEHRE - RIEH R EFEERE
DHEIIEENAMDLIT

By gender gl E-ban
Male - Bt 100% N/A A58
Female S ey 96% N/A N3
By employment category RERERES
Senior management BREERE 75% N/A NiE A
Middle management RRERE 98% N/A 713 F
General —fREE 92% N/A 3
Overall 2 100% N/A NiE

The data for year 2020 was not available.

SRS 2020 FEHIEUE o
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RIBEHE - RIEH REFEERS
DHRIMEERERLIT

During the reporting period, the composition of employees
received training by gender and employment category was as

104

follows:

Composition of employees
received training

ZilES AR

By gender R85
Male Eit 64% 46%
Female 7t 36% 54%
By employment category RERERES
Senior management SREREE 5% 8%
Middle management FRERE 24% 23%
General —RES 71% 69%

Furthermore, the average training hou

employment category during the reporting period was as follows:

Average training hours
received per employee

AN - PR BRI R R (R 1R 4R
REIDEFAZ LT

rs by gender and

BEEENTHZINEFH

By gender ZER &5
Male S 1.7 02
Female 7t 1.9 03
By employment category RERERE S
Senior management BREERE 33 05
Middle management FREREE 23 13
General —RIEE 1.1 03
Overall B 18 0.2
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B4.

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to protecting human rights in workplace
and has zero tolerance to the use of child or forced labour during
our operation. The Group understands that child labour and
forced labour violate fundamental human rights and international
labour conventions and may constitute threat to the social and
economic sustainability. According to the Staff Handbook, the
Group strictly complies with the law in its recruitment process to
prohibit the hiring of individuals aged under 16 and any form of
forced labour or involuntary labour. The Group will review the
actual age of new hires by checking their identity documents and
making detailed records. Under the overtime work management
system of the Group, staff can receive rest periods or overtime
subsidy based on the nature of overtime work to avoid involuntary
overtime work. The Group respects staff's right of association and
collective bargaining via legal and peaceful means.

The Group strictly complies with the Provisions on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labor issued by the State Council of the People’s
Republic of China. According to the “Prohibition of Child Labour
Control Procedure” of the Group, person under aged 16 is not
allowed to work in the Group. The Group respects the right and
freedom of employees as stipulated in “Prohibition of forced
labour control procedure”. During the reporting period, the Group
did not have any case related to child labour or forced labour.

B4.
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B5.

Supply Chain Management

As a property developer, the Group actively cooperates with
contractors for property construction services. The Group
recognises contractors and other suppliers as valuable
stakeholders within the supply chain. Their responsible business
behaviours are crucial in contributing to quality excellence of the
property, operational efficiency and good reputation of the Group.
In pursuit of this goal, the Group has formulated the Supplier
Management Practice Guide to regulate management of
construction projects and suppliers of services. The Guide defines
the main duties of relevant departments of the Group and
provides clear guidance with regard to procedures such as the
ranking and categorisation management of suppliers,
qualifications management, selection and assessment, relationship
maintenance and conflict management and handling of non-
compliance.

The Group encourages contractors and subcontractors to use
more environmental friendly equipment and facilities and to
adopt more environmental friendly new technologies. When
contracts are signed with external subcontractors, the Group will
make sure that both parties understand the environmental
requirements and regulations. Construction units responsible for
environmental facilities must hold relevant certificates from their
seniors or government departmental heads. Construction units
must avoid pollution at all costs during their work. In case of
vegetation damage, the construction units must adopt recovery
measures to reduce the negative impact on the environment. The
Group also emphasises on the selection of products that cause
minimal impacts on the environment, for example, the Group has
priority in procuring green construction materials that with greater
energy efficiency, recyclable, with less harmful to the environment
and with less packaging materials, in order to reduce the
environmental impacts.
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Bé6.

The Group equally values the social performance of its supply
chain. In this year, the Group issued an open letter to remind all
business partner units to refrain from offering gifts or benefits of
any kind to staff of the Group. Company name will be removed
from the Group's directory of partners for non-compliance. The
Group encourages business partners to lodge complaints against
or report on staff who request for benefits. Both the Group and its
business partners have to sign the Anti-Corruption Agreement
and abide by laws and regulations of the PRC and the Group in
relation to anti-corruption. At the same time, the Group also
requires construction contractors to assume responsibility for
protecting its workers’ safety on the construction sites and
purchase insurance for them. During the year, we had 125
suppliers (2020: 105 suppliers) in the PRC.

Product Responsibility

The Group recognises that achieving high quality standard of
property development projects and delivering quality product
and services to our customers are crucial to sustainable growth of
the Group. Hence, the Group has stringent control of property
development projects and data protection policy to protect the
interest of our customers. The Group is in strict compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations related to product
responsibility, including Product Quality Law of the PRC and
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. During the reporting period,
the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance on
product responsibility issues.

The Group has also formulated a quality control procedure to
conduct regular monitoring through the internal team and an
independent monitoring company to ensure that all projects
comply with relevant regulations and the standards of the Group
in every stage so that quality and safe buildings can be provided
for the public. Before delivering the property to the buyer, the
customer service management department and the quality
monitoring company conduct a final check to ensure the quality
of the property meets the prescribed standard.
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B7.

far N ER R

In addition, the Group complies with laws and regulations
related to advertising and labelling by stating in detail the
maintenance period, definition of maintenance liability and
maintenance boundary in the commodity property sales
contract, the residential building user guide and residential
property quality warranties. In case of any construction
problems, clients can reach the Group by visiting the property
centre, making a phone appointment or complaining in the
WeChat group. Then, the Group will schedule repair work
accordingly.

Apart from formulating quality control and building
maintenance procedures, the real estate advertisement of the
Group complies with the law and refrain from disseminating
any misleading information. To protect clients’ information,
the Group has included related confidentiality requirements in
the Staff Handbook. To protect clients” interest, staff must keep
the Group's confidential documents and internal information
safe; these include contracts, agreements, statement of
intention, feasibility report and all demand and supply
information and client profiles.

Anti-Corruption

The Group is committed to operating with a high standard of
integrity and accountability. The Group strives to prevent
illegal behaviour such as corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

The Staff Handbook of the Group regulates the code of
conduct and work ethics of staff. Staff cannot request or
accept remuneration from related business contacts. In case
gifts or commissions are received in external business dealings,
it should be handed in to the Group according to the Gift
Management System. The staff should not use company
resources to obtain personal benefits. The Group has
formulated the Hailan Holdings Whistleblowing System to
encourage clients, staff, shareholders and business partners to
report fraudulent behaviour. The Group keeps the identity of
the whistle-blower strictly confidential. The whistle-blower can
report to the audit and legal departments anonymously. The
Group also awards staff who report non-compliance or offer
hints. In this year, there was no reported case, litigation and
case of non-compliance related to corruption within the
Group.
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The Group provides training sessions of anti-corruption to the AEFRESENEIREEERE
directors and staff. During the year, the number of employees SEIEIIERIE o BN - IREREER
received anti-corruption training and the training hours by EoEIRESFEINEE ABE X
employment category are as follows: IS T ¢

Anti-corruption training RETIEI
Number of employees received training ZIMEEHAE
Senior management - SRERE 2 =
Middle management - PREEE 3 =
General . —REE 5 5
Total employees EEHEAE 10 5
Number of training hours 3 HI B Y
Senior management - SREEE 2 =
Middle management . FREEE 3 -
General - —RIEE 10 10
Total training hours #8332 | BF B 15 10
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B8.

Community Investment

The real estate business is closely connected to community
building. The Group endeavours to understand the needs of the
community where it operates. The Group has formulated the
Corporate Social Responsibility Work Management Mechanism to
include social responsibility efforts in the daily management work
planning. When selecting business partners, the Group gives
priority to suppliers located in Hainan in order to strengthen the
relationship between the Group and the local community.

By helping our society to build a healthy and energetic
community, the Group contributes to sustainable development in
the community. Between April and September every year, the
Group will organise a large-scale community campaign in Sanya
Phoenix Water City. To promote community interaction, the Group
has initiated diverse community networking activities which
include interest groups, health activities and cultural and festival
activities. Besides, residents can use a sports mobile app to
accumulate personal mileage in exchange for gifts. Residents can
also choose to donate their mileages on complementary facilities
in the city.

Apart from developing community networking activities, the
Group liaised with charitable organisations around the area to
conduct fund raising activities through an online platform. The
Group organised the “Read for the Blind” campaign by utilizing the
WeChat platform to allow users donate their voice. Each
participating resident can donate one minute of reading through
their cell phones for the blind.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

REPORTING IN

DEX

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

TREE-

A. Environmental
A.RE

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

8 —REERARENER (BREXER)

BREL - Aw KRS R

Section
=6/

Al:Emissions
Al BER
General Disclosure “Emissions” 80
— MR EE [BER |
KPI'AT.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data “Emissions — Air Pollutants 80
BRERIEIR | BEIE SR KB B R Emission”
AL [HER) — ZER5 R BER
KPIAT.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas 81
RASRAEANIEIZ | intensity Emission”
A1.2 BERBAENER (WER)RE [HERY) — R = REsHER
KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, Not applicable to the Group’s N/A
BABRERIEIR | intensity business. NEA
A13 FEAREREDEER (WER)TE TERRAEENET -
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where “Emissions — Waste 83
RASEIEIZ | appropriate, intensity Management”
Al4 FELEEEEYRER (WER)EE [HERY) — EEZYEIR
KPIAT.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas 80-81
RASRAE IR | achieved Emission”
A15 ORI B 2 B FE b SR FTIS ACR [HERY) — R = REEHEM
KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are | “Emissions — Waste 82
RESEAEWIEIZ | handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved Management”
A16 MARERENEERZYNT L REELEENER | (B —EEDERE ]

PEIESTIES
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

TREE €K —-KREERARENER (BREXER)

A2: Use of Resources

Section

=

RS HRE R RARERNEATE LEEKNE
BEEBYENTY

A2 - BIRIER
General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 83
—AREE [BRER]
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total “Use of Resources — Energy” 83
RASRERIEIZ | and intensity [EIREA — R
A2.1 RERNESMERER SAHEERREREREE
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity “Use of Resources — Water” 85
BRENIER | RRKEREE [ERER — K]
A2.2
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results “Use of Resources — Energy” 83-84
RASRAEIEIE | achieved [&RER —selR]
A23 B R0 A e 5T 8 R PTG AR
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water “Use of Resources — Water” 85
RASEAEBIEIZ | thatis fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results [ERER — K]
A24 achieved

sl SRERGE R KR AT (R AT RE - A BB T Rk s st

E S GREINES
KPIA2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if Not applicable to the Group’s N/A
RABRAERIEIZ | applicable, with reference to per unit produced business. TEA
A25 2EQGLEEMGENEKRMASEMHNESE (I | TERAREAEENETRS -

#EA)
A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
A3 P IRIERRAER
General Disclosure “The Environment and Natural 86
—MRHE Resources”

[RIFRRAEIR]

KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the “The Environment and Natural 86
RASRAE MUEIE environment and natural resources and the actions taken to Resources”
A3.1 manage them [RIERRANEIR]
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

FEHE -

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

8 —REERBARENER (BREXER)

A4: Climate Change

A4 RIREE

Section

0]

General Disclosure “Climate Change” 86-91
— AR EE [ R fzE1t ]
KPI A4.1 Policies on identification and mitigation significant climate- “Climate Change” 91-97
RASRAEIEIZ | related issues which have impacted, and those which may [ REEAE
A4.1 impact, the issuer

BRI REHEARAEEHEITAEETENERARK

HEESEENECS -
B. Social
B.4&
Employment and Labour Practices
EBEREIER
B1: Employment
B1 : Ef®
General Disclosure "Employment” 98-99
— MR EE [EfRE]
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and | “Employment” 100
RASRAEIEIZ | geographical region [E1E]
B1.1 MR EEER - FieERMIEREEHE S M EE B
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and “Employment” 1071
BASRAEMIEIE | geographical region [EfE ]
B1.2 RIER - FIREMNERIAEDOERREE
B2: Health and safety
B2 - fEREZLT S
General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 102
— MR R [fERRHZ 2 |
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities No work-related fatalities were =
MRERIER | ATEBEMETHAB KX noted during the reporting period.
B2.1 R EHE - ABEEREIE

BRML TR (EZR -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury No work-related injuries were -
BARGEVIEER | EIEBRLXIIERH noted during the reporting period.
B2.2 RS RE - RERRAILE
FEmIL TR EER -

KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures “Health and Safety” 102
RASRAEMIEIZ | adopted, how they are implemented and monitored [fERREZ 2 |
B23 He R P ER AN A BB SR FERR B 2 45 Bt - DA B R 1T I e

B/HE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

FEHE -

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

8 —REERBARENER (BREXER)

B3: Development and Training

B3 : R MIFT

Section

0]

General Disclosure “Development and Training” 103
—MRIREE [ B R IFHI
KPIB3.1 The percentage of employee trained and employee category | “Development and Training” 103~
MRESIER | XIIEEBSLLREEER [# & KkiEF ] 104
B3.1
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by “Development and Training” 104
RASRAEMIEIZ | gender and employee category [ & KRIE]
B3.2 BRI REELERIE S - BEEEENE K TR E
B4: Labour Standards
B4 : &5 TR
General Disclosure “Labour Standards” 105
—MREE [45 T8 |
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to “Labour Standards” 105
RASEIEIZ | avoid child and forced labour [4 T g |
B4.1 FE R ET R BRI EE e AR R E T R ogH|4 T
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when “Labour Standards” 105
BASEAEBIEIR | discovered [45 T8
B4.2 Fo AT 2230 2 FR B R JH R B A B FTERER A 25 R
Operating Practices
EEEN
BS5: Supply Chain Management
BS : B E IR
General Disclosure “Supply Chain Management” 106
—MRHEE [ E IR |
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region “Supply Chain Management” 107
BRERIER | RMEREE S HHEREE [T
B5.1
KPIB5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, “Supply Chain Management” 106-
RASREIEIZ | number of suppliers where the practices are being [HEEEIRE 107
B5.2 implemented, how they are implemented and monitored

B BERHENRED - mENITERE DA E

A URBEEFNNITRERTE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

TRHE -
B6: Product Responsibility

B6 : EMET

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

8 —REERBARENER (BREXER)

Section

0]

General Disclosure “Product Responsibility” 107
— AR EE [EmEE]
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to No products sold or shipped =
BASRAEMIEIE | recalls for safety and health reasons subject to recalls for safety and
B6.1 EEXCEXEMEHTEAL L EERIZAMARUA | health reasons were noted during
Bkt the reporting period.
RIERE - REEREL 2
Kl BRI | fn 72 Wi [a] 9 2 &5 3K
BEHEER -
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received No products and service related -
RASRAEMIEIE | and how they are dealt with complaints were received during
B6.2 BREBRERMRSHEFEE U REE A the reporting period.
RREHE  REZERERR
BRFSHE B IR
KPI B6.3 Description and practices relating to observing and “Product Responsibility” 107
RASRAEIEIZ | protecting intellectual property rights [EmEE]
B6.3 i it B2 B 2R IR AR P AN EE A G B A 18 01
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall “Product Responsibility” 107-
BASEAEIRIZ | procedures [EmET] 108
B6.4 il E 2R TEBEREMBIIER
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, | “Product Responsibility” 108
RASEEIEIZ | how they are implemented and monitored [EmEE]
B6.5 REBEEERRERILBEE - ARBERTRES
FA
WEHERARAE 2021F% |5
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

FEHE -

B7: Anti-corruption

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

8 —REERBARENER (BREXER)

Section

0]

B7 : RE)S
General Disclosure “ Anti-corruption” 108
—MRHEE E=vEll
KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices | No concluded legal cases were -
RASREZIEIR | brought against the issuer or its employees during the noted during the reporting period.
B7.1 reporting period and the outcomes of the case REEHARN - REFHEER
RREMANEHBETASEREREYEEEMEGTHA | REERMG -
R A RFAER
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing “Anti-corruption” 108-
RASBAEIEIZ | procedures, how they are implemented and monitored [R&E5] 109
B7.2 L SR e b R BB RAR - A RABE I RER A
KPI B7.3 Number of anti-corruption training provided to directors and | “Anti-corruption” 109
BRBERIER | staff [RES]
B73 HlmMEERE TREMNRESHE
Community
#HE
B8: Community Investment
B8 : HLEIKE
General Disclosure “Community Investment” 110
— MR [TtRIEE |
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental “Community Investment” 110
RASEIEIZ | concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport) [tTREE |
BS.1 HEIER®E(WHE  RREH BHTHEFK - 2F -
it - 88E)
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area | “Community Investment” 110
BREBUER | EEFEEFBAER (N FRE) [TtRIEE |
B8.2
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mazZars
B H R K

To the shareholders of Hailan Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hailan Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 125 to 251, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Mazars CPA LIMITED
W2 IR (U ) ot imde s AT s )

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
T WS AT U V0 189

R S 40 M

Tel & & : (852) 2909 5555

Faxf# £ : (852) 2810 0032

Email 8% : info@mazars.hk
Website4 1l : www.mazars.hk
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(REASBEZMA A BRAA])

L
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ERAR(EQAR]) ENBRAR (HBIE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

[BH 2 2 IH

PRt F AR PIRIEF X HE R R T
AR BRENBTRASEENTIA - 5
Jﬁb%ﬁxg&%zﬂiﬁ%;ﬁr%éﬁ RAEMBHRRLHA
BREETEIEN  HMATSHELFHEREH
E?%E"\J%‘ﬁ °

Valuation of properties under development and completed properties held for sale

BEFPYERIFEHECERYELEE

Refer to Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

AL A BREME 1718
The Key Audit Matter
HARESTEE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s properties under
development and completed properties held for sale were
stated at RMB6,889 million and RMB494 miillion respectively. As
disclosed in Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value ("NRV").

R221F12A31H - EXEERTYERFEHERR
KMENRNZ2INAARESIBETRARK 448 E
TL o INERE SRR T 245 - BHRPWEREE
HECEKMERKARAZER FE(TERFED L
BIRERT -

NRV is the estimated selling prices of properties in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and

the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of

residential properties and carparks of the Group may not be
recoverable if their selling prices have declined, or if their
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to be
incurred to make the sale have increased.

""""" ERFERAREHBRETMENGIEE - BUEKA
%aJrWZIK&iE THENGBFTLERA © WMEBTH » i
ERE AR AR EFEEMMGEETRAEN Bl &F

BEEMERFEMARRART—E/JHE -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB NAREZEE

Our key audit procedures to assess the NRV of the Group's
properties under development and completed properties held
for sale included the following:

#Hfpt EEEZBERDYERBFEHESERDENAE
WHENETETBEATEHEHERT

conducting site visits to property development sites, on
sample basis, and discussing with management the
progress and development budgets reflected in the NRV
calculations and the latest forecasts for each property
development project;
HYERERBBETHERSRE  THREEREN
MR R E R FET ENIER EEMBRKATE
HUARZWEERARNSHEA

obtaining and evaluating the NRV calculations prepared
by the management and assessing the qualifications and
experience of those individuals who prepared the
calcu\ationS‘

SR EHEEERAENAIZRFEFESR I
aﬂﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁ% STEROATHERREER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

e s w3 IA ()

JIEY

Valuation of properties under development and completed properties held for sale (Continued)

BEPYERIFEHECERYFE R 141E (F)

Refer to Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

AL E B IREME 17 %18 (4)

The Key Audit Matter (Continued)
REETEE(E)

The calculation of the NRV of each property development
project at the financial reporting date is performed by the
Group’s management. The NRV of certain completed properties
held for sale were assessed with reference to valuations carried
out by an independent qualified professional valuer (the
“Valuer”). The estimation of NRV of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale involves
significant management judgement and estimation in
preparing and updating project feasibility studies and
estimations of the costs to complete each property
development project as well as in assessing the expected future
selling prices for each property and the estimated future selling
costs. The estimation of NRV of certain completed properties
held for sale involves significant judgement on the valuation
basis and methodology used and the assumption applied by
the Valuer. The assumptions adopted in the estimation and
valuation are affected by the expectation of future market or
economics conditions.
BEYFERBEARUBREAHNHITERFENTE
H BEEEEEREET BTHIEHENEZEXYENT
BB FEN2EBLSERERMEEM ([ HERM ) ET
B EEMRL - BRPYERFEHE D ERMERAIEE
FEMNEFS R ER BN RE N EHIER AT M T
BE W EERIE B AR A E A R A TE IR R B IEY) 3
B E B R ALt AR R E AT HE L BV E R A B AL 5L -
ETHREHENEERMEN I EIFEMGLGHS RAER
ERAMMEEERTERERNBRROERAE - FrEm
bt RIEERREXINARRTISHEERANZE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BERWETFONMEEZER (H)

assessing the appropriateness of the estimated selling
prices of the properties used by the management, on
sample basis, with reference to the latest market prices
achieved in the same projects or by comparable
properties, including an evaluation of the appropriateness
of the comparable properties used by the management
of the Group based on our knowledge of the Group's
business and the PRC real estate industry;
2ER-HBNAIELRMERENZHME - R
BEMY BSREEBRTEEMETENRS
MEFHREREBAERANYENEFEERES
B eiETh EEEEEEAMEANTELRY

ERBRE:

evaluating management’s budgets, by reconciling the
significant cost elements to signed construction
contracts, benchmarking the percentage of cost
component, and evaluating the reasonableness of the
estimated cost to completion of the properties under
development and completed properties held for sale, on
a sample basis, by comparing the cost to actual
development cost of similar completed properties and
comparing the adjustments made by the management
to current market data and assessing if they are updated
on a timely basis to reflect any changes in implementation
of management’s plans;

BAKERKARE HEEESREARETREIN
HEERERE  FHERAERE DM A D HKF
SR B AN R OUE R E N BERBERAE -
DA K2 bE BE I T B R IR By T 95 B RHAE S A I - IA
FHEERD YR LRSI RAENMEE
RARBAEMEERERE D ERE AR
BB IR ERT BT TR R MRS
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

o 2 T 2 OE ()

T-UEF

Valuation of properties under development and completed properties held for sale (Continued)

BEFPYERIFEHECERYFE R 141E (F)

Refer to Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

ARG EBEREN T 17 K18 ()

The Key Audit Matter (Continued)
REETEE ()

We identified the assessment of NRV of the Group’s properties
under development and completed properties held for sale as a
key audit matter because of the inherent risks involved in
estimating the costs to complete each property development
project and the future selling prices for each property
development project, particularly in light of the current
economic circumstances in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC).
HMEBN BEEEBERTVENFEHED BERYEN
AR FENEARRENFE  RERMT TRZIME
ERIABNKANEYEREREROARREEMMS LA E
BRER  FHIRERPEARKLNE(PE]) B RIHLHE
AR
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How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BERWETFONMEEZER (H)

re-performing the calculations made by the management

in arriving at the year end assessments of NRV on a

sample basis;

ﬁﬁ“éi%T‘Zﬁ%rﬂ’]i?ﬁ—]“ﬁi%‘ﬁ%‘%ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ
EITENE

reviewing the valuation from the Valuer and discussing
with the management and the Valuer to understand the
valuation basis and methodology used, and underlying
assumptions;
ERHEMNGEELRERERMEEM® - KT
FRPTE AR EREERTTE - U REBRE

evaluating the objectivity, capabilities and competence
of the Valuer; and
FHEHERMEEMN  BENIRBEE &
performing sensitivity analysis to determine the extent of
changes in those estimates and assumptions which,
either individually or collectively, would be required for a
significant change of estimate of the properties under
development and completed properties held for sale and
considering the likelihood of such a movement in those
key estimates arising.
L‘ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ’%ﬁ NETERERPYENIFEH
ERYMERREAGAESATNZELER
TE““(WE%%HIE‘HZEL) MWEBIRE  WERZS
FEHEHREBEBH RN -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information include in the 2021 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

HAE B
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exits. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

P ST A% BRI o

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicated with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

P8 ST AZ B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe those matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29 April 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is:

Chan Chi Wai

Practising Certificate number: P05708
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income
Fra R A M At 2 R R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 ALEFE

2021 2020
20215 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE AR¥T T ARKETT
Revenue U & 4 557,571 720,670
Cost of sales SHE RN (257,877) (394,585)
Gross profit EF 299,694 326,085
Other income EH U A 5 6,732 12,050
Changes in fair value of investment properties & & ¥ % N F{E & 13 (29,978) (1,824)
Realised gain arising from financial assets at & A F (A ABZ ([E QA FEF
fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL"), net Az |)HWEREEMNCD EIH
Wiz F 5 8,538 7,292
Share of results of associates DIREE R R FEE 15 (2,784) (3,505)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B A B B e 36 17,142 -
Gain on disposal of associates k=3 NG o) 15(ii) 4,720 -
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HA (67,587) (43,342)
Provision for credit loss on other receivables  {EH E fth FE U ZIBZ B BB EHE 20 - (1,547)
Administrative expenses THRHX (119,806) (96,778)
Operating profit R EF 116,671 198,431
Finance income B A 5,827 5,461
Finance costs B F& A AR (32,197) (18,458)
Finance costs, net B 75 B AR ER 6 (26,370) (12,997)
Profit before taxation BRE AT R 90,301 185,434
Income tax expenses FriS®if X 7 (132,021) (153,478)
(Loss) Profit for the year FR(EE)&EF 8 (41,720) 31,956
(Loss) Profit for the year attributable to: LU T &IBEGER (BE)HF
Owners of the Company RAEHEBA 15,448 64,034
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR = (57,168) (32,078)
(41,720) 31,956
Earnings per share attributable to KATREEANELRZEREF
owners of the Company (AR ARYSIR)
(expressed in RMB per share)
— Basic and diluted — EARREE 9 0.05 0.21

i B A B W
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
R ARt M AR A T U f5 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 ALEFE

2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

B E ARBTRE ARETE

Other comprehensive loss: Htt2EEE :
Items that are/may be reclassified subsequently &1 Bl @R AEEZH FHEE

to profit or loss: EammEE -
Exchange differences on translation of REMBRERIEINEER

financial statements to EH ZRE

presentation currency (4,299) (11,446)
Reclassification adjustment related to PERINETS A E I D HFHE

the disposal of foreign operations 36 (256) -
Other comprehensive loss for theyear, REEZFREMEZEER

net of tax (4,555) (11,446)
Total comprehensive (loss) income FRE2ME(EHER) WAH#LE

for the year (46,275) 20,510
Total comprehensive (loss) income UTEEBEEGEE(BE)

attributable to: WA %E -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ RSN 12,552 53,649
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR (58,827) (33,139)
Total comprehensive (loss) income FREME(EE) KA#LE

for the year (46,275) 20,510
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR BB IR LR

As at 31 December 2021
R2021F 12 A31 H

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B &E AR¥T R AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MRE 11 34,908 37,127
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 12 = 957
Investment properties WEYME 13 75,177 105,155
Intangible assets mHEE 14 1,003 239
Interests in associates KRB N R A 15 9,038 109,020
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H 0 EWGRIA 20 5,565 206,513
Deferred tax assets EERIIEE E 26 40,543 34,969
166,234 493,980
Current assets REEE
Properties under development BRPYE 17 6,888,536 4625077
Completed properties held for sale FHEHE DB 18 494,415 374,873
Contract costs BRI 19 91,381 55,161
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H ih e kI8 20 324,231 266,321
Deposits paid for acquisition of o B £ 1 AN 3 ST S RIET &
land and properties 21 - 680,000
Current tax assets BIHATR IR & B 26 50,490 10,679
Financial assets at FVPL BEAFEFABENESREE 16 2,607 5,654
Restricted cash ZEFIHEEe 22(a) 453,731 304,042
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEBEY 22(b) 454,088 727489
8,759,479 7,049,296
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables 2 5 RHEMERFRIE 23 2,048,088 1,556,320
Contract liabilities BHBE 24 2,874,733 1,684,632
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMER 25 472,400 703,154
Lease liabilities HERE 12 - 1,049
Current tax liabilities BVERTIE & & 26 213,661 124,105
5,608,882 4,069,260
Net current assets REEEFE 3,150,597 2,980,036
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR 3,316,831 3,474,016
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR BB IR LR

As at 31 December 2021
R2021F 12 A31 H

2021 2020
20214 2020 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T ARET T ARETIT
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMER 25 1,168,502 1,050,532
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIBAE 26 491,804 509,526
1,660,306 1,560,058
NET ASSETS AEFRE 1,656,525 1913958
Capital and reserves EXRf#EE
Share capital A% A 27 2,585 2,585
Reserves #E 27(0) 1,467,029 1,481,968
Equity attributable to owners of AATEEAELER
the Company 1,469,614 1,484,553
Non-controlling interests SRR = 35 186,911 429,405
TOTAL EQUITY RS 1,656,525 1,913,958

These consolidated financial statements on pages 125 to 251 were approved $125B &2 F 51 BN ZEE A M BHRE N
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2022 and signed 202244 A 20 B REES#tE RIFRETZ - I

on its behalf by:

A TATRERRE

Zhou Li Fan Wenyi
e 38 3%
Director Director
EE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ARo B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARAARS
Transactions
with non- (Accumulated
controlling Statutory losses) Non-
Share Share QOther interests surplus Retained Exchange Total controlling Total
capital premium reserve feserve reserve profits reserve reserves Sub-total interests equity
AR
e B AfEE BRbE ERGE Bk gt SRfES s
RMB100 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMBI000 RMB1000 RMB1000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR AREFT ARETT ARBTT ARETFT AREFT ARBTT ARETT AREFT
(Note 27(b)) (Note 27(c)(i)) (Note 27(c)(ii) (Note 27(c)fii)) (Note 27(c)(iv)) (Note 27(c)(v)
(Eoe)  (WEoen)  Eom  (WEoom)  (E0m) (W 2700)
Balanceasat1January2020 3420205151 RIS 2585 236791 1301582 47476 182986 (15783) 6805 1849857 1852442 4743 2117185
Profit (Loss) for the year EREf(E8) - - - - - 64034 - 64034 64034 (32078) 3195
Other comprehensive loss ERENZESE
for the year.
Exchange differences on BEBRRAZI RS
translation of financial HELES
statements to presentation
currency - - - - - - (10385) (10,385 (10,385) (1,061) (11,446)
Total comprehensive ERZERA
income (loss) for the year (BB 88 - - - - - 64,034 (10385) 53649 53,649 (33139) 20510
Transactions with owners: BERNETNRG
Changes in ownership interests BHRERZ
Contributions from non-controlling  JEE2BRIER A E
interests - - - - - - - - - 282884 282884
Changes in ownership interests
ina subsidiary without change
incontrol - - - (421,098) - - - (421098) (42109) 86,111) (507,209
Non-controllinginterestsarsing B MR 2 B1& £4)
fiomacquisition of asuosiciary  FEIRHIER - - - (440) - - - (440) (440) 108 568
- - - (421538) - - - (421538) (421538) 197801 3737
Balance as at #20205128318
31 December 2020 and 200151518658
1January 2021 2,585 236,791 1,391,582 (374,062) 182,986 48,251 (3,580) 1,481,968 1,484,553 429,405 1,913,958
Profit (Loss) for the year ERgtl(B8) - - - - - 15,448 - 15,448 15,448 (57,168) (41,720)
Other comprehensive loss FREMZESE
for the year.
Exchange differences on BERBRRAZIIEE
ranslation offinancial HERER
statements to presentation
currency S 5 © = = © (2640) (2,640) (2,640) (1,659) (4,299)
Reclassification adjustment related to (£ &85 S 75188
the disposal of foreign operations B HEFE
(Note 36) (Hi&E36) = = = = - - (256) (256) (256) - (256)
Total other comprehensive FREMRAEE
loss for the year &% - - - - - - (2,89%) (2,89%) (2,896) (1,659) (4,555)
Total comprehensive ERZERA
income (loss) for the year (F518) a8 - - - - - 15,448 (2,896) 12,552 12,552 (58,827) (46,275)
Transactions with owners
Changes in ownership interests
Contributions from
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - 700 700
Changes in ownership interests
in a subsidlary without change
in control (Note 35(a)) ( - - - (27,491) - - - (27,491) (27,491) 8,802 (18,689)
Non-controlling interestsarising ~~ EBHBARIELES
flomacquisiion of asubsidlary  FERHIERS (W& 37)
(Note 37) - - - - - - - - - 2,997 2,997
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36)  HEMBA (T 36) - - - - - - - - - (196,166) (196,166)
- - - (27,491) - - - (27,491) (27,491) (183,667) (211,158)
Balance as at R2021512 83188
31 December 2021 2,585 236,791 1,391,582 (401,553) 182,986 63,699 (6,476) 1,467,029 1,467,614 186,911 1,656,525
WEHERARAE 2021F% 20



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EEHRSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE20201F12A31BILFE

2021 2020
2021 % 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5E AR¥ET T ARETTT
Cash flows from (used in) operating RETHEE (TR NEESR
activities
Cash from (used in) operations SEEA(FTR)MIRS 33(a) 113,868 (872,150)
Interest paid EAFE (78,292) (40,720)
Income tax paid BETFSH (114,426) (121,833)
Net cash used in operating activities KEETE TR & F R (78,850) (1,034,703)
Cash flow from (used in) investing RETBHEE(FTR)NWEESR
activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BMENEE (1,024) (758)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE (924) -
Purchase of financial assets at FVPL BEEAFET ABZH
$ & E (2,606,100) (3,776,000)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at FVPL  $5&E1Z A FEF ABRN
TREEMSIE 2,617,638 3,781,092
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—EMB AR 37 (4,196) -
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — B & A RIS SRR 15 70,401 -
Net cash outflow for disposal of subsidiaries HEHBARAIRS AL T 36 (30,058) -
Interest received = U F B 5,827 5,461
Loan to associates MEE QB ER - (65,681)
Repayment from an associate BtE N BIER 11,226 78,445
Advance to associates Bl IR (18,528) (20,293)
Advance to a joint venture MEERERK = (75672)
Advance to a non-controlling shareholder BEEA SN - (44,414)
Loan to a related party M EEE T B - (500)
Repayment from third parties EZHER 17,305 -
Loan to third parties ME=FER (1,973) (16,128)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities RETENEL (FTFH)AHE 2 F5E 59,594 (134,448)
Cash flow (used in) from financing RMETEE(FTA)EENESR
activities
New bank borrowings raised g iR ITRE 33(b) 592,937 770,000
New other borrowings raised s H gk 33(b) 128,590 1,607,710
Repayment of bank borrowings BEPBITER 33(b) (177,228) (4,666)
Repayment of other borrowings BEHEMER 33(b) (758,519) (1,151,060)
Capital contributions from non-controlling JEFEER AL E
interests 700 69,302
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling WBE T IR AR A 1 3K
interests 35(a) (74,837) (179,938)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEBE 33(b) (1,059) (1,864)
Advance from non-controlling shareholders FEIE AR AR R B TR 33(b) 11,755 72415
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders BEE2 S 33(b) (91,090) (64,999)
(Repayment to) advance from a former EED] 3Hiﬂxﬂy\$}am)\
non-controlling shareholder 7 I AR B TR 33(b) (6,000) 1,963
Advance from related parties A 33(b) 176,564 32,666
Repayment to related parties I A B 77 4 K 33(b) (50,980) -
Net cash (used in) from financing activities B EEE) (BT ) EL RS FEE (249,167) 1,151,529
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

)\%Aﬁi{ ILE%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE20201F12A31BILFE

2021 2020

2021 % 2020

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

B 5E AR¥ET T ARETTT

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERREZBEYRO EE (268,423) (17,622)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of REVNIRS MIREEEY

the year 727,489 752,080

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes GNGE RSB B (4,978) (6,969)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of RERBEEREESR
the year, represented by cash and BITHBZRAER

bank balances ReEEY 22(b) 454,088 727,489

i B A B W
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

m$

o B R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

1.

2.1.

132

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hailan Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 31 August 2015 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Company Law Chapter 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of registered office of the
Company is PO Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, the Cayman Islands. The principal places of business of the
Company in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong
are 2/F, No. 1 Building Hampton by Hilton, No. 169 Yu Lin Road, Tianya
District, Sanya, the Hainan Province, the PRC and Room 2212, 22/F, The
Center, 99 Queen'’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in investment holding, properties development, sale
and rental of developed properties. The Company and its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the “"Group”.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"),
which include all HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements is historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL")
which have been measured at fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

2.1.

2.2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2020
consolidated financial statements except for the adoption of the new/
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and effective from the
current year as detailed in Note 2.2 to the consolidated financial
statements. A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out in Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/revised
HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16: Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial reporting
when a company replaces the old interest rate benchmark with an
alternative benchmark rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark
reform (the “Reform”). The amendments complement those issued in
November 2019 and relate to:

changes to contractual cash flows — a company will not have to
derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of financial instruments
for changes required by the Reform, but will instead update the
effective interest rate to reflect the change to the alternative
benchmark rate;

hedge accounting — a company will not have to discontinue its
hedge accounting solely because it makes changes required by
the Reform, if the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria;
and

disclosures — a company will be required to disclose information
about new risks arising from the Reform and how it manages the
transition to alternative benchmark rates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.
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3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued the following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS12

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

T g B =

=

The effective date to be determined

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Proceeds before Intended Use®
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®
2018-2020 Cycle?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®
Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Insurance Contracts®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative
information®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these
new standards and amendments will have no material impact on the

Group's results and financial position in the future.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, TEEFTEORME

POLICIES
Basis for consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from owners of the
Company, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation,
are measured initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of measurement basis is
made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are initially measured at fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described below. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Company.
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2.4.

136

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis for consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, and (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and recognises (i) the fair value
of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or accumulated
profits/losses, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by
or to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, joint venture or others as appropriate from the date when
control is lost.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e. existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

In the Company'’s statement of financial position which is presented
within these notes, an investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses. The carrying amount of the investment is reduced to
its recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher than the
recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are accounted for under the
equity method of accounting, except when the investment or a portion
thereof is classified as held for sale. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the investee's net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment. Except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses of the
investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the
investee, which includes any long term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net investment in the investee.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investees, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at
FVPL at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

Fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, TEEFTEORME (4)

POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Vehicles 25%
Electronic devices 33.33%
Machines, furniture, office equipment and others 20%
Buildings 5%

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period. The fair
value reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases
and other assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
investment property under current market conditions and is adjusted for
separately recognised assets or liabilities to avoid double-counting assets
or liabilities.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or
disposal.
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2.4.

140

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Completed properties held for sale and properties under development
would be transferred to investment properties when, and only when,
there is a change in use, evidenced by the following criteria: (a) the
properties meet the definition of investment properties; (b) the Group
has prepared a business plan that reflects the future rental income
generated by the property and this is supported with evidence that
there is demand for rental space; (c) the Group can demonstrate that it
has the resources, including the necessary financing or capital, to hold
and manage the investment property; (d) the change in use is legally
permissible; (e) if the property must be further developed for the change
in use, the development has commenced and (f) change in use is
approved by the board of directors.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value (‘NRV") and comprise land use rights, aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages and other direct expenses,
an appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing cost. NRV
represents the estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless the
construction period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties held
for sale or investment properties if appropriate.

The land held for future development represents parcels of land owned
by the Group for the purpose of development of properties for sale. The
land is initially stated at lower of cost and NRV and is not depreciated.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
NRV. Cost is determined by an apportionment of the total development
costs for that development project, attributable to unsold properties.
The NRV is determined by reference to the estimated selling prices of
properties sold in the ordinary course of business less selling expenses.

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2.4, FHEr

AT EORMEE (81)

BE Wk (4)

REERYMERERER  HIEHEE
ERMENBERTOEREER/REY
X EGUTIERBEKE: @BWENA
KREMEZEE  OAKECHREERD
AEIRBREMERELEZARREZ W
A URBEZEMERZEFEFF O
$%lﬁ%ﬁ€ﬁﬂ1ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁ&ﬁ%
EZER(BREVLERERER)  (d)E
fiu.ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ&“ i (e)ﬁ%ﬂ%%/,ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂk
""""" BIEE— SRR ﬁﬁ%ﬁé@aﬁﬁﬂé P & ()
BN

FRrh 3k

ER\YFRERARAIZEEFE( TS
BEE] Z2BEEIR KABFEL
EMHE  BERRA  MH R ER
FehEtEEMAS  BELAORE
BERNREERA - AR FERMGHE
EERBMARINA  URHEDME
PREELRIARA -

BRTMESBRRBEE - FRIFEE
STRERMEREIRE 2 2EMBBIE
FEEBRY - RTR MEBEERIE
HECERDESREME (WER) -

FIERRBER Z DR ASEERFED
EMEERMEE 2L - LHOTR
PR R A R EMBEESIR - WA
TIHE -

SR (iR ARSI KV E S

B B TR AR R S AT %
EME 2 BIEETIE - RAERENE
R RIR B BB B AR 2 5 B L
BT TRRFEDSER—MEBHB
R DEnEz A EEAHENLE

E o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021E1283181EEE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, TEEFTEORME (4)

POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost. After initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Amortisation
commences when the intangible assets are available for use. The
following useful lives are applied:

Software 10 years

The amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset, including property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, interests in associates and intangible assets, is required, the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade
date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the Group's
contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial asset expire or
(i) the Group transfers the financial asset and either (a) it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
or (b) it neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a significant
financing component) are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in
the case of financial assets not carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade
receivables are initially measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i) measured at
amortised cost; (i) debt investment measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at FVPL.
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HE2021F 12831 HILFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the

Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the

financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial assets are

not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group

changes its business model for managing them, in which case all

affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first annual
reporting period following the change in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host is an asset
within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated from the host. Instead,
the entire hybrid contract is assessed for classification.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of
the following conditions and is not designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses arising from impairment, derecognition or
through the amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include trade and
other receivables, restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

144

A B R M T

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

2

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are not measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI, including financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at
FVPL, financial assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
and financial assets that are otherwise required to be measured at
FVPL. They are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss
recognised in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or interest
income is presented separately from fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i)

(iif)

acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;

part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition; or

a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or not a
designated and effective hedging instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at FVPL only if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on different

bases.

The Group's financial assets measured at FVPL include unlisted equity
securities and structured deposits.
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2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the liability is
extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in the
case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, lease
liabilities and bank and other borrowings. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder of the
contract for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair
value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee.

Subsequently, the financial guarantee is measured at the higher of (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised in accordance with HKFRS 15 and (ii) the
amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss ("ECL") model under HKFRS 9, unless the financial
guarantee is measured at FVPL or arises from a transfer of a financial
asset.
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2.4.

146

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost issued to which the impairment
requirements apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group
measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the
lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset
has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present
value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the financial
instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to an entity under the
contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

For a financial guarantee contract, the entity is required to make
payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, cash
shortfalls are the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit
loss that it incurs less any amounts that the entity expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other party. If the asset is fully
guaranteed, the estimation of cash shortfalls for a financial guarantee
contract would be consistent with the estimations of cash shortfalls for
the asset subject to the guarantee.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument while 12-month
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments
are grouped based on the following one or more shared credit risk
characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since initial recognition.
The resulting changes in the loss allowance are recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the case of
Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve
(recycling).

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for
internal credit risk management purposes as historical experience
indicates that the Group may not receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full if the financial instrument that meets any of the following
criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group); or

(i) thereis a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty.
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2.4.

148

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that
a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account in the
assessment:

the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or interest on
the due dates;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

actual or expected changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have or may have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes a
party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing the financial instrument
for impairment. For financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers
the changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

As detailed in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements, loan to/
amounts due from a related party and non-controlling shareholders are
determined to have low credit risk.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing components or
otherwise for which the Group applies the practical expedient not to
account for the significant financing components, the Group applies a
simplified approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
include observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c)  thelender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation.

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

() the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount
that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovering the contractual cash flows on a financial asset
in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group expects no significant
recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into account
legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in
profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
equivalents represent short-term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of bank overdrafts.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, TEEFTEORME (4)

POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Expenditures for which a provision has been recognised are
charged against the related provision in the year in which the
expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.4.

152

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, TEEFTEORME (4)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Rental income under operating leases is recognised when the properties
are let out and on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when the Group'’s
rights to receive dividend is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost or
Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss allowance)
in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods

The nature of the goods provided by the Group is sales of properties.
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2.4.

154

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods promised in a
contract with a customer and identifies as a performance obligation
each promise to transfer to the customer either:

(@)  agood (orabundle of goods) that is distinct; or

(b)  a series of distinct goods that are substantially the same and that
have the same pattern of transfer to the customer.

A good that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of the following
criteria are met:

(@)  the customer can benefit from the good either on its own or
together with other resources that are readily available to the
customer (i.e. the good is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group's promise to transfer the good to the customer is
separately identifiable from other promises in the contract (i.e. the
promise to transfer the good is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised good (i.e. an asset) to a customer.
An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that
asset.

The Group transfers control of a good over time and, therefore, satisfies a
performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset (for

example, work in progress) that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced; or
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2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(c) the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the Group satisfies
the performance obligation at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the promised asset. In determining when the transfer
of control occurs, the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.

Sale of properties is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains the physical possession or the legal title of the completed
property and the Group has present right to payment and the collection
of the consideration is probable.

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing component (i.e. the
customer or the Group is provided with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer), in determining the
transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised consideration for the
effects of the time value of money. The effect of the significant financing
component is recognised as an interest income or interest expense
separately from revenue from contracts with customers in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is commensurate with the
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e. the interest rate
that discounts the cash selling price of the goods to the amount paid in
advance or arrears), the prevailing market interest rates, the Group's
borrowing rates and other relevant creditworthiness information of the
customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS
15 and does not adjust the consideration for the effect of the significant
financing component if the period of financing is one year or less.
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2.4.

156

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, the contract is
presented as a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or the Group
has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group transfers a good to the customer, the contract is presented as
a contract liability when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). A receivable is the Group's right to consideration
that is unconditional or only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. Contract assets and
contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net
basis.

For the sale of properties, it is common for the Group to receive from the
customer the whole or some of the contractual payments before the
services are completed or when the goods are delivered (i.e. the timing
of revenue recognition for such transactions). The Group recognises a
contract liability until it is recognised as revenue. During that period, any
significant financing components, if applicable, will be included in the
contract liability and will be expensed as accrued unless the interest
expense is eligible for capitalisation.

Contract costs

Contract costs are either incremental costs of obtaining or costs (other
than those that are accounted for as inventories, property, plant and
equipment, or intangible assets) to fulfil contracts with customers.
Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

The costs to obtain contracts are capitalised if they are incremental and
recoverable. The capitalised costs are amortised over the term of the
specific existing and anticipated contracts to which the costs relate. The
Group applies the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 and recognises the
incremental costs as an expense when incurred if the amortisation
period of the asset that the Group otherwise would have recognised is
within the same annual reporting period.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Contract costs (Continued)

The costs to fulfil contracts are capitalised if the costs relate directly to an
existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated contract,
generate or enhance resources that will be used to provide goods in the
future, and are expected to be recovered. Other costs of fulfilling a
contract, which are not capitalised as inventory, property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as incurred. The costs are
amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods under the specific existing and anticipated
contracts to which the costs relate.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds (a) the remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange for the
goods to which the asset relates; less (b) the costs that relate directly to
providing those goods and that have not been recognised as expenses.
A reversal of impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when the
impairment conditions no longer exist or have improved provided the
increased carrying amount of the asset shall not exceed the amount that
would have been determined if no impairment loss had been
recognised previously.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The Group joins in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the "MPF
Scheme”) for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, TEEFTEORME (4)

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at
inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term leases and
low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components from
lease components, and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease contract as
a lease separately. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a separate
component are considered to be part of the total consideration that is

allocated to the separately identified components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the
commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises:

(@)  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(b)  any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentives received;

(c)  anyinitial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it
is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.
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HE2021F 12831 HILFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses and
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. Depreciation is
provided on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
the estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of
the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the
Group will exercise a purchase option — in which case depreciation is
provided over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as
follows:

Office premises 3 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise the following payments for the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement
date:

(@)  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable;

(b)  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

(c)  amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees;

(d)  exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, or where it is not readily determinable, the incremental borrowing
rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.
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2.4.

160

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate when there
are changes to the lease payments arising from a change in the lease
term or the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount rate when
there is a change in the residual value guarantee, the in-substance fixed
lease payments or the future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating interest
rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using a revised discount
rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. If the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further
reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises
any remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if:

(@)  the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price

to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the
effective date of the lease modification,

(@)  the Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract on
the basis of relative stand-alone price as described above.

(b)  the Group determines the lease term of the modified contract.
(c)  the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised

lease payments using a revised discount rate over the revised
lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, TEEFTEORME (4)

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

(d)  for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the
Group accounts for the remeasurement of the lease liability by
decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect
the partial or full termination of the lease and recognising any gain
or loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease in
profit or loss.

(e)  for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by making a corresponding
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance lease or an
operating lease at the inception date of the lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease contract as
a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on a relative stand-alone price basis.

As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in
HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as a new lease
from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.
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2.4.

162

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currency transaction

The Company's functional currency is Hong Kong Dollars (‘HKD”) and
majority of its subsidiaries have RMB as their functional currency. The
Company’s consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB
because management considers that a substantial majority of the group
companies are in the PRC and the Group primarily generates and
expends cash in RMB. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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HE2021F 12831 HILFE

2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency transaction (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's chief operating decision
maker i.e. the Group's most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4, FEEFIBURMEE (4)
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties I5H Wk s
A party is considered to be related to the Group when: EHRUATER  — ARG AHEASE

cELE

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and @ FABZBATHZBEALZAER
that person: KERRE  MazaATL:
() has control or joint control over the Group; (i) THlsk LRI HIAER
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HEREEBEERTE 3k
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the iy AREEBEZXEZEEBEAEN
Group. KE °
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions ) FZHABEUFE TIEA—IEKE
applies: "
() the entity and the Group are members of the same group; () ZEREASEER—%E
Eolp4=NG]
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (i) —HEBRSEE(HE—
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other EEMEAA - MEBAFK
entity); A ZME AR BEE & A Elsk
RN
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (il ZEBERASEHAER—
third party; =FREEDRE
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other (vv —HERBARE=FEENEG
entity is an associate of the third entity; EhE ME—BEBREZS

= ERH Hﬁ%%l‘\j ;

5
&

ﬁ%&ﬁ%?&%ﬁﬂ%%ﬂ :

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit v ZEER
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the ZETEM IR ABRNEE
Group; HASEEANERES
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person Vi) ZEREMHEE@ERMATES
identified in (a); sk EES
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the i) R@OETA ¥ ZE S
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of & ﬁﬁ/@_ﬁﬂg*xa B (3
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or ERNOSRRDNEEEEA
83
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, Vi) ZER HMESE 2T
provides key management personnel services to the Group. MR EMAEERREES
BABRRT
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic

partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes subsidiaries of
the associate and a joint venture includes subsidiaries of the joint

venture.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements

m$

3.

166

requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and

liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of

contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and

estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in

the future.

3.1. Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

(@

Fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group are measured at fair
value, which were valued based on the appraised market
value by the directors. Such valuation is made based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties and
might materially differ from actual results. In making the
estimation, reasonable consideration has been given to the
underlying assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period i.e. by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices and
monthly rental for similar properties in the surrounding
areas.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31
December 2021 was RMB75,177,000 (2020: RMB105,155,000).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement, are stated in Note 13 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

3.1. Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

3.

(ii)

Net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale

Properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Based on the Group's recent experience and the
nature of the subject property, the Group makes estimates
of the selling price, the costs of completion in case for
properties under development, and the costs to be incurred
in selling the properties.

Total budgeted costs for properties under development
comprise costs for land use rights, aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages and other
direct expenses, an appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing cost. In estimating the total budgeted costs,
management makes reference to information such as (i)
current offers from contractors and suppliers; (ii) recent
offers agreed with contractors and suppliers; and (iii)
professional estimation on construction and material costs.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in
net sales value, provision for completed properties held for
sale and properties under development may be resulted.
Such provision requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, the carrying value and provision for properties in
the periods in which such estimate is made will be adjusted
accordingly.

Given the volatility of the PRC property market and the
distinctive nature of individual properties, the actual
outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may be higher or
lower than estimated at the end of the reporting period.
Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect profit
or loss in future years.

3.

R Eat b E S (4)

1. R et A e 1 (4])

(ii)

BRTUERFFELHESE
BHIR 2 P2 R FE

ERTOMEREFFEHEDRR
FX ) 56 T $2 B AN B2 B] 3R %
BEFOBREEIR - ZERA
SEIHONERUARIZENY
EHNMEE AEEMGHE
B BRTYEHR AR
VAR WD SR EE A OB

BRTYENEBERLRE
BIATEBEMBA - LiE

FAtE - BEBRAA - MH R
HeEm FehHEMEER

Y OEELANEEEAR
BENE - EHETEBEERK
A EEELXEZ()EAES
At EE A RATHE ()i
HEERe s RHERT TN
HE i) BE R R AR
KIS XEEFTEER -

i 3% TR AN 38 DN X 3K 5 5B
B BIATRE A B R EHE
BEERMERBERTYES
R MATRRERARE
A # B e (A 5T - W TR A R
RIRMER - RAIB R ENME
st E A REE R &G
EAEIRERR -

ERTFEMEDTHERBITE
i 18 51 % 5 1B BFER - DAAK
ARWAFTENERERRA
EEmE WARMAEFEAM
BB o B VAR AT E R B2
BERRFENEE

WRRERARAT 20214 #

167



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 /N Y, 23
w5 R R
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE021F12A38ILFE

3.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 3.
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

3.1. Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

R Eat b E S (4)

3.1, Mk A igEsE v (41)

168

(iii)

(iv)

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT")

LAT in the PRC is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from the sales of the properties less deductible
expenditures including land cost, borrowing cost, other
property development expenditures.

When calculating the LAT, the Group needs to estimate the
deductible expenditures and makes judgement on the
relevant tax rate on an individual property basis under the
relevant applicable tax laws and regulations. Given the
uncertainties of the calculative basis of LAT to be
interpreted by the local tax bureau, the actual outcomes
may be higher or lower than that estimated at the end of
the reporting period. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the balances at the end of each
reporting period, such differences will impact the LAT
expense and LAT provision in the period in which the
differences are realised.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for certain temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred
tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2021 was RMB22,160,000 (2020: RMB24,384,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2021
was RMB194,085,000 (2020: RMB16,004,000). Further details
are contained in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

3.1. Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

3.

(v)

(vi)

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group's management estimates the loss allowance for
trade and other receivables and amount due from/loan to
associates by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which is
based on the Group's historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of amount due from/loan to associates.
Details of the key assumption and inputs used in estimating
ECL are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Allocation of construction cost on properties under
development

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the
development projects into phases. Costs directly related to
the development of a phase are recorded as the cost of
such phase. Costs that are common to several phases are
allocated to each phase based on the saleable floor area of
each phase as a percentage of the total saleable floor area
of the entire project.

3.2. Critical Accounting Judgements

(i)

Classification of operating lease — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases for
properties in its investment property portfolio. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the leases, that it retains all the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of these properties which are
leased out as operating leases.

3.
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3.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 3.
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

3.2. Critical Accounting Judgements (Continued)

R Eat b E S (4)

3.2. B s & atA B (80

170

(ii)

(iii)

Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Judgement is made by management on determining
whether a property is designated as an investment property
or a property held for sale. The Group considers its intention
for holding the properties at the early development stage of
the related properties. During the course of construction,
the related properties under construction are accounted for
as properties under development included in current assets
if the properties are intended for sale after completion,
whereas, the properties are accounted for as investment
properties under construction included in non-current
assets if the properties are intended to be held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion of
the properties, the properties held for sale are transferred to
completed properties held for sale and are stated at the
lower of cost and NRV, while the properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation are transferred to
completed investment properties and are subject to
revaluation at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as those
earnings are not expected to be distributable in the
foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities are
disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. s B i E R
4.1. Revenue 4.1. Wi
The principal activities of the Group are development, sales and AEENTEEB LN -
lease of properties in the PRC. HENMMEEME -
Revenue mainly represented income from sales and rental of WHFBIEREHEREEYE
properties and net of sales related taxes. A HNER SHE FERA TR B R A o
The amount of each significant category of revenue is as follows: ZxEBWHEReREIOT
2021 2020
2021 % 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARETE

Sales of properties: MFEIHE -
— Development projects — #RIEE (TREBEEMN—H)

(excluding Danzhou Phase ) 552,928 715,126
Rental income from investment properties: & & WM EWA
— Development projects —HEER (TRIEEMN—)

(excluding Danzhou Phase I) 3,039 4329
— Danzhou Phase | — &N —Hf 1,604 1,215

557,571 720,670

WEERARA T 20214% ] 7]
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

4.
(Continued)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

NN
B

et B o FE R (48)

172

4.1. Revenue (Continued) 4.1. Wik (@)
Disaggregation of revenue W5
2021 2020
2021 5 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AREETIT
Other sources of revenue: E YA OB
Rental income from investment properties & & WM EU A 4,643 5,544
Under the scope of HKFRS 15, Revenue from A ZE BB 1§ iR & I 1558
contracts with customers: SHEANEF &AW
Timing of revenue recognition WAt 2 B R ) R i)
— At a pointin time — RE —#FE2h 552,928 715,126
557,571 720,670

4.2.

The amount of revenue recognised for the year ended 31
December 2021 that was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year is RMB440,285,000 (2020: RMB437,716,000).

Segment reporting
Business segments

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting system,
the Group has chosen business segment information as the
reporting format for the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

No geographical segment information is separately presented as
the Group's business segments are mainly managed and operated
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The major market of
the Group's business segments is the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

4.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
4.2. Segment reporting (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on the line of reporting, and has two reportable

operating segments as follows:

I, Development projects (excluding Danzhou Phase | but

including Danzhou Phase 1)

The Company’s executive Directors consider that the
Group's development projects refer to the development
and sales of residential and commercial property units

mainly in the PRC.

I1. Danzhou Phase |

Danzhou Phase | project (‘Danzhou Phase I') refers to the
development and sales of residential property units under
phase | developed by Danzhou Shuang Lian Property
Development Company Limited (‘Danzhou Shuang Lian")
in Hainan Province, the PRC (Note 35 to the consolidated

financial statements).

The executive Directors, being the chief operating decision
makers, monitor the operating results of its business units
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource

allocation and performance assessment.

Income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not allocated

to operating segments.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

Segment assets and liabilities include all assets and liabilities of the

Group, which are managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to

those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit (loss) is “adjusted
EBIT" i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest and taxes”, where
“interest” is regarded as including investment income. To arrive at
adjusted EBIT the Group's earnings (losses) are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual segments.

B
B

et B o FE R (48)

4.2. S EBHEE (48)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

4.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. iss B A E R (4E)
(Continued)
4.2. Segment reporting (Continued) 4.2. 4k (4)

DREE  BEEREEER)

#H = 20219 M 2020128318 1
FERABAEEATREDEBER

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is set out below.

174

HWT -
Development Projects Danzhou Phase | Total
BRER - &zt
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
2021% 2000% 20215 00% 2021% W0%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Fortheyearended 31 December ~ EZ12A31HLLEE ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Revenue from external customers NEEPYE 555,967 719455 1,604 1215 557,57 720670
Inter-segment revenue PEbEbE - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue BYREN YR 555,967 719455 1,604 1215 557,571 720670
Reportable segment gross profit ETRENHEN 298,190 305099 1,504 %6 299,694 326085
Reportable segment profit loss) ETaENHaMN(BB)
(acfusted EB) (B ) 101,389 179388 12 (299 101,401 179,089
Asat 31 December R12A318
Reportable segment assets BYRENDEE 8,830,192 7445324 95,521 97952 8925713 7543276
Including: B
Cash and cash equivalents RERALSED 453,892 724987 196 2500 454,088 727489
Properties under development YRhyE 6,888,536 4625077 - - 6888536 4625077
Completed properties held for sale BERERERNR 403,515 283,889 90,900 90984 494,415 374873
Investment properties RENE 73,977 103485 1,200 1670 75177 105,155
Reportable segment liabilities A¥REIBAR 7265213 5617750 3,975 11568~ 7,269,188 5629318
Including: B
Trade and other payables Lo REMENTIE 2,044,496 1545131 3,592 11,189 2,048,088 1556320
Contract liabilities AHEE 2,874,733 1,684,632 - - 2874733 1,684,632
Other segment information Hitpthgs
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 3,294 2990 3 5 3,297 2995
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 945 1735 = - 945 1735
Gain on disposal of subsiciaries HERBARMKE 17,142 - - - 17,142 -
Gain on disposal of associations HERENTMNE 4,720 - = - 4,720 -
Provision for creditloss on ELERIGEEEEREE
otherreceivables - 1547 - - - 1547
Losses on changes i fair value of RENENLATEEDER
investment properties 29,508 1375 470 449 29,978 1824
Additions to property, plant RENE  BERIE
and equipment 1,024 758 - - 1,024 758
Additions to intangible assets NEEEE 924 - - - 924 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. Wk Koy B EOR (48)
(Continued)
4.2. Segment reporting (Continued) 4.2. 4y ()
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEHEE  BEEREEE)
Information about major customers FEXPHEH
There was no sale to a single customer which accounted for 10% H E2021F & 2020128318 1k
or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December FE - BEEAERE B 10%50
2021 and 2020. A ENE-EFPERRIHEE -
Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss AT HE D BB HAR
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRTE ARKBTET

Reportable segment profit AT HwEDEHF
(adjusted EBIT) (4EFEEEBIT) 101,401 179,089
Elimination of inter-segment profits 8 3 B i A - -
Reportable segment profit derived EXBAREEIISEEH
from the Group's external customers BT HE D 2B F 101,401 179,089
Other income HMUA 6,732 12,050
Realised gain arising from BAVPEFAEBENSREE
financial assets at FVPL, net BB IR 55 8,538 7,292
Finance costs, net B TSP AN )5 RR (26,370) (12,997)
Consolidated profit before taxation MR R 4R B A 90,301 185,434
5. OTHER INCOME 5. HAbUgA
2021 2020
20214 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Gain on step acquisition of a subsidiary 73 W — R B B A ] A U s - 8953
Corporate management fee income NAIEREBRA 846 1,394
Others i) 5,886 1,703
6,732 12,050
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

6.

176

FINANCE COSTS, NET 6. WA A A
2021 2020
2021 % 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
Finance income B3 ON
Bank interest income IRITFIBUA 5,827 5461
Finance costs UEJ2 %N
Interest on bank and other borrowings R1T M E ML 1EFFE 97,025 51,224
Interest on financing component of AHBEREBSFIE
contract liabilities 106,712 29,564
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 24 166
Others HAh 24 427
Less: Capitalised interest expenses W BRI B (171,588) (62,923)
32,197 18,458
Finance costs, net B RR AN5 58 (26,370) (12,997)
The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs AUNEBETAERERNNEER AL
eligible for capitalisation is ranging from 3.80% to 7.64% (2020: from KB AL AT F3.80%E 7.64%(2020FF
4.65% to 13.4%). 465% 2 134%) °
INCOME TAX EXPENSES 7. TS BLEE X
2021 2020
2021 F 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFT
PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) PRI ([EREHR]) 47,250 44,536
PRC Land Appreciation Tax ("LAT") R B (A ([ 32 E R ) 112,232 106,761
Deferred income tax BRIEFTISRR (27,461) 2,181
132,021 153,478

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Company
Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from
payment of Cayman Islands income tax. The Group companies in
the British Virgin Islands were incorporated under the
International Business Companies Act of the British Virgin Islands
and, accordingly, exempted from British Virgin Islands income tax.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

Hong Kong profits tax

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 as the Group’s entities had no
assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong for the
years.

CIT

CIT has been provided on the estimated assessable profits of
subsidiaries operating in the PRC at 25% (2020: 25%).

LAT

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including cost of land
use rights and all property development expenditures.

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the enacted tax rate of the tax
jurisdiction of the group entities as follows:

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 7. FrEELEE ST (4)

EoRLY S FE Y

R AN B E RSN 8 E 2021 F 12020
FRANBLFEYEELEBIRERSE
BHERB S R ERZMETE
B BFSTIFT R -

e JEEy

SRt B g ENNE QR M EEER
75836 M4 25% (2020 4F : 25%) BB K AEH
EMSHEE -

b B

TR ERIA LR E (MY EHEMS
SRR AT HI R B 2 (B FE (8 AR A AR
KFrBWMERER)) % 30% % 60%H)
RET KRB -

7N 55 BIRR B 15 5 A1 gt A B BT 15 35 2268
SEERRERIERBERNHERE
MIERmEEERFINWT

2021 2020
2021 F 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETIT
Profit before taxation R B0 Al ) 90,301 185,434
Calculated at CIT tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%) RIS E 25%
(20204F : 25%) EHEMFIIAE 22,575 46,359
Tax effect of income not subject to tax BARBEBRANR G E (9,954) (5,386)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAIB AT OB R 2 5,527 8,448
Tax effect of non-deductible land cost AR L H A AN EE A
adjustments W = 11,541
Tax effect of non-taxable land cost adjustment  HZERFi + ok AN T B AT 715 5 28 (5,235) -
LAT T IR ER 112,232 106,761
Tax effect on LAT TS AR R (28,058) (26,690)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERH BB EOB B E 34,498 8,010
Others HAth 436 4435
Income tax expenses Frisfim Sz 132,021 153,478
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

8.  (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 8. N (kiR) i Al
(Loss) Profit for the year is arrived at after charging: FR(ERE)RENDHEG & IE -
2021 2020
20214 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET ARETT
Total staff costs (including directors’ emoluments): 428 TR A (B FEEZH ) ¢
— Salaries, wages and other benefits — %4  TEAREMER 73,761 44,149
— Contribution to defined contribution — REHFGRIRFT &5k~
retirement plan® 4,313 887
78,074 45,036
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 945 1,735
Deprecation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% « E M REITE 3,137 2,843
Amortisation of intangible assets (included in | EEHNE G ATTHAY)
administrative expenses) 160 152
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN 2,433 2,010
Cost of properties sold S W FERAR 257,877 394,585
Lease payments under short-term leases on WMAZEYEREHAEENHEERMK
office premises 4,341 2,573
* Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC has announced on 20 * FEANERMEGREILE R 2020528
February 2020 to waive employer obligations on social security insurance (“SSI") 200 E i E 8 E 7R 2020 2 A 202056
contributions during February 2020 to June 2020 and further announced on 22 June RétheaReE(HEREBE D ETNE
2020 to extend the exemption period of SSI contributions to December 2020 to ease T W 202046 A22 Bt —HEMILE R
the burden of enterprises under the impact of COVID-19. BRIBEAREHRE2020F 127 - AR
COVID-19ZETHRERE -
The Group had no forfeited contribution available to reduce its R2021 F %2020 12 A31 8 » AEEW
contribution payable in future years as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. mERRMHARAT AR IR ERRKREE
HIFE TR -
9. EARNINGS PER SHARE 9. HMEAM
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit BRERBFTIRBEARQRHEE AEWN
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average i M) B FF N B B 1T 5 AR N AE 1 EEt
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. o
2021 2020
20214 2020 FF
Profit attributable to owners of RATHEE AR (ARE)
the Company (RMB) 15,448,000 64,034,000
Weighted average number of ordinary BT E BRI 5 8
shares in issue 300,000,000 300,000,000
Basic earnings per share (RMB) FREREF (ARE) 0.05 021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A3BIFE

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 9. HMEA (4
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the years ended HE2021FK2020F12A3MBIEFE -
31 December 2021 and 2020 and, therefore, the diluted earnings per B R AR SR E A e
share were the same as the basic earnings per share. FREARBFAER -
10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 10. &3 S 4% die e 0 A\ L 38
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(@) Directors’ emoluments (@ #HHME
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to the REAREEBDNHENARAE
directors of the Company by the Group during the year are as EHNMELEEOT
follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZ201 512831 ALEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits  Termination Discretionary scheme
Fees in kinds benefits bonuses contributions Total
e 2HR BINER
EzHe BN BREA M HE i3 @t

RMB000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR AR%TR ARBTR ARETR

Executive Directors HITEF

Zhou i A - 1,197 = = 97 1,294
Fan Wenyi BXH - 610 - - 40 650
Chen Xiang (note a) B (Fista) - 768 - - 82 850
JiaBin (note b) BE (M) - 166 - - 7 173

Independent Non-Evecutive Directors B/ HHTEE

LiYong 2F 199 - - - - 199
Deng Shaochao (note ¢} A (o) 100 = = = = 100
Zhao Guoging HEE 199 - - - - 199
Fan Conglai (note d) SERER(FEEd) 100 = = = = 100
Total @it 598 2,741 - - 226 3,565
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2001E 1231 BIEEE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE

10. #FH KA At a A LEM (59)

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(@ Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ EHEHME(H)
Year ended 31 December 2020
BE00FENANALFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits ~ Termination  Discretionary scheme
Fees inkinds benefits bonuses  contributions Total
He 2R RINET
EENS ENilE BREN B HEE szt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT AR%TT ARBTR ARETT ARETR
Executive Directors HITEE
Zhouli &I - 123 - - 38 1274
Fan Wenyi BXH - 595 - - 15 610
Chen Xiang (note a) PR (MizEa) - 114 - - 3 17
Chen Zhonghua (note e) BRifE (Fizke) - 1319 - - 7 1326
Zhang Yu (note f) 18 (5o - % - - - %
Non-Executive Director FHTEE
Yao Yu (note g) = (H3Eg) - 3 - - 4 37
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ B 7 FH1TEE
LiYong £ 192 - - - - 192
EJunYu (note g) SEF(MiEg) 76 - - . - 76
Deng Shaochao (note c) B (Mo 116 - - - - 116
Zhao Guoging HEE 192 - - - - 192
Total fesf 576 3393 - - 67 4036
Notes: PfsE -
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(a) Appointed on 15 October 2020.

(b) Appointed on 1 December 2021.

(©) Appointed on 1 June 2020 and retired on 4 June 2021.

(d) Appointed on 4 June 2021.

(e) Resigned on 15 October 2020.

@ R2020F 10 A 15 BEERT ©
(b) R2021FE 12 A1 BEERE -

© R 20204F 6 A1 HEZE KR 2021 F 6
R4BRIE-

(d R20214F 6 A4 AERIT -

() 2020410 A 15 BEHT -

) Appointed on 1 June 2020 and resigned on 25 October 2020. (f) R20206F 6 A1 HEZ F KRK2020F

Q) Retired on 1 June 2020.

10 B 25 BEHE -

() 2020 6 A1 AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2020: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included 3 (2020: 2) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in note (a) above. The emoluments for
the remaining 2 (2020: 3) individuals are as follows:

10. #5544 e N (4

(@

(b)

4 (4)

B E20219F &2020%12 8318 1t
FE ASERERTANESZH
B EAIMA RSB KA R
SEENEESIEABRRBEE -

FA- REESFERERLURBRELT
A B <& B9 22 BF (2020 4F - ) o

hammmE AL
FAREBRREARSHFATHIE
(2020%F : 2% ) AEE - EileR
EXMIE Q) B o 82T 244 (2020
F3Z)EARALHEBE T ¢

2021 2020

20214 2020 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Salaries and other emoluments Fre kEmie 2,209 4024
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IROKE R B FR 51 33
2,260 4,057

WRRERARAT 20214 #
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

10.

182

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 10. HH KA e H A L Hm ()
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) FAmEH AL (4)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e EELRNT

2021 2020

20215 20205

Number of Number of

employees employees

BEAZ BEAK

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 (equivalent to 1,000,001 7 7T 2 1,500,000 7 7T
RMB829,101 to RMB1,243,650) (FEERARER29101 TR

AR#E1,243,6507T) 2 1
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 (equivalent to 1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 78 JT
RMB1,243,651 to RMB1,658,200) (HEERARKE1243651 TR
AFRE16582007T) - 2
2 3

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, none of the
above individuals has received any emoluments from the Group
as an inducement to join or leave the Group or compensation for
loss of office; none of the above individuals has waived or has
agreed to waive any emoluments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11. W Wm Kkt
Machines,
furniture,
office
Electronic equipment
Vehicles devices and others Buildings Total
B KR
WARE
RE ETRE KAt BF @t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETRE  ARETR

Reconciliation of carryingamount—  BRE{E 2 ¥ —

Year ended 31 December 2020 BZ2020F12831H
LEE
Asat 1 January 2020 R200%1 1A 304 362 11 38535 39212
Additions hE 647 89 2 - 758
Depreciation il @) (42) (18) (2,742) (2.843)
As at 31 December 2020 R2020512A 318 910 409 15 35793 37127
Reconciliation of carryingamount—  REEZ 8k —
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021512831A
fld:3:4

Asat 1 January 2021 RN ETRE 910 409 15 35,793 37,127
Additions FE 622 173 229 - 1,024
Disposals HE - - (8) - (8)
Disposals — disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) H& — HEHBAR

(Fit3t 36) - - (98) - (98)
Depreciation ik (258) (66) (71) (2,742) (3,137)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021E128318 1,274 516 67 33,051 34,908
At 31 December 2021 ®2021512531R
Cost PR 3,493 2,687 4,165 57,729 68,074
Accumulated depreciation 2HE (2,219) 2171) (4,098) (24,678) (33,166)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,274 516 67 33,051 34,908
At31 December 2020 120206128318
Cost A 2871 2514 4042 57,729 67,156
Accumulated depreciation 2:7E (1961) (2,105) (4.027) (21936) (30,029)
Net carrying amount REFE 910 409 15 35793 37127
The buildings are situated on lands in the PRC with initial lease terms of BFURYBEESREENFE LT
62 years, the remaining lease term of the buildings as at 31 December 72021 F 12 A31 BEREFRISBAE R
2021 is 56 years (2020 57 years). 556 (20209F 1 574F) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE021F12A38ILFE

12. LEASES

Right of use assets

12. HE
155 FH RE 3 s

Office premises

MAEYE
RMB’000

ARET R

Reconciliation of carrying amount IREENHER
— year ended 31 December 2020 — B ZE2020F12A31HLFE
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1 H 4,231
Lease modification HEEN (1,356)
Depreciation e (1,735)
Exchange realignment EH R (183)
As at 31 December 2020 7A2020512A31H 957
Reconciliation of carrying amount IREENEHER
— year ended 31 December 2021 —BZE2021F12A31BLEE

At 1 January 2021 202141 B 1 A 957
Depreciation e (945)
Exchange realignment EH R (12)
As at 31 December 2021 720215 12H31H -
At 31 December 2021 M2021512H31H
Cost PR R -
Accumulated depreciation REtinE =
Net carrying amount IRERE =
At 31 December 2020 72020512 H31H
Cost 2% 3,543
Accumulated depreciation REtinE (2,586)
Net carrying amount BREFEE 957

The Group leases an office premise for its daily operation. The lease
agreement was expired at the end of the reporting period and the
Group entered into a new lease with the term of 1 year which was

classified as short-term lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

12. LEASES (Continued)

Lease liabilities
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Lease liabilities HE&SE
Current portion mENER = 1,049
- 1,049
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AREETIT
Lease payments: MERK -

Short-term leases MHIEE 4,341 2,573
Expenses recognised in profit or loss RIBRERHAX 4,341 2,573
Lease payments: HERK :

Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE 24 166

Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE 1,035 1,698

1,059 1,864
Total cash outflow for leases HERS R EE 5,400 4437
Commitments under leases HEE T EIE

At 31 December 2021, the Group was committed to RMB1,008,000 for
short-term leases (2020: RMB3,133,000).

MR2021%12A31H

AR EREHEE

B AR 1,008,000 7T HYEHE (20204 + A

R 3,133,0007T) ©

i HE P BT PR )
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. &Y%

2021 2020

2021 % 2020 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

Fair value AFE AR¥ TR AR®ETTT

Carrying amount at 1 January RN AT EMEREE 105,155 106,979
Changes in fair value of investment properties R IBRIERHIIRE Y2

recognised in profit or loss N EES) (29,978) (1,824)

At 31 December ®12A31H 75,177 105,155

The investment properties represent the car parks held by the Group for
rental purpose.

Fair value measurement of investment properties

The following table shows the Group's investment properties measured
at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position on a
recurring basis, categorised into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The
levels are based on the observability of significant inputs to the
measurements, as follows:

—  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities.

—  Level 2. inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly.

—  Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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HE021F12A38ILFE

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 13. EYE (5)
Fair value measurement of investment properties B WM A PG R (8)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2021
72021512 H31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& -t 1 B=R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®Tr AR¥TRT AR%®Tx
Investment properties B - - 75,177 75,177
As at 31 December 2020
72020512 H31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—H B4R F=4 HET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETFIT AREFRT ARETRT ARETT
Investment properties - E - 105,155 105,155

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into and out of Level 3 fair
value measurements (2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2021, the investment properties were valued by
Cushman & Wakefield International Properties Advisers (Shanghai) Co.,
Limited, the independent professional valuer and the management,
using income approach and comparable market transaction approach.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair value
measurements

The fair value of the Group's investment properties is determined by
using income approach with reference to current market rents and
capitalisation rates using market data (2020: current market rental,
vacancy rate, growth rate of monthly rental and discount rate) and
comparable market transaction approach with reference to
comparable’s average unit selling price upon more market data is
available and in accordance with the investment properties’ highest and
best use as determined by the management at the end of the reporting
period.

BHEQFN2ANBIFEE  F—HK
FoM o MR - s A
FE=WNATFEFTZ (2020F : £) ©

R2021F12A31H REYWERBIE
EEEMEERTEREZA(LE) A
RAFREREFEBRAERA L&D
BRGEMEE °

5 = B oy AR R P R Ak 4 4 i
B i N\ Bubg

AEBEREMENDTFEREREHR
EEEEETNRENERS RRER
& ERWAK(2EZ B M EE ME
AT SEEHEAREX (20204 + BATH
LHe ZEX AHEERXNUR
) RAILBTISERGHE(RARBES
MSBER2E L EMENFHER)

BE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 13. EWE ()
Significant inputs used to determine fair value e 5 A P PR K i A\ U0
2021 2020
20215 2020
Income approach WA E
Weighted average monthly rental HEEFEEMINEFEAE RMB347 RMB421
per each car park space AR¥347c ARME4211TT
Growth rate of monthly rental HEEEM ARERR
per each car park space N/A 38 A 0%-10%
Vacancy rate EER N/A 738 A 5%-95%
Discount rate ARIR R N/A 77 A 6.6%
Capitalisation rate B pE 2.75% N/A i A
Comparable market transaction approach ~ A[LEERTHIE X 5 5%
Comparable’s average unit selling price Al LB FEHEMNEE RMB69,000 RMB102,000
AR AR
69,000 JT 102,000 7T

188

The inputs are estimated by the valuer based on the risk profile of the

properties being valued. Under income approach, the lower the
weighted average monthly rental and the higher the capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair value (2020: the higher the rates of vacancy rate and

discount rate and lower of the weighted average monthly rental and
growth rate of monthly rental, the lower the fair value). Under the
comparable market transaction approach, the higher the comparable’s

average unit selling price, the higher the fair value.

The investment properties are situated on lands in the PRC with initial
lease terms between 60 to 70 years, the remaining lease terms as at 31

December 2021 is between 48 to 58 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Leasing arrangement — as lessor

The investment properties are leased to tenants for a term of 5 to 20
years with fixed monthly payments. The rental of certain investment
properties was received from the tenants in advance as set out in Note
23(viii) to the consolidated financial statements. The tenants also bear
the management fees and repair and maintenance fee by themselves.

Accounting policy of the rental income from operating leases are set out
in Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual value at the
end of the current leases, the Group typically entered into new operating
leases and therefore will not immediately realise and reduction in the
residual value at the end of these leases. Expectations about the future
residual values are reflected in the fair value of the properties.

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments to be
received from the leasing of investment properties.

13.

BUE 2 ()
MEZHE — ERmAA
REWMEFABEAERNKEETHEE
MEBARSE20F - WMEFES T HIRKW
FEBViINTE ETREDENEEE
FEMERTWER - BEIBITAEER
BREERREER -

KEHERSN ST MREANGETH
WMARMTE24 -

BEASEEREREETHER ORI
BEEHNER ERAKEBEI LN
REHEE A TeEnN%EHETE
By BB IR o T FIBREE - BRAARK
MABENRINDEN D FERBR -

PATT 73 AR B W) 5 5 B By R B3R 7
BN REE DT

At At

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

R2021 F R 2020 5F

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREFT

Year 1 FI1F 42 42

Year 2 FE2F - 42

Undiscounted lease payments to be received A HCER B AR BEER AR E TR 42 84
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14, L EE

Software
B4
RMB'000
ARET T
Reconciliation of carrying amount — AREE 2 ¥k —
Year ended 31December 2020 HZ2020F12831HIEFE
As at 1 January 2020 202051 A1 H 391
Amortisation charge e R (152)
As at 31 December 2020 72020612 H831H 239
Reconciliation of carrying amount — BRMEE 2 ¥k —
Year ended 31December 2021 HE2021F12A831BLEFE
As at 1 January 2021 20211 A1H 239
Additions NE 924
Amortisation charge BHE R (160)
As at 31 December 2021 A2021F12H31H 1,003
At 31 December 2021 7A2021%F12A31H
Cost %N 2,450
Accumulated amortisation RETE (1,447)
Net carrying amount REFEE 1,003
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A31H
Cost [B%N 1,526
Accumulated amortisation B2ty (1,287)
Net carrying amount FRERE 239
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021E1283181EEE

15. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

15.

The amount recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position is as follows:

BB E 7
INGNS

MR R RN SRR T

2021 2020

202145 2020 FF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARETIT

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRR - A - -
Due from an associate (Note iii) TEUREE 2N Tmlﬁ (B 5 = 20,293
Loan to associates (Notes i and i) M AR ER (MR &) 15,327 92,232
Share of results DIEELE (6,289) (3,505)
9,038 109,020

Details of the material associates at the end of the reporting period are

RBEHRN T BB ERBFBWT

as follows:
Place of incorporation/ % of
registration and ownership Nature of the
Name of company business interest relationship Carrying amount
ML mERE
NEEB ERPSE—E $:uk BEEE BEME BREE
2021 2020 2021 2020
20215 20204 2021 F 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®BTT
Shenzhen Aolan The PRC 49% 49%  Note (i) 9,038 23,046
Estate Co, Ltd.* e BEE )
("Shenzhen Aolan”)
RN REEXFRAA
(DRYIRE )
Guangxi Runlang Estate The PRC - 40%  Note (ii) 65,681
Co, Ltd* a3 B & (ii)
(“Guangxi Runlang”)
BERRREXBRAR
(IEEER])
Guangxi Hailan Jinzhong The PRC - 49%  Note (iii) 20,293
Property Development ~ FR B 2 (i)
Co,, Ltd*
("Jinzhong Property”)
BPEE © ERAERRE
BRAR([EEEBE])
9,038 109,020

*

identification purpose only.

The official names are in Chinese and the English names are translated for

* EXBWRPX  BEXAEEFERBS -

i B A B W

20214
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INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

»‘/T\

15.

192

Notes:

0]

(if)

(i)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group held 49% equity interest in Shenzhen
Aolan, a company engaged in investment holdings which incorporated and conducts
its business in the PRC. At the end of the reporting period, the registered capital of
Shenzhen Aolan is RMB10,000,000 but not yet paid. The capital injection committed
by the Group of RMB4,900,000 is without expiration. Loan of RMB15,327,000 (2020:
RMB26,551,000) which is unsecured, interest-free and no fixed repayment term was
made to Shenzhen Aolan based on the proportion of shareholding of its
shareholders.

In April 2021, the Group disposed of all the equity interest in Guangxi Runlang and
the debts of RMB65,681,000 at total consideration of RMB70,401,000. As a result, a
gain on disposal of associates of RMB4,720,000 was recognised in profit or loss.

On 7 July 2021, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose of all the equity
interest in Jinzhong Property and the debts of RMB34,830,000 due from Jinzhong
Property to Zhongtou Zhiye (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (‘Zhongtou Zhiye Guangzhou"),
another shareholder of Jinzhong Property together with the settlement of debts due
to Guangxi Hailan Jinzhong Zhiye Co,, Ltd. ("Jinzhong Zhiye") of RMB37,050,000, at a
total consideration of RMB71,880,000.

All associates are accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements.
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RN w] (A1)

20214 K% 2020F 12 A318  AEBEHEE
Y BREE 49% AR AN 5 - 5% A R B
PR RETTHTS - HBIREIERET - R
HER - RYREERAMARMOEMRAR
AR#10,0000007C c REBAEENFEAR
& 4,900,000 7T I £ [ i BAPR o 31 B EE 9 Ak
FEREREIMEELIHNERARKE
15,327,000 7T (2020 F : A R % 26,551,0007T )
AEET - B AW EETERY -

R2021F4 8 AEELEEBHRHEI
& R (B 7S A R % 65,681,0007C © BREABA
R# 70,401,000 7T ° B - RIB MR L S5
EREIE Y AR 4,720,0007T ©

R2021F7 78 - AEEFT B UHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

15.

Relationship with the material associates

Shenzhen Aolan has a non-wholly owned subsidiary, Meizhou Aochuang

Estate Co, Ltd., a company established in the PRC with limited liability,
which is engaged in development of a land parcel at Meijiang District,
Meizhou City, Guangdong Province (collectively known as the
“Shenzhen Aolan Group”). The investment in the associate allows the

Group to make presence in the region outside Hainan Province.

Financial information of individually material associate

Summarised financial information of the material associate of the Group
is set out below, which represents amounts shown in the associate’s
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs

and adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes including
any differences in accounting policies and fair value adjustments.

(a)

Shenzhen Aolan Group

15.

BOE TR A 7] (4)
S UG 4 ) R I A
RYRER —FFEEEMBRREMNT

ﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬁ@“ NGV )iSEalE Y
VAR RE  HEERREEMNTIET
IrT_uEl’Jii’@%’v‘Jfé( fRE IR RERE]) -
BRERBERREARERETEEE
IASMBE °

A o1 = S0 2 ] Y B 5 R
AEETEHERTNPHERNR R
KT ﬁﬁﬁ@%@%*ﬁfiﬁ%ﬁﬁ%i&i
ZER R B BB & QR AR A B R PR
SR ]IEM‘“%E@JWE%&ZK%EE
E(PRSFTERRE A HERBNEMZE
£) o

(a) FRYNREKH

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Gross amount AT EE
Current assets RENEE 991,644 881,967
Current liabilities mEBaE (762,980) (427,457)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (205,330) (419,814)
Net assets BEFHE 23,334 34,696
Less: Non-controlling interests of S ORI BREE B A R AR RE RS
Shenzhen Aolan Group (36,168) (41,849)
(12,834) (7,153)
Group's ownership interests REBNHEEEER 49% 49%
The Group's share of equity of AEBDEFYIRESBERNER
Shenzhen Aolan Group (6,289) (3,505)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021FE 12 ANBIEEE

15. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15. HE RS AR (4)
Financial information of individually material associates 181330 =i B0k 2 W) e B R ()
(Continued)
(@) Shenzhen Aolan Group (Continued) (a) FYIRELEE(H)
2021 2020
20214 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET ARETT
Gross amount LR
Revenue e - -
Loss from operations ZiEE1A (11,362) (12,245)
Other comprehensive income Hih2EUEA - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREMHEIEAZE (11,362) (12,245)
Less: Total comprehensive loss for ORI RE S E IR R
the year attributable to ERFEAZAE
the non-controlling interest of EiE4a%R
Shenzhen Aolan Group (5,681) (6,122)
Total comprehensive loss for the year Y REEEREB ARG
attributable to owners of Shenzhen Aolan FREHEEBALE
Group (5,681) (6,123)
Unrecognised share of losses of the associates 23 A0 G 8 2 ) M 48 A R Tl 2 4
No unrecognised share of losses of the associates for the current year REEREEMERREZRFTOEBE
and cumulatively up to the end of the reporting period (2020: Nil). NAESENARER S (20204 « ) ©
16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16. F/PERE AR B 1) 46 Fll
PROFIT OR LOSS
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include the following: EATEFAESNESREEBRIEUT
IER :
2021 2020
20214 2020 FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Unlisted equity securities — outside Hong Kong ~ 3E F IR AN 385 — FiB1E5 2,607 1,654
Structured deposits — outside Hong Kong BT — BARIN = 4,000
2,607 5,654
Details of the fair value of the Group's investments in unlisted securities REBRIIELTEERENRNFEEFES
are set out in Note 29(f) to the consolidated financial statements. HRER B BT SRAR M EE 290 °

194 HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

»‘/T\

o B R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

17.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

BE hi %

2021 2020
2021 F 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Properties under development BRI 6,888,536 4,626,132
Less: write-down to net realisable value B WURE R # IR FE - (1,055)
6,888,536 4,625,077

Expected to be completed: TEHATERK ¢
— Within 1 year —1FR 2,078,231 310,329
— More than 1 year — LR F 4,810,305 4,314,748
6,888,536 4,625,077

The properties under development, including land held for future
development, were located in the PRC and the United States of America
(the "USA") and are stated at lower of cost and NRV.

Provision in aggregate of RMB1,055,000 was made to write down the
properties under development to net realisable value in previous years
has been written off upon the disposal of subsidiaries.

At the end of the reporting period, properties under development
located in the PRC of RMB1,506,547,000 (2020: RMB1,145,395,000) and in
USA of RMB435,218,000 (2020: Nil) were pledged to secure loan facilities
in aggregate of maximum amount of RMB1,590,000,000 (2020:
RMB1,050,000,000) and RMB274,212,000 (2020: Nil) respectively. In
addition, properties under development with carrying amount of
RMB110,379,000 (2020: RMB102,764,000) which located in the PRC were
pledged to secure loan facility granted to a non-controlling shareholder
with a maximum amount of RMB200,000,000 (2020: RMB200,000,000). At
the end of the reporting period, the outstanding secured loan was
amounted to RMB125,000,000 (2020: RMB153,000,000).

At the end of the reporting period, certain land use right certificates of
the Group's properties under development located at the southwest of
Binhe New District Section, Yingbin Avenue, Suicheng Town, Suixi
County, Zhanjiang City, Guangdong Province, the PRC with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB631,135,000 have not been obtained due to in
the process of the application for separation on these land use right
certificates for pre-sale purpose. In the opinion of the Directors, the
ownership of these land use rights is belonged to the Group.

BRTPME(BREFIERRERN L)
RPERENEERE( XA - X
R N F] 3R FERBRIEE DR -

BEFERMRERTFYEZERF
BRHEMBEEE £ ARK1,055000TE
RSB A Al B o

RIRER - AR BB BN P B
ERPYEARE 506,547,000 7T (2020
£ AR %1,145,395,0007T ) M 7 73
B/ 2R P AR #435,218,0007T
(20205 - &) - DEEAESEEAA
K #1,590,000,000 7T (20204F : A R #&
1,050,000,000) & A R ¥ 274,212,000
(2020 : M) EFBMEMNET R - Ik
Gh s RRARB R ATRENEEES
AR #110,379,000 7T (2020 F + AR
102,764,00070 ) M BE R P W EA
R BREEES B
A R # 200,000,000 7T (2020 F + AR
2000000007E)E’Ji§ BhE AR o
RBEHER - REENFRFERABA
R #125,000,0007C (20204 : A R #&
153,000,000 7T) °

RI|BEHR  AEBLURPEEREE

ISR GEWMBENE KEEATERER
P BIBR M 2 E A AR 631,1350007T

E’U%E DEEPWER ARG LIBERE

C REBZE LHEREE LN
E%ﬁj‘ilﬁ‘éi%ﬁ’\]i@ﬁqﬂ cEERB %F
T RN A RENASE -

WERMARAT 20214% 195



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

»‘/T\

o B R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

18.

19.

196

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

All completed properties held for sale are located in the PRC on
leasehold land with lease term of 40 years or more. The directors of the
Company estimate that the net realisable value of unsold properties
based on estimation of future selling price less costs to be incurred in

18. FRESHE Tk =

FrBEREHED ERYMEILN BN
ME L HERWOFINE - 2 E
BTMSHER  AEEESREHKR
KEEBRMGEREHEERBKA - A&t

relation to the sale, with reference to the prevailing market data. REHYENTBIRFE o
2021 2020
20215 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Completed properties BRI 494,415 374,873
Less: Expected to be sold after 12 months B TEEAR 2B AR E (470,214) (309,265)
Expected to be sold within 12 months FHR12BAALE 24,201 65,608

The completed properties held for sale located in the PRC with an
aggregate net carrying amount at the end of the reporting period of
RMB79,085,000 (2020: RMB119,849,000) were pledged to secure a loan
facility of a maximum amount of RMB300,000,000 (2020:
RMB300,000,000).

CONTRACT COSTS

As at 31 December 2021, capitalised contract costs represents the
incremental sales commissions paid to intermediaries whose selling
activities resulted in customers entering into sale and purchase
agreements for the Group’s properties which are still under construction
at the end of the reporting date. Contract costs are recognised as selling
and distribution expenses in profit or loss when revenue from the related
property sales is recognised. The contract costs of RMB22,899,000 (2020:
RMB20,244,000) were charged to profit or loss upon revenue from sales
of properties were recognised during the year.
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TR EEBIEHEEEERMED R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20. ® 5 B HAdREUGHKIA

2021 2020
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Trade receivables — third parties (note i) S EWHIE — E=7 (M)
— Non-current — IERE 5,565 8,072
— Current — & 6,747 9,726
12,312 17,798
Less: Loss allowance W BB (19) (19)
12,293 17,779
Other receivables E U IR
— Third parties (note ii) — B =77 (H&Ei) 16,374 15,821
— Loan to third parties (note iii) — ME=FER(M5Tii) 796 16,128
— Loan to non-controlling shareholders — MIEERRRE R (H5Eiv)
(note iv) _ 3,441
— Loan to a related party (note v) — MR B (MEEv) 500 500
— Amount due from a non-controlling — FEURFEHE AR A% B B (P R vi)
shareholder (note vi) - 44,414
— Amount due from a related party (note vii) — [EU— & REE 77 7B (B =T vii) 16,167 -
Less: Loss allowance (Note 20(b)) T E IR EE (BT EE 20(b)) (11,766) (11,766)
22,071 68,538
Advance payments to contractors (note viii) )7 B P S AT B9 TR AT R (B R i) 28,634 13,212
Amount due from a co-operation UL A VEREHEZRTE (I 7T ix)
partner (note ix) - 40,000
Community facilities deposits HEBREES 29,424 31,520
Expenditures incurred for construction of SRR AL R B HE T EE AR HO B 2
community facilities (note x) (B 5EX) 30,004 30,004
Guarantee deposits (note xi) REH® (HEx) = 195,000
Prepayment and other deposits TR R E iR E 31,169 22,534
Prepaid utilities expenses ENARER 4,315 3,064
Prepaid other taxes TERT HABTLIE 171,886 51,183
295,432 386,517
Total HEt 329,796 472,834
Classified as: DA
Non-current assets FERBEE 5,565 206,513
Current assets RENEE 324,231 266,321
329,796 472,834

i HE P BT PR )
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021E1283181EEE
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

198

Notes:

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Trade receivables comprise receivables due from customers in relation to sales of
properties and rental income. Proceeds from the sale of properties are made in lump-
sum payments or paid by instalments in accordance with the terms of the
corresponding sale and purchase agreements. Receivables to be recovered more
than one year are classified to non-current trade receivables. The remaining balance
of trade receivables are expected to be recovered within one year. The Group does
not hold any collaterals over these balances. In respect of the sale of properties, no
credit terms are granted to customers. The details on the Group's credit policy are set
out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other receivables due from third parties are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand. The amount is expected to be recovered within 12 months.

Loan to third parties is interest-free and repayable on demand.

During the reporting period, the loan to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
of RMB6,899,000 was assigned to a related party under a side letter upon the disposal
of the subsidiary to the related party (2020: secured by the equity interest in the
subsidiary of the Company, interest-free and repayable in 2029 which was classified
as non-current other receivables). The details of disposal of the subsidiary are set out
in Note 36(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Loan to a related party is unsecured, interest-bearing at 12% per annum and

repayable in 2022.

It represented an advance to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the
Company and the balance has been settled when the subsidiary was disposed (2020:
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand). The details of disposal of

subsidiaries are set out in Note 36(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

It represented consideration receivables from the related party in relation to the
disposal of the subsidiary which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The details of disposal of subsidiaries are set out in Note 36(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

Advance payments to contractors are made in accordance with the payment terms
as agreed in the construction contracts signed with building contractors. They are to
be transferred to properties under development with regard to stage of completion
for relevant construction. As at 31 December 2021, an allowance on advance
payment to a contractor of RMB12,895,000 recognised in previous years has been

written-off because the contractor was deregistered.

It represented a deposit paid for acquisition of land and properties on behalf of a co-
operation partner of RMB40,000,000 which was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The balance has been settled upon the acquisition of non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary which set out in Note 35(c) to the consolidated

financial statements.
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20.

H oy Je HAb E WO (48)

GEX

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

B REFRBERHENERREPHE
WK RSN < HEMENMSHIETIR
BEARRE E R A RRA — RN RS B
NRETTRES - B —F R e EKFTED
DRRERBE S YRR - B S REUGRIA
BV T A ERTRHIN — F IR - A E I
A SERTEEAERR - SAOEHEM
FoBEREPRLEES  AREEER
RHFBRNERE B B MAKMIEE29 ©

HERE= 7 FRERER  RERER
SRIEIE - ZeRMIREHR 1218 B AUk mE -

RAFE=NERBREREEFEE -

IR HAR - 17— REMT B A R A IR AR AR R
BERA R 6,899,000 C1E M — A B 5 H &
M AR IREMN RS ETZE@E
(2020 4F : AR E)BfT B8 A Bl A AR A VE 43R -
BRE - ER2029FERI D ERIEMEE
fhFEMTRIE) o EEZM B AR IBEHNGS
BB RERM T 360) ©

) BAE 5 BB AR - IR E IR 12% 58
B 2022 FEAEIE ©

BREEERAARRNE AR IERARR
R A BRI S T B A RS 4505 (2020
FoEER RRLEERER) HEMEB
RAFH BN A P B IRRMTL36(0) ©

BREATEEN D EME QR E KRBT R
B BEER LRV REREE - HEW
B ARRF NGRS BB mAME 366

AR R S TEN SRR IR R AR S
RENIRE OB EMNTIGEREL - W5t
HEIERNTIEZBREZEPYE -
2021 F 12 A31H  BAFECHRANIMNT
OB T D TE S BB S AR5 12,895,000 7T E it
3 REAZEBEEIUHEM -

AESEERREEBRHRB I RYEN
BfEE AR 400000007 © BEEKE - 52
Bl EEREE - EHDRERAMIEIREMN
FE35(c) AT S — RN B A Rl R FE IR AR RS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(x) It represents the construction cost of community facilities which is deductible for the
community facility funds charged by the local government or will be refunded to the
Group when the construction of the property project is completed.

(xi) In 2020, the Group entered into a co-operation agreement and supplementary
agreement with a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, Guangxi Minggui Real
Estate Development Co,, Ltd ("Guangxi Minggui’) and agreed to pay the amount of
RMB200,000,000 as guarantee deposit for the co-operation of the development of
properties. As at 31 December 2020, RMB195,000,000 of guarantee deposit was paid
and was classified as non-current other receivables. In July 2021, the Group disposed
Guangxi Minggui through the disposal of Jinzhong Zhiye as set out in Note 36(b) to

the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of trade and

other receivables approximates their fair values.

(@ Ageing analysis of trade receivables

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the ageing analysis of gross
trade receivables, based on the invoice date that trade receivables

were recognised, is as follows:

20.

oo~
,E

B sE

)

(xi)

,fbﬁ% LI& /\ »‘E

(&)

ERSERALERENERER  EWER
B #O 3 AR 52 A I BT VEFNIRL B e BUR 4B A9 4L
EREESIRRTAEE -

2020 - AEBEMB A RERSERE
EREARAR([EAERE]) K — & IFER
R ETV A (e s e - WRE A
A R # 200,000,000 TTIE A A 1EE R M E MR
EIES o R2020F12A31H ABRARKE
195000000 THIRFER S E XM - DR
FEMEN LA FEURGRIE o BAnER A B SRR I
FE36(0)FTH - R2021F7 A AEBBEBH
EcEEXLEERBE -

R2021 FE 2020512318 B ME
R FIENEREEEEEN ﬂ?fﬁ* &

(@

B 5 JRE Wk VL R Bt 4 T
RWEHKR - B S EKGIBRER
HERR 2 EZRBMNRRS TN
™

2021 2020

2021 % 20205

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREFT

Within 1 year 10,156 10,200
Over 1 year but less than 2 years TFEAEBDR2F 1,700 7142
Over 3 years 456 456
12,312 17,798
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(@ Ageing analysis of trade receivables (Continued)

The ageing analysis of gross trade receivables as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 which were past due but not impaired was as

20. © 5 N HABRE ORI (%])

(@

S 5 W Bk SR 6 4 AT (48

MR20214F K&2020F12A31H B
BHBRBENE S ERFIBEREE

follows: HEREC DT -
2021 2020
20214 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Within 1 year 4,591 9,270
Over 1 year but less than 2 years VA EBDR2F 1,700 -
Over 3 years 456 456
6,747 9,726
Neither past due nor impaired R BRI AR E 5,565 8,072
12,312 17,798

The management considers the ECL of trade receivables to be
insignificant so that no significant loss allowance was recognised
during the year, except a loss allowance of RMB19,000 (2020:
RMB19,000) was made on the balance due from a customer which
the management considered as credit impaired. The Group does
not hold any collateral over trade receivables as at 31 December

2021 (2020: Nil).

The movement in the ECL allowance of trade receivables is as

follows:

ERERAEZEWGIENTERE
BEEEIWTEKN - B F AR EE
REANEERE  ERERERR
BEEERENERK—BEF&EH
B A R #190007T (20204 © A
R¥EE19,0007T ) B 5 R B BR O ©
R2021F 128318 KEBEY &
ME ZEWFKIBERFEEMER R
(2020%F : £&) -

B RKFENTEREEEBBRE
HET -

2021 2020

2021 % 20204F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

At 1 January and 31 December R1TATBXRI12A31H 19 19
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20.

(b) Loss allowance on other receivables

The movement in the ECL allowance on other receivables is as

B 5y e F A BEWSCHOE (78)
(b) Mt B sk L s 4 88 £
Hib Y RIEN TR EEEREE

follows: FEmT
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
At 1 January ®1A1H 11,766 10219
Increase in allowance B N - 1,547
At 31 December M12A31H 11,766 11,766

The management considers the ECL of other receivables to be
insignificant, except a net loss allowance of RMB11,766,000 (2020:
RMB11,766,000) was made on the balances due from
counterparties which the management considered as credit
impaired. The Group does not hold any collateral over other
receivables as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

21. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND AND 21.

PROPERTIES

Upon the completion of acquisition, the deposits paid for acquisition of
a parcel of land and properties of RMB680 million has been transferred
to properties under development during the year.

ERERBEMEBRBNTELSE
EBEBEITTEKN  HIREEBERA
BEEERENBUETF HEHRE
A R #11,766,000 7T B £ 18 8 45
SFEE(2020%F © ARR™E11,766,0007T)
Broho BR2021F12A31H K&
(3] I 48 kAt JE U SR IS B (TR
R (20204 « #E) ©

WS B - 3t e Wy S ) LA 4% 4
WHE TR & - RUIE — R R E AT

e ARB 0 ABTE N FANE
BEBRTYE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021E1283181EEE

22. RESTRICTED CASH / CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

(@)

Restricted Cash

22. ZWRHB e BekBeEEY

Z B 3 4
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRE ARBTT

Pledged for: BTHEIEEA
Proceeds of pre-sale of properties TEEYENEHRIE 375,662 269,942
Financial guarantee provided ERHM B EER 32,569 34,100
Banking facilities RITRLE 45,500 -
453,731 304,042

In accordance with relevant policies issued by the PRC State-
owned Land and Resource Bureau applicable to all property
developers, the Group is required to place a pre-determined
amount of the proceeds received from the pre-sale of properties
as guarantee deposits into a bank for the construction of the
properties. The restriction will be released when the construction
is completed.

In addition, the Group is required to place certain amounts of
deposits in the banks to secure the provision of financing
guarantee services to its customers in accordance with the
financing guarantee agreements signed with the banks. The
balances are refundable when the obligations of the financing
guarantee agreements are released.

Included in the balances was RMB319,522,000 (2020:
RMB234,338,000) bear interest at floating daily bank deposit rates.
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R 5 BB+ &R B 8 A 8 AT
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B TEE WEREY 1S TR T E
SREFHNRITERERDENR
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o AREBERRITHERETHF
REE URBEERTRENORE
ERBZERATFREHBEERR
1% o BEER RN TRRER]
RIBBRAFUA -

FAEBRBNSEAARE
319,522,000 7 (20204 : A R &
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021E1283181EEE
22. RESTRICTED CASH / CASH AND CASH 22. ZWRHIB A Be K &5 EY
EQUIVALENTS (Continued) (48)
(b) Cash and cash equivalents by BHERBRLSEED
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFIT
Cash at bank and in hand RIS MFHEES
Cash on hand FoEIRS 5 8
Cash at bank RTRE 454,083 727,481
454,088 727,489

At the end of the reporting period, the bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC amounted to
RMB449,772,000 (2020: RMB690,541,000). RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. All cash at bank
earns interest at floating daily bank deposit rates.

RMEHR - AEBEUAREE
B8R 1T 45 88 A R % 449,772,000 7T
(20205 © AR¥690,541,0007T) 17
AR BERERITH - ARBIIER
BHREBRHER - RIEPRHINE
BERIEDIMEEE & IHE M ST INE
EIRIED] - NEE R BBE Y
FEINEEBOIRTEARBLIRA
SNEE o B IRTTIRSIETHIRITF
MRAEZBETE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

23.

204

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23. H 5 M AL REAT FOH

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Trade payables (Note i) B 5 R aE (B sED

— Third parties —%=7" 873,635 589,839
— Related parties (Note 32(d)(ii)) — BB 5 (B 5E 32(d)i)) 71,495 168,871
945,130 758,710
Amounts due to related parties (note i) FEAS BA RS 75 5B (P s i) 160,432 33,368

Amount due to non-controlling shareholders FEAS FEVE AR AR SR TE (M i)

(note iii) 135,259 270,470
Amount due to a former non-controlling JFEAS BT FEE IR AR SRR IE (M 7Eiv)

shareholder (note iv) 48,423 54,423
Consideration payables for acquisition of Wi B & R R FE AT (B (M EE V)

a subsidiary (note v) 60,168 57,371
Consideration payables for acquisitions of land Y && + 3t B9 FEASHR B (M EEvi)

(note vi) 280,000 -
Guarantee deposits (note vii) REBEE® (W5 vil) 14,671 94,716
Receipt in advance for rental income (note viii) ~ F& U8 & Y A (B £ viii) 50,931 52,875
Temporary receipts from customers (note ix) g = F A (I REix) 38,851 56,859
Tender deposits receipts from contractors WEF B AR ERe 5,597 10,936
Accrued payroll e E S 6,287 6,662
Other payables and accruals E e R IR R IERT B A 58,205 45,776
Value-added tax and other tax payables AR N B At FE T IR 244,134 114,154

1,102,958 797,610
2,048,088 1,556,320
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

U]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Trade payables mainly represent amounts due to contractors.
Payment to contractors is by instalments according to progress
and agreed milestones. The Group normally retains 5% as
retention payment.

¥ 5 S HAB AT 3KOH (48)

0]

B 5 RNFIAE RIEERNABER
Iﬁorﬂﬁk’\ﬂ]ﬁ{’ﬁuﬂﬁﬁﬁ KRB 2
KW E BAZHE S B AT o REE—
RRIREE S IERIRE R

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the ageing analysis of trade NIREEIKR - B ENMNRIBEBREE
payables, based on the date on which the trade payables were RE El EI’JEEM%\WZZDT
recognised, is as follows:
2021 2020
2021 % 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Within 3 months 3EAR 763,756 281,920
Over 3 months but less than 6 months 3TEA EEBLR6EA 7,878 2,238
Over 6 months but less than 12 months 6EANKEELRI21EA 16,471 2,821
Over 12 months 218 A E 157,025 471,731
945,130 758,710
Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and ()  FENEBSREBELKR 28
repayable on demand of which RMB93,050,000 is related to the ﬁﬁ(*fé?& Hh AR ¥ 93,050,000

acquisition of a subsidiary as mentioned in Note 35(c) to the
consolidated financial statements. The details of the related party
balance are summarised in Note 32(d)(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The details are
summarised in Note 32(d)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

(iif)

(iv)

Eéﬁi,ﬁ?\/\ﬁm&&%muﬁs FﬁLHﬁZ
ﬁ%-ﬁ%ﬁ%’&?*ﬁf‘% el ﬁ%
G ﬁ*/\,ﬁﬁ%iﬁiﬁﬁ‘ﬁz
Bt -

FEA IR Hxﬂx%mlﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁ#ﬁ %
BREZREE - FIERGREMTE
]R3 BT 5T 32(d) (i) Akt o

B AEER REREEX

ik 3

g o

=

NJE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

206

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

It represented consideration payables to the vendors of the
acquisitions of subsidiaries of which RMB2,797,000 is related to the
acquisition of a subsidiary during the reporting period as
mentioned in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand except for the amounts of RMB57,371,000 are interest
bearing at 3.85% per annum.

The amount represents the balance of consideration for
acquisition of a parcel of land and the properties on the land
parcel located in Danzhou, Hainan, the PRC. In the opinion of the
Directors, the settlement will be made at the end of 2022.

At 31 December 2021, the Group granted exclusive right to sales
agencies for promoting certain completed properties for a period
of time, and received the amount of RMB14,671,000 as guarantee
deposits (2020: RMB94,716,000). The guarantee deposits are
interest-free and will be returned to the sales agencies when the
sale targets have been met as stipulated in the agencies’
agreements or when the agencies’ agreements ended. The
amount is expected to be settled within 12 months.

Receipt in advance for rental income represented the lump sum
payment received from the tenants for lease of car parks. The
amounts are recognised to profit or loss as rental income over the
lease terms. At 31 December 2021, the receipt in advance for
rental income that are expected to be utilised after more than 12
months are RMB47,886,000 (2020: RMB49,830,000).

The amount represents the temporary receipts from the
customers for processing a certificate of property ownership of
the completed properties. The balances are interest-free and will
be paid to the government authorities when the certificates are
prepared.

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

23.

¥ 5 S HAB AT 3k

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

/\ ll‘F' )

EHSEEERMN T WHERBARMN
EFHRE - Hp AR 2,797,000

TCERER A B RS R AT 5 37 ATl A 3
SHRUENB AR AR - BRAR
5 57,371,000 L& F F E 385% 71 B
SN BESHEARER . RENRE

e
ERIEE -

ERASEABWEN R P BFREIM
B — 38 i N s xR E VAR
BEHE -EERAE HEBR2022
FRHETT ©

R2021F12 A31 8 K&EE A
EREBERTEE —HRR#EREET
EAKYIENEFREF - B YR
AR 14671000 TIERRFILZS
(2020%F = A R #94,716,0007T ) °
REEEARE  THBRERER
FHATET AR RN ESHE B IRB IR
Bip@EmiRETHERE - &
BN 2@ AR -

ERAERABKBEFEEEESE
LH—IRENR - ZSeENEE
HAZEERAREBRER - B
202112 A31H > FBEIB R BB
REAKSANFEKAS KA
B AR 47.8860007T (20204 © A
R # 49,830,000 7T) °

ERSREME SR MEREY X
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES BHI AR
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETIT
Contract liabilities arising from contracts EPFEHNEENEHEE
with customers 2,874,733 1,684,632

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and decreases
both occurred within the same year) of contract liabilities from contracts
with customers within HKFRS 15 during the year are as follows:

FR- REBMBREELE 15REE
NEF& ’sziﬁ’]/\%ﬁfétﬁ’ﬁ*‘ (T8
ERFEANBRAELEE) T

2021 2020

20214 20204F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBFT

At the beginning of the reporting period RS B) 1,684,632 568,928
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) HERTE AR (HEE36) (510,338) -
Recognised as revenue R AW (440,285) (437,716)
Receipt in advance TEM IR 2,140,724 1,553,420
At end of the reporting period IR EHIR 2,874,733 1,684,632

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there are 2 property
development projects obtained the pre-sale permit to commence the
sale of property under construction thereby increasing the amount

receipt in advance.

At 31 December 2021, the contract liabilities that are expected to be
settled after more than 12 months are RMB1,445,068,000 (2020:

RMB878,075,000).

The amount of transaction price allocated to the performance
obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at 31 December
2021 (including the balance of contract liabilities as disclosed above) is

HZE2021F12A31BIEEE 2@
FEIBERSEBEER  LAREE%
B - g iniEdkzkE -

PR20215F12 8318 » FBEIBERZ R 121@
BEMNELHEEAAREE1445068000
7T (20204 © AFR#5878,0750007C) °

R2021F 12 A3 BOBRERBHOETER
KET (A KRBT NIRZERSE
(BIEEXEEAGHEEBENGER)IOT

as follows:

2021 2020
2021 % 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFTT

Expected timing of revenue recognition: W 75 FERR B 78 B R A
Within 1 year 1R 1,498,592 871,581
More than 1 year ZN1F 1,490,603 1,410,034
2,989,195 2,281,615
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HE2021F 12831 HILFE

25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 25. SRAT R HARAE X
2021 2020
2021 5§ 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
Bank borrowings RITEK
Secured (note i) BEE(FEED 1,371,604 955,894
Other borrowings HAb &K
— Third parties —%=F
Secured (note i) B (L) 95,000 195,362
Unsecured (note ii) AR (P i) 44,970 47,093
— Related parties — @ s
Unsecured (note iv) HAEAR (BT iv) 129,328 555,337
269,298 797,792
Total bank and other borrowings RITRE M AEEE 1,640,902 1,753,686
The maturity of the bank borrowings and analysis of the amount due FITERND SR EBIEERE
based on scheduled payment dates set out in the loan agreements are HET NI BENREEES O T
as follows:
Within one year —&FR 239,715 46,667
In the second year F_F 448,525 145,333
In the third to fifth years, inclusive Fo-FEFERT (BIEEREMT) 683,364 763,894
1,371,604 955,894
Portion classified as current liabilities DEAERBE BN (239,715) (46,667)
Non-current portion EmBIE S 1,131,889 909,227
The maturity of the other borrowings HERNEBERAT
is as follows:
Within one year —&FR 232,685 656,487
In the second year —F 36,613 112,596
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-FEFERFT (BIEEEREMT) = 28,709
269,298 797,792
Portion classified as current liabilities NEATBABENID (232,685) (656,487)
Non-current portion FEMENEB 36,613 141,305
The total bank and other borrowings RIT M EMEFBENDTWT -
are analysed as follows:
Portion classified as current liabilities SEARBAGENESY 472,400 703,154
Non-current portion ERE D 1,168,502 1,050,532
Total bank and other borrowings MITREMMERETE 1,640,902 1,753,686
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25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(if)

(i)

(iv)

The bank borrowings were secured by a deposit of RMB7,936,900 (2020: Nil), certain
properties under development and completed properties held for sale with carrying
amount of RMB1,722,585,000 (2020: RMB1,145,394,000) and RMB79,085,000 (2020:
RMB119,849,000) respectively, interest bearing at rates 4.25% to 7.64% per annum,
RMB Loan rates of 3-5 years (including 5 years) times 115% per annum and the PRC
Loan Prime Rate plus 0.15% to 3.325% per annum (2020: 7% to 7.64% per annum,
RMB Loan rates of 3-5 years (including 5 years) times 115% per annum and the PRC
Loan Prime Rate plus 0.15% to 2.15% per annum), repayable between 2022 to 2025,
guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Company, intermediate holding company of non-
controlling shareholder and non-controlling shareholders and personal guaranteed
by directors of subsidiaries of the Company and ultimate controlling shareholder.

The secured other borrowing was secured by 15% equity interest in a subsidiary of
the Company, interest bearing at 8% per annum and repayable in 2022 (2020:
repayable between 2021 to 2022).

The amounts due were unsecured, interest bearing at 10% per annum and repayable
between 2022 to 2023.

As at 31 December 2021, the amounts due were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand except for the amounts due of RMB117,458,000 is interest
bearing at 7% to 8% per annum and repayable in 2022 and the amounts due of
RMB11,143,000 is interest bearing at 10% per annum and repayable in 2023
respectively (2020: the amount due of RMB420,000,000 was interest bearing at 1%
per annum and the amounts due of RMB1,610,000 was interest bearing at 8% per
annum and repayable in 2022 respectively).

The directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s borrowings at 31
December 2021 and 2020 approximate to their carrying amounts.

25. $RAT
GEE

0}

(iif)

(iv)

Je F A& K (4

SRITIE A AR % 7,936,900 7T (2020 4F : %)
miEe - BREED A AR 1,722,5850007T
(20204 : AR #1,145394,0007C ) B A R ¥
79,085,000 7T (2020 FF = A R #5119,849,000 7T )
WETERTPDERBEHECERDER
R R E F) R 4250 ZF 7.64% (2020 FF ¢ G F
R7%E764%) FIBSF(BESF)HAR
B R 2R 5 A 115% B9 4 FI R (2020 FF 3
ESF(RESTF)MAREERF R RN
NM5%HEFR)RKPEERZEZF RN
0.15% Z 3.325% #) G FI| & (2020 FF - PRI E K

H7

BREEFIEM015%E 2.15%FEFR)HE

I FE R 2022 FF 5 2025 F EAREEE - HaZK’Aﬂ
S AR - FEFERRAR SR A REE AR A A K 3E

ERBERER  YHARTMBELRNES
R B AR B R AR B AR

BHEMHOEMERAERRFIHE R B 15%
RRAEVEIE IR - 1R F F K gt B K FE 7 2022

FA{E 38 (20204F + A 2021 F = 2022 FF Hi R
fBig) -

HERCHEBEER  ZENEI0%EE - I
FER 2022 FF 5 2023 FE ARSI (EE -

R20215F12A31H BERSBAARE
117,458,000 TL 12 &F | L 7% = 8% 51 B R AR
2002 FEBUARLERSEEAARE 11,143,000
TR FEFE10% 1B R AR 2023 F &2 (2020
F RS E AR 420,000,000 7T 4% F F &
1% B ARG R & EAR 1610000 TTIEF
TRt B RAR 20202 FEE) I RS
HEAERMR R REERER

%mm@&mmﬁiﬁﬂ E'§$%ﬁ

REBEBRD

N EEEBREERE
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  26. %%
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

26.

210

(@)

(b)

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Current tax assets/(liabilities)

(@

A BABHIR DR B B 15 A

B BLIE R (FL)

2021 2020
20214 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Prepaid CIT TR EMEH 25,583 910
Prepaid LAT FE N+ I (E R 24,907 9,769
Current tax assets recognised in the RERE TSR R IR
consolidated statement of financial BIEAFRIB & 2=
position 50,490 10,679
Current CIT payable FERTENERE S FRIS TR (12,469) (24,006)
Current LAT payable JIE < BN A £ 3t 32 (B FX (201,192) (100,099)
Current tax liabilities recognised in the RERE IS AR R R TR
consolidated statement of financial BIEAfIE & &
position (213,661) (124,105)

Provision for LAT has been made pursuant to applicable tax laws
in the PRC. The Group considers the timing of settlement is
dependent on the practice of local tax bureaus. As a result of the
uncertainty of timing of payment of LAT, the provisions have been
recorded as current liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

b 3B B AR T AR BE R B E A A
BEREL - REERABEERM
BURRH T TS BRI ERIBN © A
RIS ERANSREOTEE
M B 20215 K 2020912 A318
THISERBEE WS AREE

& o

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised (b) CHEZEEREEE (A)
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Deferred tax assets recognised on the ?;’:l\ B FE AR S0 3R FE R A
consolidated statement of financial RIERIEE B
position 40,543 34,969
Deferred tax liabilities recognised on the RERA B SAR R RFERHY
consolidated statement of financial EEHIABE
position (491,804) (509,526)
(451,261) (474,557)
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26. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised (Continued)

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in

. R BB IR LR A BT AL (A8

(b) TR B BIHE & (f1F

(#)

FRARERE M AN R FERRIEL

the consolidated statement of financial position and the BMIEBEE (BE) AR KEH
movements during the year are as follows: mr
Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities
BEEHEEE BEHEEE
Temporary
differences Revaluation Revaluation Revaluation
arising from Other of arising from of
LAT  temporary investment Unused business LAT investment
provision  differences property  taxlosses combination provision property
H+ IR EH SRS
BEMEED Hit  REWE KXBA AHMEE IHEER
REEE BREE Bt HEBE WELR B REMXER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETR
(Note i) (Note ii) (Note iv) (Note i)
(i) (WzEn)  (WsEw)  (BEE)
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A18 - 7342 1438 31,188 (249,541) (259,118) (3,685)
Credited/(charged) to profitorloss 5t A/ (HIR B )B4 2864 (1,156) 97 (6,804) 5804 (3434) 358
At 31 December 2020 R2020612A31H 2,864 6,186 1,535 24,384 (243,647) (262,552) (3,327)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR (i 36)

(Note 36) - - - (4,165) - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-MHHBAR 825 - - - - (825) -
Credited to profitor loss FABRR - 624 6,349 1,941 7371 10,031 1,145
At 31 December 2021 R2021E12831H 3,689 6,810 7,884 22,160 (236,276) (253,346) (2,182)

WRRERARAT 20214 #
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised (Continued)

»‘/T\

26.

212

Notes:

0]

(iif)

(iv)

“Temporary differences arising from LAT provision” represents deferred tax
assets recognised on the timing differences for the amount of LAT provision

made for property projects.

In recognising and measuring of deferred tax assets in respect of the Group's
subsidiaries which suffered losses in current or preceding period,
management considered the projected future taxable income of these
subsidiaries. Accordingly, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets of
RMB22,160,000 and RMB24,384,000 as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
respectively as the Group estimates that these subsidiaries have properties
development projects which are probable to generate sufficient future
taxable profits to support their utilisation.

“LAT provision” in the deferred tax liability represents the amounts of LAT
recognised as an identifiable liability from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

The amount represents the deferred tax liability arising revaluation of assets
upon acquisition of Sanya Fenghuang Xincheng Industrials Co,, Ltd ("Sanya
Fenghuang Xincheng’) in 2008, after considered the effect of item (iii)
above which are tax deductible for CIT purpose.
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= o
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BRI ERTIIA » B - BRARE
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B JE R E SR 15 2 #0  AR 2K JE AR 5t g
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JT °
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26. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  26. %i6&

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

(0

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.4 to

the consolidated financial statements, the Group has not

recognised deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses of
RMB194,085,000 and RMB16,004,000 as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 respectively. The directors consider it is not probable that

future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will

be available from these subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the

unrecognised tax losses at the end of the reporting period would

expire in the following years:

IR DL R 1 BT A3 (48

AT W2 R Wt 6 I
BRIBLGE T EREMF24FTEH
ST B E - 72021 F K 20204 12
A31 8 AEEEARBEARBARE
585 Bl A R % 194,085,000 7T K2 A
R # 16,004,000 L FE R IR FE B IB &
E-BEEZRE  EIRAEARR
JERBREF A BEZEW B AR A
HEBRIERE -

RIBEES LT BENERER N
B NE RN KRR ERE R
B THIFE Eiw

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ TR AREETIT

Tax losses without expiration 4 & i EARR A B TE 5 1R 11,585 1,043
Tax losses expiring in: RTIFEfEmm T BEE

2021 2021 F - 222

2022 20226 1,467 367

2023 2023 F 833 208

2024 2024 FF 28,034 6,923

2025 2025 F 26,902 7,241

2026 2026 F 125,264 -

194,085 16,004

The tax losses for the subsidiaries in Hong Kong and USA do not

expire under current Hong Kong and USA tax legislations.

8 R ZEH B A T BIEEBRIR
BRTEERERRISEIL TR
B -

WERMARAT 202148 D13
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26. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(d)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

According to the PRC CIT Law and its related regulations, the
Group is subject to a withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by
tax treaties or arrangements, for dividends distributed by a PRC
enterprise to its immediate holding company outside the PRC for
earnings generated beginning on 1 January 2008. Undistributed
earnings generated prior to 1 January 2008 are exempt from such
withholding tax. According to the China-HK Tax Arrangement and
its relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which
is the “beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of a PRC
enterprise is entitled to a reduced withholding rate of 5%.

Deferred tax liabilities of RMB80,310,000 (2020: RMB50,154,000)
were not recognised in respect of the 10% PRC dividend
withholding tax that would be payable on the distribution of
retained profits of RMB803,109,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB501,540,000) in respect of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC
as the Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and it was determined that these profits would not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

27. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@

(b)

214

26. %f

(d)

& MBHIR B R A Fr AL (48)

A T W2 % ik 56 JE £
BRI EERE) R 86
&0 g E e EREMRREE
SNEY B RIS A R BL2008 1 A1
Eﬁ%éim%ﬂ%“ﬁmﬁéﬁ
 INEEEZB IR 10% K B R 40T
mm B FEFR TR U7 5 S e HE T A
B Mmm2008F1 A1BAEAE
B AR D R & T B ER R A TR
M - RIBFFEEFTBENTR I HE
REBBEER  SRIExEEA]
BB —M P B2 25% A L4
ENEEREANBERERA %
AR R TEFRE R -

R2021F12A31H - AEB K
MASBEEFEBEAMB RGO
IREE & ) A R # 803,109,000 7T.(2020
£ A R #501,540,0007C ) FE &
9 10% i & B B 38 40 T3 FE SRR IE
REAGE AERSEAAR
#.80,310,0007C (20204 : A R ¥
50,154,000 7C) © & 52 R AR A B
I E AR MR EER  WRTE
ERBEEMERTSEZE R FE
IO -

27. JBAS - fit s KBS

Dividends @ KkE
The board of directors does not recommend the distribution of a EEg T BB REEEZ 2021412
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020 Nil). A3 BIEFE 2 REIRE (20204 -
) o
Share capital (b) A
2021 2020
20215 20204F
Number Number

of shares RMB’000 of shares RMB'000

ROEE AR%¥TxR kih&gE ARBFT
Issued and fully paid: EEITREHATE
At 1 January and 31 December 71 A1BX12A31H 300,000,000 2,585 300,000,000 2,585
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27. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

Share premium represents the difference between the total
amount of the par value of shares issued and the amount of
the net proceeds received from the public offering in 2016.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position to pay off
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(ii) Otherreserve

Other reserve was created as a result of the transactions
with the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder in his capacity as
equity holder under reorganisation to rationalise the Group
structure in preparation for the initial listing of the
Company's shares on the Stock Exchange in 2016.

(iii) Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary which do not result in change in
control as set out in Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial

statements.

(iv) Statutory surplus reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, the PRC subsidiaries of
the Group (excluding foreign investment enterprises) are
required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation, as
determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches

50% of their registered capital.

The transfer to this reserve must be made before

distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

27. A - fitfis KRR (58)

(0

fi s 4 1 e L 9

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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27. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

216

(0

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv) Statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

Statutory reserve fund can be used to cover previous years'
losses, if any, and may be converted into share capital by
the issue of new shares to shareholders in proportion to
their existing shareholdings or by increasing the par value
of the shares currently held by them, provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

(v) Exchangereserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the Company and foreign operations having
functional currencies other than RMB. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to fund its property development projects, provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholders
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and securities afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

There was no externally imposed capital requirements on the
Group's subsidiaries in 2021 and 2020.
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28.

SHARE AWARDS SCHEME

On 30 April 2021, the Board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
adopted and approved a share award scheme (the “Scheme”). Upon the
authorisation of the Board, may from time to time, at its absolute
discretion select any individual or corporate entity being a director
(including executive and non-executive director), employee, officer and
consultant of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any company
wholly owned by any of the aforesaid participant(s) for participation in
the Scheme as a selected participants (the “Selected Participant(s)”),
and grant such number of awarded shares (the “Awarded Shares”) to
any Selected Participant. The Selected Participants are not required to
pay any price to receive the Awarded Shares.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the
Board and the trustee of the Scheme (the “Trustee”) in accordance with
the rules of the Scheme and the trust deed. The Trustee shall hold the
trust fund in accordance with the terms of the trust deed.

The Board may from time to time cause to pay a contributed amount to
the Trust by way of settlement or otherwise which shall constitute part
of the trust fund, for the purchase or subscription (as the case may be) of
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) and other purposes set out in the
scheme rules and the trust deed. In connection with the implementation
of the Scheme, the Board may from time to time instruct the Trustee to
purchase the Shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
to hold them in trust for the benefit of the Selected Participants on and
subject to the terms and conditions of the rules of the Scheme and the
trust deed.

The purposes of the Scheme are (i) to recognise the contributions by
Selected Participants and to provide incentives thereto in order to retain
them for the continuous operation and future development of the
Group; and (i) to attract suitable personnel for further development of
the Group. The Scheme shall be valid and effective for ten years
commencing from the adoption date.

As at 31 December 2021, no share was purchased and held on trust by
the Trustee.

As at 31 December 2021, no share was granted to the Selected
Participants under the Scheme.

28.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and equity price risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

218

(@)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets on the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk on these financial assets.

Trade receivables

The Group closely monitors the collection payments from
customers in accordance with payment schedule agreed with
customers and follow up action is taken to recover overdue debts,
if any. The Group's trade receivables relate to a certain number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk.

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for
trade receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date. In estimating the ECL, the
Group has taken into account the historical actual credit loss
experience over the past three years and available press
information, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific
to the debtors and general economic conditions of the industry in
which the counterparties operate, in estimating the probability of
default of these financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in
each case. The directors of the Company consider the ECL of these
financial assets to be insignificant after taking into account the
credit quality and repayment history of the counterparties.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the
consolidated financial statements, represents the Group's
exposure to credit risk. The management considers the ECL of
trade receivable to be insignificant so that no significant
impairment loss was recognised during the year.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 20
to the consolidated financial statements.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

(@)

Credit risk (Continued)
Restricted cash and bank balances

Substantially all of the Group's pledged bank deposits and bank
balances were deposited in creditworthy global banks and
licensed financial institutions in the PRC, which management
considers they are without significant credit risks.

Financial guarantee contracts issued

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from the amount of
contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees issued by
the Group as disclosed in Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements. The management considers the credit risk exposure
to financial guarantees provided to property purchasers is limited
because the mortgage loan granted to the property buyers are
secured by the properties and the market prices of the properties
are higher than the guaranteed amounts.

Other receivables — third parties

The management determines that certain other receivables from
third parties are credit-impaired after taken into account the age
of these balances and the past settlement history of these parties.
An impairment loss in aggregate of RMB11,766,000 (2020:
RMB11,766,000) was made in respect of these balances as a result
of the ECL assessment conducted by the management of the
Company. The movements of accumulated impairment losses on
these balances are detailed in Note 20(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company considers that the remaining other receivables from
third parties as at 31 December 2021 have low credit risk based on
these parties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. In estimating
the ECL and whether these balances are credit-impaired, the
Company has taken into account the historical actual credit loss
experience over the past 3 years and the financial position of
respective parties by reference to, among others, their
management accounts, adjusted for forward-looking factors, in
estimating the probability of default, as well as the loss upon
default. The management of the Company considers the ECL of
these balances to be insignificant so no loss allowance was
recognised in this respect.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

(@)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other receivables — loan to third parties

The Group performs ECL assessment on loan to third parties based
on lifetime ECL.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
taken into account the financial capacity of the third parties,
adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific to the
debtors and general economic conditions of the industry in which
the third parties operate, in estimating the probability of default of
these financial assets, as well as the loss upon default. The
management of the Company considers the ECL of the loan to
third parties to be insignificant.

Loan to/amount due from associates

The Group performs ECL assessment on loan to/amount due from
associates based on lifetime ECL.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
taken into account the financial position of the associates by
reference to the management accounts, adjusted for forward-
looking factors that are specific to the debtors and general
economic conditions of the industry in which the associates
operate, in estimating the probability of default of these financial
assets, as well as the loss upon default. The management of the
Company considers the ECL of the loan to/amount due from the
associates to be insignificant after taking into account the financial
position and credit quality of the associates.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

(@)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables — loan to/amount due from related
parties and non-controlling shareholders

The Group considers that loan to/amount due from related parties
and non-controlling shareholders have low credit risk based on
the borrowers'’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment on
loan to/amount due from related parties and non-controlling
shareholders measured on 12-month ECL and reflects the short
maturities of the exposures.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
whether the financial asset is credit-impaired, the Group has taken
into account the historical actual credit loss experience over the
past 3 years and the financial position of the counterparties by
reference to, among others, their management or audited
accounts and available press information, adjusted for forward-
looking factors that are specific to the debtors and general
economic conditions of the industry in which the counterparties
operate, in estimating the probability of default of these financial
assets, as well as the loss upon default in each case. The
management of the Company considers the ECL of these financial
assets to be insignificant after taking into account the financial
position and credit quality of the counterparties.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the year.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s management reviews the liquidity position of the
Group on an ongoing basis, including review of the expected cash
inflows and outflows, sale/pre-sale results of respective property
projects and the progress of the planned property development
projects in order to monitor the Group's liquidity requirements in
the short and longer terms.
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29.
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

29. B R B B B A THE (F)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) WRBNE &b (A7)
Details of maturity analysis for financial liabilities are summarised SRBEMNEIEHB OB
as follows: T
As at 31 December 2021 7"2021512A31H
Carrying  Contractual Within
amount cash flow 1year 1-2 years 2-5years
RHE BORSR —£H0R —E@F “ERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT AR®TRT AR®TRT AR®T:R
Trade payables B I ENFE 945,130 945,130 945,130 = =
Other payables (excluded Hh et sua (e
receipts inadvance forrental BN EWA -
income, accrued payrolland ~ JEETEF S &
other tax payables) Hib R HIE) 801,606 803,264 803,264 = =
Bank and other borrowings I REMER 1,640,902 1,909,043 524,028 539,824 845,191
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%E12A31H 3,387,638 3,657,437 2,272,422 539,824 845,191
As at 31 December 2020 7"2020512A31H
Carrying Contractual Within
amount cash flow 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years
FEE AOHER —ER —EmF “ERF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Trade payables B I ENTE 758,710 758,710 758710 - -
Other payables (excluded EthERZUE (TR
receipts inadvance forrental AR EWA -
income, accrued payrolland  FEFEH S K
other tax payables) HiEMFE) 623919 625,648 625,648 - -
Lease liabilities MEaE 1,049 1,140 1,140 - -
Bank and other borrowings BITREMER 1,753,686 1948723 785,846 301,420 861457
As at 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A31H 3,137,364 3,334,221 2,171,344 301,420 861457
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

(c)

(d

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rates risk arises primarily from restricted cash,
cash and cash equivalents and bank and other borrowings.
Restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents and bank and other
borrowings with floating interest rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. For bank and other borrowings, the Group’s
policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and
floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate exposure and
the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings in consideration
of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 100
(2020: 100) basis point higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's loss for the year would decrease/
increase and the retained profits would increase/decrease by
RMB2,206,000 (2020: profit for the year and retained profits would
decrease/increase by RMB567,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the year and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all
financial instruments in existence during the year. The 100 (2020:
100) basis point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual end of the reporting period.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
transactions which give rise to payables that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional currency
of the entity to which the transactions relate. Almost all the
Group's operating activities are carried out in the PRC with most of
the transactions denominated in RMB. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents and other payables which are denominated in HKD
and USS. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign
currency exposures regularly and consider no significant exposure
on its foreign exchange risk.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

(d)

224

Currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of the
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB,
translated using the spot rate at the year end date. Differences
resulting from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

PO LB 7 B R N T (48
(d) &W k(%)
TRAMRNEERNRERARAAR

RAEREERINGEEE ZINME
ﬁi‘éﬂﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁuwéﬁ?%ﬁt\%\tﬁ’]
ERERE - REREHR  AREE
MAREIR ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi%%;ﬁ
HBIERRE RIS o RIB SN SERE ) B
BHRRBEXNAEE2I|EE S|
HZEBETEREEN

2021 2020
202145 2020 4F
HKD us$ HKD uss$
BT EH BT o
Expressed in RMB’000 SHEENAARETR
Other payables E M ERFUR (57,183) - (56,549) (19,575)
Sensitivity analysis BRBE DM

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis is calculated based on the
major net foreign currency exposure of the Group as at the end of
the reporting period, assuming 5% (2020: 5%) shift of RMB against
HKD and USS.

Results from a 5% (2020: 5%) strengthening of the RMB against
HKD and USS would increase the Group's loss for the year and
decrease the retained profits as at 31 December 2021 by
approximately RMB2,144,000 (2020: decrease the Group's profit for
the year and retained profits by approximately RMB1,627,000). A
5% (2020: 5%) weakening of the RMB against HKD and US$ as at
the same dates would have had the equal but opposite effect.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies of
the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group's presentation currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2020.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

(e)

)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from investments held
under financial asset at FVPL amounted to RMB2,607,000 (2020:
RMB5,654,000). The Group does not actively trade these
investments. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks and
different return profiles. No sensitivity analysis is prepared for the
price risk as the directors of the Company considered that the
Group is not subject to significant amount of risk for both years.

Fair value measurement

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant

unobservable inputs.

29. B R B B B A THE (F)

(e)

)

Lt £ 4% J B
REERAZIEATFEFABEZ S
BEEE NI EEENERE
& A 2,607,0007T (2020 4F = A
R #5,65400070 ) o AE B EFE
BEEZERE BEHEEBHRBER
ETERRETREHAEEHRE
BEIRZER c AR A RREERA
AEERZWEFEYESE AR
ER MO E R E AR R AR R SR
EoHT -

A F A R

TREREE U RE LN
BFEATEEE - NHRE AT
HEAREREMENATFES A
=ERTFEBR - BRI E R
ERRANBRTITHRRAES
1t HATENEELATHE -

— B hE:UE-RBAK
B EOATE B
HREEXEENAKE
AIRFHE B AR RIS
BEHREHBRREST
g

— BB RE:UBE_HKBAH

BIAENRTE BHE

ABRREABIBARES

AE-RBABER

Ko RREREATAE

RHARE - THEER

B AZIE AL ET S

BEAFE2ENEAR

e

— FZR HE:EREATATERR

BABBEOLFE

WRRERARAT 20214 #

225



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 /N Y, 23
w5 R R
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE021F12A38ILFE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

29. B R B B B A THE (F)

(f  Fair value measurement (Continued) H  2A°FEHE ()
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
4K EZH E=® st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT

226

As at 31 December 2021 202112831 H

Financial assets at FVPL BAFETTABRRN
SREE
Unlisted equity securities IEETIRARE S 2,607 - 2,607
As at 31 December 2020 720206 12A31H
Financial assets at FVPL BAFETTABRN
SREE
Unlisted equity securities FLETRAFS 1,654 - 1,654
Structured deposits BT 4,000 - 4,000

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and no
transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurement

Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities is evaluated by the
directors with reference to latest financial statements of the
investee.

Structured deposits

The fair value of the structured deposits is evaluated by the
directors which determined by reference to recent market
transaction.
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BHE
30.

31.

202112 A31BIEFE

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS 30. EAG K
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2021 not provided RAEBIRERARN 2021 F12 A31 BER
for in consolidated financial statements were as follows: SAITHE R EYENT ¢
2021 2020
2021 % 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETF T
Contracted but not provided for BRI HEREE 1,966,897 1,259,380
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/GUARANTEES ISSUED 31. BURAR TG R

Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
purchasers of the Group's properties. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, if there is default of the mortgage payments by these
purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owned by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group’s guarantee period
commences from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and
ends upon the earlier of issue of the real estate ownership certificates
after the purchasers taking possession of the relevant properties; or the
full settlement of mortgage loans by the purchasers. The maximum
amount of guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities granted to
the purchasers of the Group's properties at the end of the reporting
period was RMB974,201,000 (2020: RMB753,884,000).

The directors consider that it is not probable that the Group will sustain
a loss under these guarantees as during the periods under guarantees,
the Group can take over the ownerships of the related properties and
sell the properties to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the
banks. The directors also consider that the fair market value of the
underlying properties is able to cover the outstanding mortgage loans
guaranteed by the Group in the event the purchasers default payments
to the banks. In addition, the Group has not encountered any incidents
of default in payment of mortgage by the purchasers since 2017, the
directors consider that the likelihood of default of payments by the
purchasers is minimal and therefore the financial guarantee measured at
fair value is immaterial.

The Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect of these
guarantees as its fair value is considered to be minimal by the directors.
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32.

228

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, the Group entered into
the following significant related party transactions during the year ended
31 December 2021.

(@ Name and relationship with related parties/connected

32. HCKBW T o K BH AL 5
BARBRGEMERRLMED RED

BARE T BRI - NERBEEE 2021512
3MNAIFERIZATEABB RS -

@ PR T7 TR T % B

parties Ji/ R T i B £

During the year ended 31 December 2021, transactions with the HE0QIFNANBLEFE - H

following parties were considered as related party transactions: WTEATHRSERBEE TR
5

Name of party Relationship with the Group

B BB ERAC SR B YRR R

Yeung Man Ultimate Controlling Shareholder

58 REPERRARER

Nanjing Huizhi Construction Installation Engineering Co., Ltd.
(‘Nanjing Huizhi")
AREERELETIRARAR(AREE])

Nanjing Zhonghui Construction Engineering Co., Ltd.
(‘Nanjing Zhonghui Construction”)
ARPERZETRRARAR((ARAEEE])

Nanjing Diken Engineering Design Consultancy Co., Ltd.
(‘Nanjing Diken")
ARBETRERIAHAERAG ((FRAE])

Nanjing Hengjida Engineering Design Consultancy
Company Limited (“Nanjing Hengjida")
AREBLAELRRAEAGRAR ((ARELE])

Lianyungang Hui Neng Foundation Construction
Engineering Co,, Ltd. (‘Lianyungang Hui Neng")
EEEEREARERIIEARAR (EEBERE])

Nanjing Huiyao Decoration Construction Co., Ltd.

("Nanjing Huiyao”)
AREREMS AR (RER])

HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
R R AE B B B

N/A (31 December 2020: Entity controlled by the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholder) (Note (i))
TEF (20204 12 A 31 El BRI AR IR
22 Il ) B B ) (PR 5T (1)

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
RIS O E

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
R IRRIEH N E

knla

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
BRARERRRIERINE 8

Associate of a group controlled by the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder
F AR A 42 A AR SR 22 il ) SR (B O B 2 R )
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AR B R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021E1283181EEE

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

32. FEREW 738 5 K BEAS 5 (48)

(@)

Name and relationship with related parties/connected

parties (Continued)

@ R T7 TR T A A J BH Th
i /B T3 B IR 4% (%)

Name of party Relationship with the Group
B A8 BEAREEABAR

Zhonghui (Jiangsu) Decoration Park Engineering Company Limited

(“Zhonghui (Jiangsu)”)

hREOIEF) RHEMRTRERAB ([HECIHK) )

Non-controlling Shareholder A
FEFERR AR A
Non-controlling Shareholder B
FEFERRAR R B

Chung Wai (Hong Kong) Investment Construction
Company Limited ("Chung Wai (Hong Kong)")
TE(BFB)REERBERLAF((HE(EHR)])

N/A (2020: Entity controlled by the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder) (Note (i)

TEAQ020%F : RXZERRRIFHNEES)
(PR=E ()

N/A (2020: Non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary)
TEA 0204F « —EMEB AR IEERARR)

N/A (2020: Non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary)
TEM (20204 : —RIFEE A RIIFEARAR R )

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
RIEERBCRIEH N E R

Zhou Li Executive director and Chief executive
officer of the Group

EE REEPITESRITBEER

Shenzhen Aolan Associate

R BEE B 2% N ]

hEERERCRYIDERAF (FEEZEH)

rEERZERCRYIDBRATD((HEEE])

I RBEEARAA (EITRE)
I RBEZEARAR (EITRE)

Zhonghui Investment North America Corp.
(“Zhonghui Investment”)

Zhonghui Investment North America Corp.
([Zhonghui Investment | )

TREKFEEMZ (BN ERAR (PRER)

PREREERZ(EMNBERAR(HRER])

Entity controlled by the Executive director and
Chief executive officer

HITESRITRAREFNERE

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— P8 A B FRE R

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
BRI R AE S B e

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
E—ZKTIHXﬂXﬁTI%HE/‘]?;

WERRARAT 202148%  2)0
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

Name and relationship with related parties/connected

parties (Continued)

Name of party
S B8

32. FORBAM T o I B AL oy (K])

@ R T7 TR T A A J BH Th

i /B T3 B IR 4% (%)

Relationship with the Group
BEALBEHBAE

Hunan Jinzhong Property Investment Group Co., Ltd.
(‘Hunan Jingzhong")

Hunan Jinzhong Property Investment Group Co,, Ltd.
([Hunan Jingzhong |)

B EERMEREERAR (BERR
MRBESRMEREARAR (EEER])
AR EREEERARAR (EARAER)
AR EREEERERAR ([RERES])
EREEHMRERRERERECAT (EEER
EREERTREXREBEEREEARA(TEAER])

AINEIIREBRAR (RYIEEH"
AR EBRAR (CRINEH])

Zhongtou Zhiye (Guangzhou) Co. Ltd. ("Zhongtou Zhiye”)
RIREZX(BMBRAR([HREX])
HREEYMEXERERAT (HEEY)
BrREYMCXERERAR([EHEEY])

EASHMERERARAR (REES)
FEIAEBHMERERARAR(EEES])

Guangxi Runlang

- ispe i
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Holding entity of a former non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary

— R B B AT FE AR A SR I A B8

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
RZZERBCRIEH N E R

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
BRI R IE Fl ) H 58

Non-controlling shareholder of a
former subsidiary

—EIRIPT B A RIFEFEAR AR R

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

i lENGIES

Non-controlling shareholder of a
former subsidiary

— 1 AT Y /B8 2 B SEHE AR AR R

Former non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary

— PP 2 B AT IR AR AR

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— [ B /BB 2 B FEFE AR AR

Former associate

CIE NG
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

Name and relationship with related parties/connected
parties (Continued)

Name of party
S B8

32. FORBAM T o I B AL oy (K])

@ R T7 TR T A A J BH Th
i /B T3 B IR 4% (%)

Relationship with the Group
BEALBEHBAE

Guangxi Hailan
EFRE

FINTTREREBRAA (RERE)
PNHREREBRAB ([ RERE D

CSM Capital LLC (“CSM")
CSM Capital LLC ([cSM])

200 Ocean Boulevard II, LLC
200 Ocean Boulevard I, LLC

410 Sierra Vista Avenue, LLC (“410 Sierra Vista")
410 Sierra Vista Avenue, LLC ([ 410 Sierra Vista |)

ERXRREEXERAR (BEAXBERE
BRXBREEXFARAFR((EAXBERE])
RYBFREEXBRAR (RYBREE)
ANBEEXFRAFR(TRINEZRES])
MRTTEEMERZEARAR (FERTE")

ARTERERBEERAR (ERTE])
Note:

(i) From June 2021, Nanjing Zhonghui Construction and Zhonghui (Jiangsu)
creased to be connected persons of the Group.

Former associate

AilEE = 2 R

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— [ B /B8 2 R FEHE AR AR

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— ) B BB 2 R FEE AR AR

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

L IEMNGIES

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— ) B BB 2 R FEE AR AR

Non-controlling shareholder of
a former subsidiary

—EIRIFT B A RIFEFEAR AR R

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
RZZERBCRIEH N E R

Entity controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
REIEIRARRAE S B &

[::3

ki

MIEE -

[0 BH2021F6 R mAPERERT
BHOLE) THALNEEMBEEAL -

WRRERARAT 20214 #
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 32. HOKBAW 385 M BRHAL 5 (4)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) FEEMMABHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, REBFTEEFEASHHM(BIEM
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and certain of LA HRERMF 10BN RF]
the highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 10 to the EENETEESHFMEE XSS
consolidated financial statements, is as follows: ) -

2021 2020
20214 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARETE

Wages, salaries and other benefits I& - HehEHER 5,546 7,993
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIFT B 277 100
5,823 8,093
The above remuneration to key management personnel is FE R TFEEERAENHSE
included in “staff costs” (Note 8 to the consolidated financial RIEINRA] (& BTN TE
statements). 8) °
(c) Transactions with related parties/connected parties (¢ BB TT BRI 2 5)
2021 2020
2021 F 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRTE ARKBTET

Construction and consultancy T2 REMI AR (MO 5E ()

services (Note (i) 106,125 96,056
Repayment of lease liabilities (Note (ii)) BEMEA®E (M) 1,059 1,864
Corporate management fee income NRIEBBEIA (FEE i)

(Note (iii)) 846 1,394
Building management fee (Note (iv)) HEMEES (M) 5,850 -
Consideration for disposal subsidiaries HEMBARBRE (FIFE36)

(Note 36) 116,063 -
Consideration for disposal of an associate HE—HEE QRN RE

(Note 15(ii)) (B E 15Gii)) 71,880 -
Consideration for acquisition of WK B A R JE R = R E

non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (P 5 35(a) 2 35(c))

(Notes 35(a) and 35(c)) 167,887 -

232 HAILAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

vl N 2
Ara B R [ T
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Transactions with related parties/connected parties
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Construction and consultancy services

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
received construction and consultancy services from the
following related parties:

32. HOKBAW 385 M BRHAL 5 (4)

(9]

(i)

S WG T3, TRy 2R B ()

IRRERERE
HE2021F12831HIEFE -
AEBEEB TS @ EST
2 R EBRIBR A ¢

2021 2020
20215 2020 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREFIT

Nanjing Huizhi [EpeEs 53,411 64,751
Zhonghui (Jiangsu) FRE (CTER) 52,714 31,305
106,125 96,056

The above transactions between the Group and its related
parties mainly comprised construction services in relation to
earthmoving, scenery design and engineering on the
Group's properties under development from construction
companies, which are controlled by the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder. The related party transactions also
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Repayment of lease liabilities

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
rented a premise from the following related party:

(ii)

LA EARSEBEEREE MR
STERRBREQNTFEASE
EEEPYERHET T
2 S2BRFARIERED
TR ZEREEQG I
R IERIRE TR o B8
RS IMEK TR RIS
UAERTEMRBERERS °

HEHEEE
HZE2021F12A31HILFE -
AEER T BEESEEY
¥

2021 2020

20215 20204F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMTRT ARBTT

Chung Wai (Hong Kong) FEEBD) 1,059 1,864

WRRERARAT 20214 #
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 32. EORBAWH T3 o M BRE AL by (F)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Transactions with related parties/connected parties
(Continued)

(o) SBHBHTT BT W22 5 (48)

(iii) Corporate management fee income (iii) ATREEERA
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group HE2021F12ANBILEFE -
provided corporate management services to the following REERM N EHE TIRER
related parties: RIEERT :
2021 2020
20215 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Chung Wai (Hong Kong) FEEE) 846 911
Zhonghui Investment Zhonghui Investment = 483
846 1394
The related party transactions also constitute continuing BB 2 BN iR A
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the FUAERTHEBEBER
Listing Rules. o
(iv) Building management fee (iv) BEYERE

During the year 31 December 2021, the Group provided
building management services to the following related

HE2021F 12831 HIEEE -
AN 52 [ 16 DA R B T 4R (i i

parties: EMERRE ¢
2021 2020
2021 F 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
BERR BERR 5,850 -

The related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Balances with related parties/connected parties/
non-controlling shareholders/associates

(i)

Amounts due from connected parties/non-controlling
shareholders/associates

32. HORBAW T3 o) KB 5y (48)

(d) SBH Ty TR T T I B

WA F A R
(i) FEWBRET FEIER R
&N TEFIE
Maximum

balance during

the year 2021 2020
FAREER 20214 2020 4
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFIT AR¥T R ARBTFT
Non-trade related: EE 580 ¢
Non-controlling shareholders FEPERR AR R
Non-controlling Shareholder A ZE¥EAZ A& ER A
(Note 20 (iv)) (Bft3E 20 (iv) 164 = 164
Non-controlling Shareholder B FEIEAR IR B
(Note 20 (iv)) (Pft%E 20 (iv) 3277 = 3277
EFIEE (Note 20 (xi)) BEFEES (ML 20 () 195,000 = 195,000
BREKBIRE BEXBIRE
(Note 20 (vi)) (Bft3E 20 (vi)) 44414 = 44,414
Associates 2 NG|
Shenzhen Aolan (Note 15) RYIIZEE (FIEET15) 26,551 15,327 26,551
Guangxi Runlang (Note 15) BB (HizE15) 65,681 - 65,681
Guangxi Hailan (Note 15) B E (i 15) 20,293 - 20,293
Connected party s
R RER (Note 20 (v)) R RER (B 20v) 500 500 500
Center Drive Center Drive 21,900 16,167 -
31,994 355,880

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand except for the amounts due from A FREEK is
interest bearing at 12% per annum and repayable in 2022
(2020: amounts due from non-controlling Shareholder A
and non-controlling Shareholder B are secured by an equity
interest in the subsidiary of the Company and repayable in
2029, the amounts due from EFA RIS is refundable upon
the completion of the development and sales of the
properties project of Guangxi Minggui).

EWRFEBEEA 2B R
EEREERE  HERKPRE
KRB FF E12%5T B3
JAM 2022 FF BB (20204 - &
U I 422 % A% BRA K% FF 45 AR A%
HBFIBUAKRRQRIMER T
% A 1 3K HR 30 ZB TR 2029 FF (8
B REKEAESEHIEBER
BABEYMEEEMNAER
HESTREBRE)

WEEMARAT 202148 )35
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE021F12A38ILFE

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

32. FORBAM T o I B AL oy (K])

Connected parties

BAETy

(d) Balances with related parties/connected parties/ (d) SEBRWE T BRIk
non-controlling shareholders/associates (Continued) WA F A R ()
(ii) Amounts due to related parties/connected parties/ (i) FENEEHE BER FEE
non-controlling shareholders % B SRR
2021 2020
20214 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Trade related: Z SR8
Connected parties HAE T
Nanjing Huizhi AREE 46,033 91,319
Lianyungang Hui Neng EEEE 17,102 21,148
Nanjing Zhonghui Construction Pt - 53,575
Nanjing Hengjida mRfErE 516 -
Nanjing Huiyao FAREE 2,029 -
Zhonghui (Jiangsu) FEOIEHR) - 2,623
Nanjing Diken EEpagi=EL 4,350 141
Hailan Huiyuan BEER 1,465 65
71,495 168,871
Non-trade related: IEE M
Other payables due to: JEAT LA T & 77 6 EoAth & A~ 5R0H
Non-controlling shareholders FEPERR AR R
YL BB (Note 23 (iif) VR TR B (BT 23(iii)) 59,940 144,038
FINE B (Note 23 (iii) Y28 (KT 5T 23i0) 73,726 64,102
Zhongtou Zhiye (Note 23 (i) R E 2 (P &E 23(i) - 7,840
&R E Y (Note 23 (i) fEr & (P EE 23iii)) - 54017
EF9EE (Note 23 (i) BEFEE (M3 23(i) 473 473
CSM (Note 25 (iv)) CSM (P FE25(v)) 1,712 1,610
200 Ocean Boulevard Il, LLC 200 Ocean Boulevard Il, LLC 12,083 -
410 Sierra Vista 410 Sierra Vista 564 -
Related parties F2ys)
FEEER (Note 25 (iv)) e (P 253v)) 726 133,726
Hunan Jingzhong (Note 23 (ii)) Hunan Jingzhong (B & 23(ii)) = 28,280
FNRBRFREHE FYNRFRE 96,050 -

Zhonghui Investment (Note 23 (ii)) Zhonghui Investment ({7 23(ii)) 924 5,088
R HTE (Note 23 (i) A S ETR (BT 5 23(i) 59,511 420,000
FI AT (Note 25(1v) EEACTEREM) 119,310 -

425,019 859,174

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand except for the amounts due to CSM and 410
Sierra Vista are interest bearing at 8% per annum, the
amount due to 200 Ocean Boulevard II, LLC is interest
bearing at 10% per annum and the amount due to R JT
B HBEE is interest bearing at 7% to 8% (2020: the amount
due to B R HT 1% is interest bearing at 1% per annum and
the amount due to CSM is interest bearing at 8% per

annum).
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B FE 15F CSM K2 410 Sierra Vista
RIBIRER R 8wt B - FENT
200 Ocean Boulevard II, LLC 3%
T8 3% R R 0% 5T B 1 FE
B R IL B M E B R R
7% % 8%t B (20206 ¢ JE A
AT R E F IR 1% 5T
B % FE 5 CSM R TE 2 4F Fl) &
8%ET B ) I B RIE B &
iR B REERERER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A3BIFE

33. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 33. HfbH 4 gk

(@ Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash used in (@) 5 B B v A AR S 0 BT Y
operations B4 BHE
2021 2020
20215 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Operating activities KR
Profit before taxation e 5 B 1) 90,301 185,434
Adjustments for: FE
Written-off of property, plant and equipment 53 - &= K 254 8 -
Depreciation and amortisation of property, Y BE KRB R
plant and equipment and ST B BT I b
intangible assets 3,297 2,995
Depreciation on right-of-use assets CREEERE 945 1,735
Share of results of associates DIGEE R RIFEE 2,784 3,505
Gain on step acquisition of a subsidiary a2 A NS e - (8,953)
Provision for credit loss on {EH E fib fE U 1A
other receivables EEEIBRE = 1,547
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries S B A F s (17,142) -
Gain on disposal of associates e AT RS (4,720) -
Exchange alignment PE X % 8,912 (5,883)
Finance costs BTG AR 32,197 18,458
Interest income FBUA (5,827) (5461)
Realised gain on financial assets at fair BAFEFABECCREE
value through profit or loss, net EEZEERWEFE (8,538) (7,292)
Changes in fair value of BEMFEATEE
investment properties 29,978 1,824
Operating profit before EEESEEAZ
changes in working capital WA 132,195 187,909
Changes in working capital EEELEE
Increase in deposits paid for acquisition of W B + 4 2 2
land and properties B 1M - (680,000)
Increase in guarantee deposit paid EARE RGN - (195,000)
Increase in properties under development R YN (1,425,656) (1,436,070)
(Increase)/Decrease in completed FEHEEERME
properties held for sale (), (119,542) 291,264
Increase in contract cost X olp@is:pii (52,851) (39,861)
Increase in trade and B 5 N E A EWEIR
other receivables =N (364,005) (22,185)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N EoAh S BB S AN 437,979 84,740
Increase in contract liabilities AHEEEM 1,655,437 1,115,704
Increase in restricted cash SRR 3R 12 0 (149,689) (178,651)
Cash generated from (used in) operations %&3EE 4 (FTH)WES 113,868 (872,150)
WEVRARAR 2021F® D37
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

33. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) HA B e E SR (4
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities (b) ﬁﬂ{ﬁ‘{ﬁifjﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
Amounts Amount Amount due
Bank loans dueto dueto to a former
and other related non-controlling non-controlling Lease
borrowings parties  shareholders  shareholder liabilities Total
BITEHR R EE s ERE2R  ENAEER
Eftfas HE RRFE RRFE HEaE @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL
At1January 2020 R2020%1A18 331985 702 261497 - 4291 598475
Net cash flows: BemFE:
New bank borrowings raised SENTRITER 770000 - - - - 770000
New other borrowings raised :ﬁ MHEMER 1,607,710 - - - - 1,607,710
Repayment of bank borrowings BRFITEH (4,666) - - - - (4,666)
Repayment of other borrowings BEAME (1,151,060) - - - - (1,151,060)
Advance from non-controlling SRR RS
shareholders - - 72415 - - 72415
Repayment to non-controlling mIEERREER
shareholders - - (64,999 - - (64,999)
Advance from a former FEZE UGS
non-controlling shareholder - - - 1963 - 1963
Advance from related parties BE R - 32666 - - - 30666
Repayment of lease liabilities ERHZaE - - - - (1,864) (1,864)
Other changes: Eftg®:
Effect on lease modification REBNE2 - - - - (1,356) (1,356)
Effect on step acquisition of a subsidiary 777 %MT% Giliop% 190,000 - 54017 - - 24017
Reallocation EEip - - (52/460) 52460 - -
Accrued interests J?g’éﬁ”,% 10930 - - - 166 11,096
Exchange realignment {3 A% (1213) - - - (189) (1407)
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 1,753,686 33368 270470 54423 049 2,112,9%
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE20201F12A31BILFE

33. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) HABIR & m =Bk (48)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities (b) BEE WS B A ER (4)
(Continued)
Amounts Amount Amount due
Bank loans dueto dueto to a former
and other related non-controlling non-controlling Lease
borrowings parties  shareholders  shareholder liabilities Total
RITEHR RS ERE2R  ENAFER
Eftfas HE RRFE BERE HERE @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTL ARETT ARETTL ARETT ARETTL
Net cash flows: RemFE:
New bank borrowings raised EENTBIER 592,937 - - - - 592,937
New other borrowings raised %‘ﬁ MHEMER 128,590 - - - - 128,590
Repayment of bank borrowings BEFTER (177,228) - - - - (177,228)
Repayment of other borrowings ERAMER (758,519) - - - - (758,519)
Advance from non-controlling FRRRR RS
shareholders - - 11,755 - - 11,755
Repayment to non-controlling FIEERBRER
shareholders - - (91,090) - - (91,090)
Repayment to a former M EERREER
non-controlling shareholder - - - (6,000) - (6,000)
Advance from related parties eyl - 176,564 - - - 176,564
Repayment to related parties HF%E%&M - (50,980) - - - (50,980)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEMEAE - - - - (1,059) (1,059)
Other changes: Eftgs:
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WERBAR 100,063 - - - - 100,063
Repayment upon acquisition of IRE M B A Al
non-controlling interest of R (3 350)
a subsidiary (Note 35(a)) - - (56,148) - - (56,148)
Derecognition upon disposal of LERBRAIGRIER
subsidiaries (Note 36) (PizE36) - (5,212) - - - (5,212)
Accrued interests [E:HHIE - 6,568 1,120 - 24 7,712
Exchange realignment EHAE 1373 124 (848) - (14) 635
At 31 December 2021 R2021F128318 1,640,902 160,432 135,259 48,423 - 1,985,016

i B A B W

20214
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. AN E] B EAES IR DR
COMPANY
2021 2020
202145 2020 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s ARET T ARET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R E AR 1,486,751 1,486,743
1,486,751 1,486,743
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E At Y F 8 192,304 183,814
Financial assets at FVPL BATER ABES
DRLEE 1,607 1,654
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEY 3,924 21,879
197,835 207,347
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M ERA I8 12,368 12,600
Net current assets MEEEFE 185,467 194,747
NET ASSETS EERE 1,672,218 1,681,490
Capital and reserves EXRR#E
Share capital &z 27(b) 2,585 2,585
Reserves ] 33(@) 1,748,305 1,753,770
Accumulated losses 2t 33(a) (78,672) (74,865)
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,672,218 1,681,490
This statement of financial position was approved and authorised for SRR KR E R 202F4 20 EE
issue by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2022 and signed on its behalf EEHEREETNE  YHEUTESER
by: xEE

Zhou Li Fan Wenyi
RS 38 3%

Director Director
EF s
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(@ Movements in components of equity @)

- AR FEESIR UL ()

REBER G R & AN D 2 BT
BRSO IR N & s
HBER - ARBFHNEF KRR E
SBEARE BB FBILT

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company’s individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Reserves
s
Share Other Exchange Total  Accumulated Total
premium reserve reserve reserves losses Equity
RiEE Eftfee HERE BRE ZiER a3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARBTR  AR¥TR  ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2020 R0 1 A1 BRER 236,791 1416700 112295 1765786 (35087) 1730699
Loss for the year EREE - - - (39778) (39778)
Other comprehensive loss EREMZEEE
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation IR EBHRFELF| &%
of financial statements to E’J EREE
presentation currency - - (12016) (12016) - (12016)
Total comprehensive loss FRRAFRAE
for the year - - (12016) (12016) (39.778) (51,794)
Balance at 31 December ?WOZOE QH AR
2020and 1 January 2021 WIETR1BRE 236,791 1,416,700 100,279 1,753,770 (74,865) 1,678,905
Loss for the year EREE - - - - (3,807) (3:807)
Other comprehensive loss EREMZEEE
for the year.
Eichange differences on translation BB BHEZ 27 E%
of financial statements to NEREE
presentation currency - - (5,465) (5,465) = (5,465)
Total comprehensive loss ER2EFELE
for the year - = (5,465) (5,:465) (3,807) (9.272)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R021FE12 831 BHES 236,791 1,416,700 94,814 1,748,305 (78,672) 1,669,633
WEERARAT 20214% D47
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HE021F12A38ILFE

35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 and 2020

35. JiN B E S w] A HE £
MR2021ER20200FE 12 A31BZ X EWE

242

are as follows: NEIFFBAT -
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration and issuedand  attributable equity interest
Name of company business paid up capital EEREE DL Principal activities
EREKL BETRAZ
NEER B E k) BAFHE 2021 200 FEES
2021 2005
Sanya Fenghuang Xincheng The PRC RMB400,000,000 100% 100% Property development
ZRREHE i AFH 4000000007 NERER
Sanya Feng Huang Shui Yun Real Estate The PRC RMB280,000,000 100% 100% Property development
Development Co, Ltd. i AR 280,000,000 70 MEER
—oREKERMERERRAA
Hainan Nan Hai Xiang Long Real Estate The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100% Property development
Development Co, Ltd. i AR 500000007 MEER
BEEsEREREER AR
Danzhou Shuang Lian The PRC RMB412,500,000 88.09% 80.09% Property development
MR R i AR 4125000007 MEER
Hamilton Avenue Investment, LLC The USA US$7,700,000 75% 75% Property development
Hamilton Avenue Investment, LLC XE 7,700000% T NEER
Zhanjiang Hailan Real Estate Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB18,180,000 53.20% 5320% Property development
EIEEERBRAR" hE AR 181800007 NEER
Nanjing Hailan Hao Yue Properties Co, Ltd The PRC RMB6,250,000 (Note i) 60% 60% Property development
AREEEHERARAA hE AR 62500007 NEER
(BifzED)
200 Ocean Boulevard, LLC The USA 1S$22,300,000 75% 75% Property development
200 Ocean Boulevard, LLC *H 22,300,000%7T NEER
Yuxi Jingwa Property Development Co., Ltd.  The PRC RMB9,990,000 70% - Property development
("Yuxi Jingwa’) i AR 99900007 MEER
FEAUEHEREERAR
([EEHE])y
Danzhou Hailan Jinhong Real Estate The PRC (Note i) 81.795% - Property development
Development Co, Ltd. s (PzEi) MEER
('Danzhou Jinhong')
ENEESRRHEREERAA
([ENE% )
Foshan Hailu Real Estate Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB50,000,000 (Note iii) 28.05% 2805% Property development
FIERERBRAR" hE AR 500000007 NEER
(i)
Qinzhou Tianmao Properties Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB3,333,000 (Note i) 41.83% 4183% Property development
FMNTREERERDA hE AR¥33330007C NEER
(i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021E1283181EEE
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

35.

(i)

(i)

These entities are PRC limited liability companies. The English translation of the
company names is for reference only. The official names of the companies are in

Chinese.

The registered share capital is RMB50,000,000 and the remaining registered share
capital of RMB26,500,000 is committed by the Group to inject on or before 10 August
2025.

The registered share capital is RMB10,000,000 and is committed by the Group to
inject on or before 31 December 2050.

These companies are held by the Group through more than one tier of shareholding
structure which leads to effective equity interest attributable to the Group in these
companies to be less than 50% while penetrating to the bottom shareholding.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

The following table lists out the information relating to Danzhou Shuang
Lian and 200 Ocean Boulevard, LLC, the subsidiaries of the Group which
have a material non-controlling interests ("NCI"). The summarised

financial information presented below represents the amounts before

any inter-company elimination.

35.

i B g 2 ] O 2 (

© RSERATEEREEAT  ATMEX
BEEHSE  AAEXEBADL -

R

@

(i)

(iif)

SE A A A A R % 50,000,000 7T + AN S [ A GE
2025 8 A 10 B2 AE AT AR A
AR 26,500,000 7T ©

FEM AR A A A R % 10,000,000 7T © AN EEFEE
2050812 A31 B ZANEA ©

ZERABMARERBER - EOFRER
®A Efiﬂﬂi‘ﬁ@#%%%"ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ?[‘f’%ﬂﬁ
DI 50% - REF2EEHKERMRK -

E %;w% ERFAHIA R R B R E

Tﬁﬂﬁik*ﬁ

EXEFEES JZT%BZZ!SEEQE@
E’]M-JLE j i%wuﬁ’

REEMIBARMNFBEEEHERA
RILE -

TRINREEAREE TR ERFEITRE
= ([FEEmRAER ) 2 B A RIME N
%2200 Ocean Boulevard, LLCEHYE#L « T X
25| 7 B &R E A A B % 8
Bl 2 FUA °
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. JRFE A AR RE AR (FE)
(@ Danzhou Shuang Lian (@) & JH =

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
NCl percentage R ER A DL 11.91% 19.91%
Current assets mENEE 1,492,280 1,355,736
Non-current assets ERENEE 14,651 14,300
Current liabilities mEAE (767,686) (580,832)
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE (349,002) (359,002)
Net assets BEFE 390,243 430,702
Carrying amount of NCI eI R s A BRE (A 154,877 153,184
Revenue WS 1,604 1,215

Loss and total comprehensive loss FREENEHEEBARE
for the year (16,430) (5,230)
Profit (Loss) attributable to NCl FET7E A% e 2 FE A m K (598 1,693 (1,648)
Cash flows used in operating activities KESEHITHREMNIE SR (90,537) (730,480)
Cash flows used in investing activities KREEHTHANERESR (191) (647)
Cash flows from financing activities RMEEFHELENBESR 88,455 731,240
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 12831 HILFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

35.

(@)

Danzhou Shuang Lian (Continued)

In year 2013 and 2014, the Group entered into a series of
investment agreements with Nanjing San Long Cement Company
Limited (“Nanjing San Long") and Danzhou Shuang Lian, where
the Group eventually acquired 60% of the equity interests of
Danzhou Shuang Lian from Nanjing San Long in January 2014 (the
"Acquisition I"). The Danzhou Shuang Lian project is divided into
Danzhou Phase | and Danzhou Phase II. At the time of the
Acquisition |, Danzhou Phase | with an area of approximately 89
mu was partially under development and was in the process of
pre-sale, while Danzhou Phase Il with an area of approximately
569 mu was a piece of undeveloped land. Pursuant to the relevant
investment agreements, Nanjing San Long as the non-controlling
shareholder continued to manage, develop and undertake fully
the risk and reward of Danzhou Phase | until its completion and
disposal. The books and records, including ledgers and bank
accounts of Danzhou Phase | and Danzhou Phase Il are maintained
separately. Danzhou Phase | is an autonomous and operationally
distinct business division that would remain under the direction of
Nanjing San Long after the Acquisition |.

In 2020, the Group undergone a series of capital injection and
acquisitions, at 31 December 2020, the Group's effective equity
interest in Danzhou Shuang Lian was 80.09% through holding (i)
100% equity interest in Sanya Zhongzekai Industrial Co., Ltd.
("Sanya Zhongzekai”) which holds 60% equity interests in
Danzhou Shuang Lian; (i) 65% equity interest in Hailan Shiye
(Guangzhou) Co,, Ltd. (‘Hailan Shiye Guangzhou") which holds
72.61% equity interests in Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng Zhiye
Co., Ltd ("Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng") which holds
29.208% equity interests in Danzhou Shuang Lian; and (iii) 65%
equity interest in Hailan Shiye Guangzhou which holds 9.7%
equity interests in Danzhou Shuang Lian.

On 10 September 2021, Hailan Hao Yue Holding (Shenzhen) Co,,
Ltd. ("Hailan Hao Yue Holding"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company acquired 27.39% equity interest of
Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng which holds 29.208% equity
interests in Danzhou Shuang Lian and the debts of RMB56,148,000
at a total consideration of RMB74,837,000.

35.

i it e
(@

J A R (7))

6 ) 1 M (%)
2013 % 2014FF > NEBHER
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*EJ MAEMERET L — RIIEE
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[ix 7 ) B 65% IR 7 #5 B 80.09% ) &
PRASHE o

R2021F9 108 » ARA)Z Mk
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

246

(@)

Danzhou Shuang Lian (Continued)

Upon the completion of this acquisition, the Company has
74.587% effective equity interest of Guangdong Jinzhong
Hongpeng through indirect holding 27.39% equity interest in
Guangdong Jinzhong Hongpeng by Hailan Hao Yue Holding and
indirect holding 65% equity interest of Hailan Shiye Guangzhou
which holds 72.61% equity interest in Guangdong Jinzhong
Hongpeng. In addition, the Company’s effective equity interests in
Danzhou Shuang Lian increased from 80.09% to 88.09%.

This acquisition of 27.39% equity interest of Guangdong Jinzhong
Hongpeng constituted a change in the equity interest of a
subsidiary without a loss of control and was accounted for as an
equity transaction. The difference of RMB26,959,000 between the
carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in Guangdong
Jinzhong Hongpeng of debited balance of RMB8,270,000 at the
date of this acquisition and the fair value of the consideration paid
of RMB18,689,000 was recognised in the transaction with non-
controlling interests reserve within the equity.

The assets and liabilities as well as revenue, cost of sales and other
items in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income related to Danzhou Phase | have been
included as part of the assets and liabilities as well as profit or loss
and other comprehensive income items of Danzhou Shuang Lian
as they are not legally separable from other assets and liabilities as
well as profit or loss and other comprehensive income items
related to Danzhou Phase Il. Notwithstanding the fact that the
nominal NCl percentage of Danzhou Shuang Lian is 11.91% (2020:
19.91%) at the end of the reporting period, the economic interest
of the non-controlling shareholder of Danzhou Shuang Lian
represented 100% interest of Danzhou Phase | and 11.91% (2020:
19.91%) interest of Danzhou Phase Il at the end of the reporting
period.

The net profit or loss, net assets or liabilities arising from Danzhou
Phase | are wholly attributable to, and accordingly are deducted
through the inclusion of such amounts in, the non-controlling
interests in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. FABIE A AR REAR (48)

(b) 200 Ocean Boulevard, LLC (b) 200 Ocean Boulevard, LLC
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AREETTT
NCI percentage SEERERA D 25% 25%
Current assets TEEE 340,912 184,473
Current liabilities mENAE (158,972) (28,067)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (44,572) (13,376)
Net assets BEFE 137,368 143,030
Carrying amount of NC| R R REE 34,342 35,758
Revenue e - -
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year F A §518 & 2 [ &5 18 42 58 (5,662) (2,475)
Loss attributable to NCI eI AR M o B (G S 1R (1,416) (619
Cash flows used in operating activities LB MTANER SR (162,378) (50,657)
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities & ;EEE A (FTR)WIE SR 188 (188)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEBEANBE SR 161,916 51,220
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c)

Danzhou Jinhong

On 7 July 2021, Sanya Zhongzekai, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company acquired 15% of the issued shares of
Danzhou Jinhong and the debts of RMB93,050,000 at a total
consideration of RMB93,050,000.

Upon the completion of this acquisition, the Company has 87.75%
effective equity interest in Danzhou Jinhong through holding (i)
15% equity interest in Danzhou Jinhong by Sanya Zhongzekai; (ii)
a contractual arrangement with Danzhou Shuang Lian which
holds 50% of Danzhou Jinhong on behalf of the Group; and (iii)
indirect 65% equity interest in Hailan Shiye Guangzhou which
holds 35% equity interests in Danzhou Jinhong.

This acquisition of 15% equity interest of Danzhou Jinhong
constituted a change in the equity interest of a subsidiary without
a loss of control and was accounted for as an equity transaction.
The difference of RMB532,000 between the carrying amount of
the non-controlling interests in Danzhou Jinhong of debited
balance of RMB532,000 at the date of this acquisition and the fair
value of the consideration paid was recognised in the transaction
with non-controlling interests reserve within the equity.
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 1 April 2021, the Group entered agreements with Center Drive,
a connected party to the Company, to dispose the entire equity
interests of 58% in Crossland Development Inc. (“Crossland’) at a
consideration of US$2,900,000 (equivalent to RMB19,053,000) and
loans of US$1,050,000 (equivalent to RMB6,899,000) to the non-
controlling shareholders of Crossland. Total sum of US$1,425,000
(equivalent to RMB9,362,000) out of total consideration of
US$3,950,000 (equivalent to RMB25,952,000) was settled by cash
of US$900,000 (equivalent to RMB5,913,000) and by offsetting with
amount due to Center Drive of US$525,000 (equivalent to
RMB3,449,000) during the year. At the end of the reporting period,
the remaining balance of US$2,525,000 (equivalent to
RMB16,167,000) recorded as amount due from a related party
included in other receivables at the end of the reporting period.

On 7 July 2021, the Group disposed of its entire 51% equity
interests in Jinzhong Zhiye to Zhongtou Zhiye Guangzhou,
another shareholder of Jinzhong Zhiye, at a total consideration of
RMB97,010,000. The consideration has been settled by offsetting
the amount due to Jinzhong Zhiye.

36.

th B g 2 )
@ 202154818 KEEEARQ
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following summarised the consideration received and the carrying

36. HEMNEAF (4)
AT MR BUREEREBENE

amount of assets and liabilities at the respective date of disposal: Ue B H IR RO BR (B -
Jinzhong
Crossland Zhiye Total
Crossland SHEEY st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T AREEF T ARETT
Net assets disposed of: FFHEEEFRE:
Property, plant and equipment W - BB MR - 98 98
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE - 195,000 195,000
Investment in an associate R—EEE R RINIRE - 3,990 3,990
Deferred tax assets EEFIAE B - 4,165 4165
Properties under development R - 372,161 372,161
Contract costs B HRAR - 16,631 16,631
Trade and other receivables 2 5 & E M EWEUR - 409,075 409,075
Cash and bank balances e RIRITEEER 12,676 23,295 35,971
Contract liabilities aEHaE - (510,338) (510,338)
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNFIE (5212) (226,198) (231,410)
7,464 287,879 295,343
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: &K E QAW :
Total consideration BRIE 19,053 97,010 116,063
Net assets disposed of s & EFE (7,464) (287,879) (295,343)
Non-controlling interests SRR (1,113) 197,279 196,166
Reclassification adjustment of HERER#EC
exchange reserve upon disposal B DA 256 - 256
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M B T AU 10,732 6,410 17,142
Analysis of net cash outflowon  HEKBATRNBESHRE
disposal of subsidiaries REEDHT
Cash consideration HEeRE 5913 - 5913
Cash and cash equivalent FriERe RRe
disposed of EEY (12,676) (23,295) (35,971)
Net cash outflow on disposalof HEKBATNREREH
subsidiaries FE (6,763) (23,295) (30,058)
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BHE
37.

38.

202112 A31BIEFE
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

Yuxi Jingwa

On 15 July 2021, Hailan Hao Yue Holding and T X &£ B X HR A 7
(the "Vendor”) entered into a share transfer agreement pursuant to which
Hailan Hao Yue Holding agreed to acquire and the Vendor agreed to sell
70% equity interests in Yuxi Jingwa at total consideration of RMB6,993,000.
At the date of acquisition, the identifiable net assets of Yuxi Jingwa was
RMB6,688,000 with major assets and liabilities of the land uses rights of the
land parcels situated at 1 B = & £ T 4135 [@ #E AL B 12955 and the
amounts due to the Vendor and the related parties of Vendor in sum of
RMB100,063,000. This acquisition was completed on 19 July 2021.

The acquisition is accounted for as an acquisition of assets and liabilities.
The cost of acquisition was allocated to the individual identifiable assets
and liabilities based on their relative fair values at the date of acquisition.

The Group has elected to initially measure the non-controlling interests
in Yuxi Jingwa at its proportionate share of the acquired net identifiable
net assets are measured initially at fair value of RMB2,997,000 at the date
of acquisition.

At the end of the reporting period, the balance of consideration payables
of RMB2,797,000 which are interest-free and repayable in 2022 were
included in other payables under current liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 1 April 2022, Hylan Investment, Inc. (“Hylan”), an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party (the “Seller”) pursuant to
which Hylan agreed to acquire, and the Seller agreed to disposed of a
property in California, the United States at a consideration of
US$10,096,000 (equivalent to RMB64,285,000). The details of this
acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcement and
supplemental announcement dated 1 April 2022 and 6 April 2022
respectively.

37.
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Financial Summary

A B

Results & For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 20194 20204 2021 &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFT ARBTT ARBTT AR%¥TR
Revenue Uz 2,005,308 1410474 354,688 720,670 557,571
Profit (Loss) before taxation BRIAEF (E51E) 780,832 544,002 (9,140) 185,434 90,301
Income tax expenses T8 (521,320) (362,923) (47,497) (153,478) (132,021)
Profit (Loss) for the year FERHEM (E18) 259,512 181,079 (56,637) 31,956 (41,720)
Attributable to: T AL RE
Owners of the Company ERRHEB A 251,181 179,538 (18,897) 64,034 15,448
Non-controlling interests IR 8331 1,541 (37,740) (32,078) (57,168)
Profit (Loss) for the year FEREM (E18) 259,512 181,079 (56,637) 31,956 (41,720)
Assets and Liabilities BEERER As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 20194 20204 2021 &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ARBTT ARBTLT AR%TR
Total assets BEE 5,194,638 5,043,240 4943414 7,543,276 8,925,713
Total liabilities HBEE 3259117 2893816 2,826,229 5629318 7,269,188
Net assets BEFE 1,935,521 2,149,424 2,117,185 1,913,958 1,656,525
Equity attributable to the EREEB A
owners of the Company JEIL R 1,606,571 1811,257 1,852,442 1484553 1,469,614
Non-controlling interests FEE RS 328950 338,167 264,743 429405 186,911
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